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March 10, 2017

Robert Abernathy 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS: 

It is my pleasure to invite you to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Halyard Health, Inc.  
(the “Company”). The meeting will be held on Thursday, April 27, 2017, at 9:00 a.m. Eastern time  
at the Company’s headquarters located at 5405 Windward Parkway, Alpharetta, Georgia 30004.

At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to elect three directors for a three-year term, 
ratify the selection of the Company’s independent auditors, and approve the compensation for our 
named executive officers. These matters are fully described in the accompanying Notice of Annual 
Meeting and proxy statement.

Your vote is important. Regardless of whether you plan to attend the meeting, I urge you to 
vote your shares as soon as possible. You may vote using the included proxy card by completing, 
signing, and dating it, then returning it by mail. You may also vote your shares by using the 
telephone or Internet by following the instructions set forth on the proxy card. Additional 
information about voting your shares is included in the proxy statement.

Sincerely,
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Important Notice Regarding Availability of Proxy Materials for 
the Stockholders Meeting to be held on April 27, 2017

This proxy statement along with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, 
are available at www.proxyvote.com.

Ross Mansbach
Vice President—
Deputy General Counsel
and Corporate Secretary

Halyard  
Health, Inc. 

Notice of  
Annual Meeting 
of Stockholders
TO BE HELD

April 27, 2017

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Halyard Health, Inc. (the “Company”) 
will be held at the Company’s headquarters, which is located at  
5405 Windward Parkway, Alpharetta, Georgia 30004, on Thursday,  
April 27, 2017, at 9:00 a.m. Eastern time for the following purposes:

1. To elect as directors the three nominees named in the accompanying 
proxy statement for a three-year term;

2. To ratify the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent 
auditors for 2017; 

3. To approve a non-binding resolution to approve the compensation of 
our named executive officers; and

4. To take action upon any other business that may properly come 
before the meeting or any adjournments of the meeting. 

Stockholders of record at the close of business on March 3, 2017, are entitled 
to notice of and to vote at the meeting or any adjournments.

It is important that your shares be represented at the meeting. I urge you to 
vote promptly by using the telephone or Internet or by signing, dating and 
returning the enclosed proxy card.

To attend in person, please register by following the instructions on page 4. If 
you plan to attend the meeting, we ask that you nevertheless vote promptly 
by using the telephone or Internet or by signing, dating and returning the 
enclosed proxy card. You may revoke your proxy and vote your shares in 
person if you would like to do so.

March 10, 2017 By Order of the Board of Directors.
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Information About Our 
Annual Meeting

Halyard Health, Inc. 
5405 Windward Parkway 
Alpharetta, GA 30004 
678-425-9273

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Halyard Health, Inc. (the “Company”), we are soliciting 
your proxy for use at the 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on April 27, 2017, 
at 9:00 a.m. Eastern time at the Company’s headquarters located at 5405 Windward Parkway, 
Alpharetta, Georgia 30004.

At the annual meeting, stockholders will vote on the following matters:

1. The election of the three nominees named in this proxy statement as directors for a three-year 
term;

2. The ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent auditors for 2017;

3. A non-binding resolution to approve the compensation of our named executive officers; and

4. Any other business that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments of the 
meeting.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote your shares FOR each of proposals one 
through three.

We began providing our proxy statement and form of proxy to stockholders on March 10, 2017.

As Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules permit, we are making our proxy 
statement and our annual report available to many of our stockholders via the Internet rather than 
by mail. This reduces printing and delivery costs and supports our sustainability efforts. You may 
have received in the mail a “Notice of Electronic Availability” explaining how to access this proxy 
statement and our annual report on the Internet and how to vote online. If you received this Notice 
but would like to receive a paper copy of the proxy materials, you should follow the instructions 
contained in the Notice for requesting these materials.

If you were a stockholder of record at the close of business on the record date of March 3, 2017, 
you are eligible to vote at the meeting. Each share of our common stock that you own entitles you 
to one vote. Shares may not be voted cumulatively.

As of the record date, 46,681,798 shares of common stock were outstanding.

If your shares are held by a bank or brokerage firm, you are considered the “beneficial owner” of 
the shares held in “street name.” If your shares are held in street name, your bank or brokerage 
firm (the record holder of your shares) forwarded to you these proxy materials, along with a voting 
instruction card. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your record holder how to 
vote your shares, and the record holder is required to vote your shares in accordance with your 
instructions. If you do not give instructions to your bank or brokerage firm, it will nevertheless be 
entitled to vote your shares with respect to “routine” items, but it will not be permitted to vote your 
shares with respect to “non-routine” items. In the case of non-routine items, your shares will be 
considered “broker non-votes” on those proposals.

How We  
Provide Proxy 
Materials

Who May Vote

March 10, 2017
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Information About Our Annual Meeting Effect of Not Instructing Your Broker

If you are the record holder of shares of our common stock as of the record date, you may vote 
by using the telephone or Internet, by completing and returning the enclosed proxy card by mail, 
or by voting in person at the meeting. To vote by telephone or Internet, see the instructions on the 
proxy card and have the proxy card available when you place your telephone call or access the 
Internet website. To vote your proxy by mail, or by voting in person at the meeting, mark your vote 
on the proxy card, then follow the instructions on the card to return it by mail.

If your shares are held in street name, please follow the instructions on the voting instruction card 
to vote your shares. 

If you are the record holder of your shares and you attend the meeting, you may deliver your 
completed proxy card in person. Additionally, we will pass out written ballots to registered 
stockholders who wish to vote in person at the meeting. Beneficial owners of shares held in 
street name who wish to vote at the meeting will need to obtain a power of attorney or 
proxy from their record holder to do so. 

If you return a completed and properly signed proxy card prior to the meeting, or if you 
vote by telephone or the Internet prior to the meeting, the persons named as proxies on 
the proxy card will vote your shares according to your directions. The voting results will be 
certified by independent Inspectors of Election. 

If you are a stockholder of record and you sign and return your proxy card, or if you vote by 
using the telephone or Internet, but you do not specify how you want to vote your shares, 
the persons named as proxies on the proxy card will vote your shares as follows: 

 � FOR the election of directors named in this proxy statement; 

 � FOR ratification of the selection of our independent auditors; and

 � FOR approval of the compensation of our named executive officers.

If any other matters are properly presented at the Annual Meeting for consideration, the persons 
named as proxies on the proxy card will vote as recommended by the Board of Directors or, if no 
recommendation is given, in their discretion.

Routine Matters. If your shares are held in street name and you do not instruct the broker on how 
to vote your shares, your broker may choose to leave your shares unvoted or to vote your shares 
on routine matters. “Proposal 2 — Ratification of Auditors” is the only routine matter on the agenda 
at this year’s Annual Meeting.

Non-Routine Matters. Without instructions from you on how to vote your shares, your broker 
cannot vote your shares on non-routine matters, including Proposals 1 and 3, resulting in what are 
known as “broker non-votes.” Broker non-votes will not be considered present or entitled to vote 
on non-routine matters and will also not be counted for the purpose of determining the number 
of votes cast on these proposals. Broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of any proposals 
considered at the Annual Meeting.

How to Vote

Effect of Not 
Instructing 
Your Broker
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Information About Our Annual Meeting Votes Required

Election of Directors. “Withhold” votes for the election of directors will have no impact on the 
outcome of the vote. They will not be counted for the purpose of determining the number of votes 
cast or as votes “for” or “against” a nominee.

Other Proposals. Abstentions will be counted:

 � in determining the total number of shares entitled to vote on a proposal, and

 � as votes against a proposal

If you are a stockholder of record, there are several ways to revoke or change your vote:

 � Mail a revised proxy card with a later date or a written notice of revocation with a later date to 
the Corporate Secretary of the Company (the revised proxy card or notice of revocation must be 
received by close of business on April 26, 2017). Use the following address: Halyard Health, Inc., 
Attn: Corporate Secretary, 5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South, Alpharetta, GA 30004.

 � Use the telephone voting procedures or Internet voting website (the revocation or change must 
be completed by 11:59 p.m. Eastern time on April 26, 2017).

 � Attend the meeting and vote in person. Please note that attendance at the meeting will not 
revoke a proxy if you do not actually vote at the meeting.

If you hold your shares in street name, the above options for changing your vote or revoking your 
instructions do not apply and you must follow the instructions received from your bank or broker to 
change your vote or revoke your proxy.

There must be a quorum to conduct business at the Annual Meeting, which is established by 
having a majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock present in person or represented 
by proxy. If you vote, your shares will be included in the number of shares to establish the quorum. 
Abstentions (or “Withhold” votes for the elections of directors) or proxy cards returned without 
voting instructions and broker non-votes will be counted as present for the purpose of determining 
whether the quorum requirement is satisfied.

Election of Directors. In 2016, the Company adopted a “plurality-plus” voting policy for directors in 
uncontested elections. Under our “plurality-plus” voting policy, if any nominee for director receives 
a greater number of votes “withheld” than votes “for” such nominee in an uncontested election, 
he or she will promptly tender his or her resignation. The Governance Committee, without the 
participation of the director who tendered his or her resignation, will then take action to accept or 
reject the director’s resignation and submit its recommendation to the full Board of Directors. The 
full Board of Directors, without the participation of the director who tendered his or her resignation, 
will accept or reject the resignation within 90 days of the certification of the election results and, 
if it chooses not to accept the resignation, will promptly disclose its decision in a Form 8-K or 
similar filing with the SEC. Further details about our “plurality plus” policy are included in our 
Corporate Governance Policies, which are available in the Investors’ section of our website at 
www.halyardhealth.com.

Other Proposals or Matters. Approval requires the affirmative vote of a majority of shares that are 
present at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the proposal.

If you are a stockholder of record and you do not sign and return a proxy card or vote by telephone 
or the Internet, your shares will not count toward the quorum requirement and will not affect the 
outcome of any proposal at the Annual Meeting.

How Withhold 
Votes and 
Abstentions  
Will be Counted

How to Revoke 
or Change 
Your Vote

Votes Required
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Information About Our Annual Meeting Costs of Solicitation

If you are a stockholder of record, you or a duly appointed representative may attend the Annual 
Meeting in person. Returning your proxy card will not affect your right to attend the Annual  
Meeting and to vote in person. If you do plan to attend, we ask that you inform us electronically,  
by telephone, or by checking the appropriate box on your proxy form. This will assist us with 
meeting preparations and help to expedite your admittance.

If your shares are not registered in your own name and you would like to attend the 
meeting, please ask the broker, trust, bank or other nominee that holds your shares to 
provide you with written proof of your share ownership as of the record date. This will 
enable you to gain admission to the meeting.

If you need directions to the meeting, please contact Stockholder Services by telephone at 
678-425-9273 or by e-mail at stockholder.services@hyh.com. Please bring a driver’s license or 
other photo-identification with you to the meeting to facilitate admission to the meeting.

The Company will bear all costs of this proxy solicitation, including the cost of preparing, printing 
and delivering materials, and the out-of-pocket expenses of brokers, fiduciaries and other 
nominees who forward proxy materials to stockholders. In addition to mail and electronic means, 
our employees may solicit proxies by telephone or otherwise. Our employees will not receive 
additional compensation for such solicitations. We have retained D. F. King & Co., Inc., to aid in the 
solicitation at a cost of approximately $9,500 plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

Attending  
the Annual 
Meeting

Costs of 
Solicitation
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Corporate Governance

Our governance structure and processes are based on a number of important governance 
documents including our Code of Conduct, Certificate of Incorporation, Corporate Bylaws, 
Corporate Governance Policies and our Board Committee Charters. These documents, which are 
available in the Investor’s section of our website at www.halyardhealth.com, guide the Board and 
our management in the execution of their responsibilities. 

The Company believes that there is a direct connection between good corporate governance and 
long-term, sustained business success, and we believe it is important to uphold sound governance 
practices. As such, the Board reviews its governance practices and documents on an ongoing 
basis, and it considers changing regulatory requirements, governance trends, and issues raised by 
our stockholders. After careful evaluation, we may periodically make governance changes in view 
of these matters to maintain current good governance practices and promote stockholder value. 

We believe we are in compliance with all applicable corporate governance requirements of the 
New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), the SEC, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the provisions 
of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 that have become 
effective as of the date of this proxy statement. 

The Board has established a leadership structure that allocates responsibilities between our 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and our Lead Director. The Board believes that 
this allocation provides for dynamic Board leadership while maintaining strong independence and 
oversight.

Consistent with this leadership structure, at least once a quarter our Lead Director, who is an 
independent director, chairs executive sessions of our non-management directors. Members of the 
Company’s senior management team do not attend these sessions.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Positions 
Under current circumstances, it is the Board’s view that a combined Chairman and CEO, coupled 
with a predominantly independent board and a proactive, independent Lead Director, promotes 
candid discourse and responsible corporate governance. Combining these roles also helps 
maintain clear lines of accountability internally and allows the Company’s leadership to speak with 
a single voice externally. The Board retains the discretion to separate the Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer roles at any time if it deems that to be in the best interest of our Company and 
stockholders. 

Robert Abernathy serves as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. After careful 
consideration, the Board believes that with the benefit of Mr. Abernathy’s thirty plus years of 
operational and management experience at Kimberly-Clark Corporation (“Kimberly-Clark”) and the 
Company, he has demonstrated the leadership and vision necessary to lead the Board and the 
Company in establishing and executing our global business strategies. He maintains an investor-
focused perspective, and his leadership has delivered strong performance over an extended 
period of time. Mr. Abernathy serves in this combined role at the pleasure of the Board without an 
employment contract. 

Board 
Leadership 
Structure
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Corporate Governance Board Committees

Lead Director
Ronald Dollens serves as our independent Lead Director. Our Corporate Governance Policies 
outline the significant role and responsibilities of the Lead Director, which include:

 � Chairing the Executive Committee

 � Chairing executive sessions at which non-management directors meet outside management’s 
presence, and providing feedback from such sessions to the Chief Executive Officer 

 � Coordinating the activities of the independent directors 

 � Providing input on agendas and schedules for Board meetings 

 � Leading the annual Board evaluation 

 � Leading (with the Chairman of the Compensation Committee) the Board’s review and 
discussion of the Chief Executive Officer’s performance 

 � Providing feedback to individual directors following their periodic evaluations

 � Speaking on behalf of the Board and chairing Board meetings when the Chairman of the Board 
is unable to do so

 � Acting as a direct conduit to the Board for stockholders, employees and others according to the 
Board’s policies

We believe our independent board helps ensure good corporate governance and strong internal 
controls.

Our Corporate Governance Policies, as adopted by the Board, provide independence standards 
consistent with the rules and regulations of the SEC and the listing standards of the NYSE. Our 
independence standards can be found in Section 17 of our Corporate Governance Policies.

The Governance Committee of the Board has determined that all directors and nominees, except 
for Robert E. Abernathy, are independent directors and meet the independence standards in our 
Corporate Governance Policies.

The Board of Directors met 7 times in 2016. All of the directors attended in excess of 75 percent of 
the total number of meetings of the Board and the committees on which they served.

Although we do not have a formal policy with respect to director attendance at annual meetings, 
all directors attended the 2016 Annual Meeting, and we expect that all directors, including those 
standing for election, will be in attendance at the Annual Meeting on April 27, 2017.

In 2016, the standing committees of the Board included the Audit Committee, Compensation 
Committee, Compliance Committee, Governance Committee, and Executive Committee. In 
compliance with applicable NYSE corporate governance listing standards, the Board has adopted 
Charters for all Committees except the Executive Committee.

Our Committee Charters are available in the Investors section of our website at 
www.halyardhealth.com.

As set forth in our Corporate Governance Policies, and in the charter of each individual committee, 
the Board’s committees all have the authority to retain independent advisors and consultants, with 
all costs paid by the Company.

Director 
Independence

Board Meetings

Board 
Committees
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Corporate Governance Board Committees

Audit Committee 

Chairman: Heidi Kunz

Other members: Gary Blackford and Patrick O’Leary

The Board has determined that Ms. Kunz is an “audit committee financial expert” under SEC rules 
and regulations. In addition, all Audit Committee members satisfy the NYSE’s financial literacy 
requirements and qualify as independent directors under our Corporate Governance Policies. 

No member of the Audit Committee serves on the audit committees of more than three public 
companies. Under our Audit Committee Charter and NYSE corporate governance listing 
standards, if a member were to serve on more than three such committees, the Board would then 
determine whether this situation impairs the member’s ability to serve effectively on our Audit 
Committee, and we would post information about this determination on the Investors section of our 
website at www.halyardhealth.com. 

The Committee met 6 times in 2016, including once in joint session with the Compliance Committee. 

The Committee’s principal functions, as specified in its Charter, include: 

 � Overseeing: 

† the quality and integrity of our financial statements 

† our compliance programs in coordination with our Compliance Committee 

† our hedging strategies and policies 

† the independence, qualification and performance of our independent auditors 

† the performance of our internal auditors 

 � Selecting and engaging our independent auditors, subject to stockholder ratification 

 � Pre-approving all audit and non-audit services that our independent auditors provide 

 � Reviewing the scope of audits and audit findings, including any comments or recommendations 
of our independent auditors 

 � Establishing policies for our internal audit programs 

 � Overseeing our risk management program and receiving periodic reports from management on 
risk assessments, the risk management process, and issues related to the risks of managing 
our business 

For additional information about the Audit Committee’s oversight activities with respect to our 2016 
financial statements, see “Proposal 2. Ratification of Auditors — Audit Committee Report.” 

Compensation Committee 

Chairman: Julie Shimer

Other members: John Byrnes, William Hawkins, and Maria Sainz. 
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Corporate Governance Board Committees

Each member of this Committee is an independent director. The Committee met 6 times in 2016. 

The Committee’s principal functions, as specified in its Charter, include: 

 � Establishing and administering the policies governing annual compensation and long-term 
compensation, including stock option awards, restricted stock awards and restricted share unit 
awards, such that the policies are designed to align compensation with our overall business 
strategy and performance 

 � Setting, after an evaluation of his overall performance, the compensation level of the Chief 
Executive Officer 

 � Determining, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer, compensation levels and 
performance targets for our executive officers 

 � Setting annual targets and certifying awards for corporate performance under our corporate 
incentive compensation plans 

 � Overseeing: 

† leadership development for senior management and future senior management candidates 

† a periodic review of our long-term and emergency succession planning for the Chief 
Executive Officer and other key officer positions, in conjunction with our Board 

† key organizational effectiveness and engagement policies 

 � Annually reviewing our compensation policies and practices for the purpose of mitigating risks 
arising from these policies and practices that could reasonably have a material adverse effect 
on the Company 

Roles of the Committee and the CEO in Compensation Decisions 
Each year, the Committee reviews and sets the compensation of our executive officers, including 
our Chief Executive Officer. The Committee’s Charter does not permit the Committee to delegate to 
anyone the authority to establish any compensation policies or programs for the executive officers. 
With respect to officers that are not executive officers (our “non-executive officers”), our Chief 
Executive Officer has the authority to establish compensation programs and, subject to certain 
limits, to approve equity grants. However, only the Committee may make equity grants to our 
executive officers. 

Our Chief Executive Officer makes a recommendation to the Committee each year on the 
appropriate target annual compensation for each of the other executive officers. The Committee 
makes the final determination of the target annual compensation for each executive officer, 
including our Chief Executive Officer. While our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Human 
Resources Officer typically each attend Committee meetings, none of the other executive officers 
is present during the portion of the Committee meetings when compensation for executive officers 
is set. In addition, neither our Chief Executive Officer nor our Chief Human Resources Officer is 
present during the portion of the Committee meetings when their compensation is set. 

For additional information on the Committee’s processes and procedures for determining executive 
compensation, and for a detailed discussion of our compensation policies, see “Compensation 
Discussion and Analysis.” 

Use of Compensation Consultants 
The Committee’s Charter authorizes the Committee to retain advisors, including compensation 
consultants, to assist it in its work. The Committee believes that compensation consultants can 
provide important market information and perspectives that can help it determine compensation 
programs that best meet the objectives of our compensation policies. In selecting a consultant, the 
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Corporate Governance Board Committees

Committee evaluates the independence of the firm as a whole and of the individual advisors who 
will be working with the Committee. 

The Committee retains an independent executive compensation consultant who, according to the 
Committee’s written policy, provides services solely to the Committee and not to the Company. 
The Committee’s consultant has no other business relationship with the Company and receives 
no payments from the Company other than fees for services to the Committee. The consultant 
reports directly to the Committee and the Committee may replace the consultant or hire additional 
consultants at any time. The Committee has selected Meridian Compensation Partners, LLC as its 
independent consultant. 

In 2016, the scope of activities for the Committee’s independent compensation consultant included: 

 � Conducting a review of the executive compensation peer group 

 � Reviewing and commenting on the Company’s executive compensation programs 

 � Conducting a risk assessment of the Company’s executive compensation programs 

 � Attending Committee meetings 

 � Periodically consulting with the Chairman of the Committee 

Committee Assessment of Consultant Conflicts of Interest. The Committee has reviewed whether 
the work provided by Meridian Compensation Partners raises any conflict of interest. Factors 
considered by the Committee include: (1) whether other services are provided to the Company 
by the consultant; (2) what percentage of the consultant’s total revenue is made up of fees from 
the Company; (3) policies or procedures of the consultant that are designed to prevent a conflict 
of interest; (4) any business or personal relationships between individual consultants involved 
in the engagement and Committee members; (5) any shares of the Company stock owned by 
individual consultants involved in the engagement; and (6) any business or personal relationships 
between our executive officers and the consulting firm or the individual consultants involved in 
the engagement. Based on its review, the Committee does not believe that the compensation 
consultants that performed services to the Committee in 2016 have a conflict of interest with 
respect to the work performed for the Committee. 

Committee Report 
The Committee has reviewed the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” section of this proxy 
statement and has recommended that it be included in this proxy statement. The Committee’s 
report is located at “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Compensation Committee Report.” 

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 
The members of the Compensation Committee during 2016 were Dr. Shimer, Messrs. Byrnes 
and Hawkins, and Ms. Sainz. None of the members of the Compensation Committee was, during 
2016, a current or former officer or employee of the Company. Also, none of the members of the 
Compensation Committee had any relationship with the Company in 2016 requiring disclosure 
under Item 404 of Regulation S-K. For information about the Company’s policies on transactions 
with related parties, see “Transactions with Related Parties” later in this proxy statement. During 
2016, none of our executive officers served as a member of the board of directors or compensation 
committee of any entity that had one or more executive officers serving as a member of our Board 
of Directors or Compensation Committee. 

Compliance Committee 

Chairman: William Hawkins 

Other Members: John Byrnes, Maria Sainz and Julie Shimer
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Corporate Governance Board Committees

Each member of this Committee is an independent director. The Committee met 6 times in 2016, 
including once in joint session with the Audit Committee.

The Committee’s principal functions, as specified in its Charter, include the following: 

 � Overseeing the Company’s compliance program in the areas of Code of Conduct, Conflicts of 
Interest, Consumer Protection, Ethics, Environment, Government Relations, Health and Safety, 
Customs and Export Controls, False Claims, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar anti-
bribery laws, Fraud and Abuse Laws including Anti-Kickback, Information Systems Security, 
Intellectual Property, Labor & Employment, Physical Security, Quality, Recalls, Regulatory, 
including FDA, Safety, Sunshine Act, and Transportation 

 � Overseeing the Company’s sustainability, corporate social responsibility and corporate 
citizenship matters 

 � Monitoring the Company’s efforts to implement programs, policies and procedures relating to 
compliance matters 

 � Overseeing the investigation of any significant instances of noncompliance with laws or the 
Company’s compliance program, policies or procedures, other than any instances involving 
financial noncompliance 

 � Reviewing the Company’s compliance risk assessment plan 

 � Identifying and investigating emerging compliance issues and trends which may affect the 
Company 

Governance Committee 

Chairman: Gary D. Blackford 

Other Members: Heidi Kunz and Patrick O’Leary

Each member of this Committee is an independent director. The Committee met 5 times in 2016. 

The Committee’s principal functions, as specified in its Charter, include the following: 

 � Overseeing the screening and recruitment of prospective Board members and making 
recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding specific director nominees, as well as 
overseeing the process for Board nominations 

 � Overseeing corporate governance matters, including developing and recommending to the 
Board changes to our Corporate Governance Policies 

 � Advising the Board on: 

† Board organization, membership, function, performance and compensation 

† committee structure and membership 

† policies and positions regarding significant stockholder relations issues 

 � Reviewing director independence standards and making recommendations to the Board with 
respect to the determination of director independence 

 � Monitoring and recommending improvements to the Board’s practices and procedures 

 � Reviewing stockholder proposals and considering how to respond to them 
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Corporate Governance Other Corporate Governance Policies and Practices

The Committee, in accordance with its Charter and our Certificate of Incorporation, has 
established criteria and processes for director nominations, including those proposed by 
stockholders. Those criteria and processes are described in “Proposal 1. Election of Directors — 
Process and Criteria for Nominating Directors” and “Other Information — Stockholder Nominations 
for Board of Directors.” 

Executive Committee 

Chairman: Ron Dollens (Lead Independent Director) 

Other Members: Robert Abernathy, Heidi Kunz, William Hawkins and Julie Shimer

The Committee did not meet in 2016. 

The Committee’s principal function is to exercise, when necessary between Board meetings, the Board’s 
powers to direct our business and affairs. Accordingly, the Committee has no regularly scheduled 
meetings and it is expected that, each year, the Committee will meet infrequently or not at all. 

The Board has established processes by which stockholders and other interested parties may 
communicate with the Board, including the Lead Director, as well as with the Audit Committee and 
Compliance Committee. Those processes can be found in the Investors section of our website at 
www.halyardhealth.com.

Corporate Governance Policies. The Board of Directors has adopted Corporate Governance 
Policies. These policies guide the Company and the Board on matters of corporate governance, 
including: director responsibilities, Board committees and their Charters, director independence, 
director compensation and performance assessments, director orientation and education, director 
access to management, Board access to outside financial, business and legal advisors, and 
management development and succession planning. To see these policies, go to the Investors 
section of our website at www.halyardhealth.com. 

Code of Conduct. The Company has a Code of Conduct that applies to all of our directors, 
executive officers and employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer 
and Vice President and Controller. It is available in the Investors section of our website at 
www.halyardhealth.com. Any amendments to or waivers of our Code of Conduct applicable to 
our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Vice President and Controller will also be 
posted at that location. 

Board and Management Roles in Risk Oversight. The Board is responsible for providing risk 
oversight with respect to our operations. In connection with this oversight, the Board particularly 
focuses on our strategic and operational risks, as well as related risk mitigation. In addition, the 
Board reviews and oversees management’s response to key risks facing the Company. 

The Board’s committees review particular risk areas to assist the Board in its overall risk oversight 
of the Company: 

 � The Audit Committee monitors risks relating to such matters as our internal controls, financial 
statement integrity and fraud risks, and related risk mitigation. In connection with this oversight, 
the Audit Committee receives regular reports from management on risk assessments, the risk 
management process, and issues related to the risks of managing our business. The Audit 
Committee also receives an annual enterprise risk management update, which discusses our 
key financial, strategic, operational and compliance risks. 

 � The Compensation Committee reviews the risk profile of our compensation policies and practices. 
This process includes a review of an assessment of our compensation programs, as described in 
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Analysis of Compensation-Related Risks.” 

Communicating 
with Directors

Other Corporate 
Governance 
Policies and 
Practices
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Corporate Governance Other Corporate Governance Policies and Practices

 � The Compliance Committee monitors risks relating to certain compliance matters, such as 
those described in the section “Compliance Committee,” and recommends appropriate actions 
in response to those risks. 

 � The Governance Committee monitors risks relating to governance matters and recommends 
appropriate actions in response to those risks. 

Complementing the Board’s overall risk oversight, our senior executive team identifies and 
monitors key enterprise-wide and business unit risks, providing the basis for the Board’s risk 
review and oversight process. Our senior management team is supported by management 
members from core business units and from our finance, treasury, information technology, global 
risk management, compliance and legal functions. Management identifies significant risks for 
review and updates our policies for risk management in areas such as hedging, foreign currency 
and country risks, product liability, property and casualty risks, and supplier and customer 
risks. The Board believes the allocation of risk management responsibilities described above 
supplements the Board’s leadership structure by allocating risk areas to an appropriate committee 
for oversight, allows for an orderly escalation of issues as necessary, and helps the Board satisfy 
its risk oversight responsibilities. 

Whistleblower Procedures. The Audit Committee has established procedures for receiving, 
recording and addressing any complaints we receive regarding accounting, internal accounting 
controls or auditing matters, and for the confidential and anonymous submission, by our 
employees or others, of any concerns about our accounting or auditing practices. The Compliance 
Committee has adopted similar procedures for receiving, recording, and addressing any 
complaints we receive regarding compliance matters other than those addressed by the Audit 
Committee. The Audit Committee’s and Compliance Committee’s procedures are available in the 
Investor’s section of our website at www.halyardhealth.com. We also maintain a toll-free Code 
of Conduct telephone line and a website, each allowing our employees and others to voice their 
concerns anonymously.

Management Succession Planning. In conjunction with the Board, the Compensation Committee 
is responsible for periodically reviewing the long-term management development plans and 
succession plans for the Chief Executive Officer and other key officers, as well as the emergency 
succession plan for the Chief Executive Officer and other key officers if any of these officers 
unexpectedly becomes unable to perform his or her duties. 

Disclosure Committee. We have established a Disclosure Committee to assist in fulfilling our 
obligations to maintain disclosure controls and procedures and to coordinate and oversee the 
process of preparing our periodic securities filings with the SEC. This committee is composed of 
members of management and is chaired by our Vice President and Controller. 

No Executive Loans. We do not extend loans to our executive officers or directors and therefore do 
not have any such loans outstanding. 

Charitable Contributions. The Governance Committee has adopted guidelines for the review 
and approval of charitable contributions by the Company to organizations or entities with which 
a director or an executive officer may be affiliated. We will disclose in the Investors section of our 
website at www.halyardhealth.com any contributions made by us to a tax-exempt organization 
under the following circumstances: 

 � An independent director serves as an executive officer of the tax-exempt organization; and 

 � If within the preceding three years, contributions in any single year from the Company to the 
organization exceeded the greater of $1 million or 2 percent of the tax-exempt organization’s 
consolidated gross revenues. 
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Proposal 1.  
Election of Directors 

Our Board is divided into three classes, as required by our Certificate of Incorporation, with one 
class of directors elected each year for a three-year term. As of the date of this proxy statement, 
the Board of Directors consists of nine directors. Three of the directors have terms that expire 
at this year’s Annual Meeting (Class of 2017), three have terms that expire at next year’s 
Annual Meeting (Class of 2018), and three have terms that expire at the 2019 Annual Meeting 
(Class of 2019). 

The three nominees standing for election at the Annual Meeting are being nominated to serve 
for a term to expire at the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (Class of 2020), and until their 
successors have been duly elected and qualified. All nominees have advised us that they will 
serve if elected; however, should any nominee become unable to serve, the Board may reduce the 
number of directors to be elected or select a substitute nominee. If the Board selects a substitute 
nominee, the shares represented by valid proxies will be voted for the substitute nominee, other 
than shares voted “Withhold” with respect to the original nominee. 

Given the independent status of the nominees, if all nominees are elected at the Annual Meeting, 
eight of the nine directors on our Board will be independent directors. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for approving candidates for Board membership. The 
Board has delegated the screening and recruitment process to the Governance Committee, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and the Lead Director. 
The Committee therefore recommends to the Board any new appointments and nominees for 
election as directors at our annual meeting of stockholders. It also recommends nominees to fill 
any vacancies. As provided in our Certificate of Incorporation, the Board may elect a new director 
when a vacancy occurs between annual meetings of stockholders. 

The Committee may receive recommendations for Board candidates from various 
sources, including our directors, management and stockholders. Stockholders may submit 
recommendations for Board candidates to the Chairman of the Governance Committee at Halyard 
Health, Inc., c/o Corporate Secretary, 5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South, Alpharetta, 
GA 30004. Board candidates recommended by stockholders are evaluated using the same 
criteria as candidates recommended by other sources. For details on this process, see “Other 
Information — Stockholder Nominations for Board of Directors.” In addition, the Governance 
Committee may periodically retain a search firm to assist it in identifying and recruiting director 
candidates meeting the criteria specified by the Committee. 

The Committee believes that the criteria for director nominees should foster effective corporate 
governance, support our strategies and businesses, take diversity into account and ensure that 
our directors, as a group, have an overall mix of the attributes needed for an effective Board. The 
criteria should also support the successful recruitment of qualified candidates. 

Qualified candidates for director are those who, in the judgment of the Committee, possess all 
of the personal attributes and a sufficient mix of the experience attributes listed below to ensure 
effective service on the Board. 

Process and 
Criteria for 
Nominating 
Directors
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Proposal 1. Election of Directors Process and Criteria for Nominating Directors

PERSONAL ATTRIBUTES 

Leadership
 � Lead in personal and 
professional lives. 

Ethical Character
 � Possess high standards for 
ethical behavior.

Collaborative
 � Actively participate in 
Board and committee 
matters.

Independence
 � Independent of 
management and 
Company (for non-
management directors 
only).

Ability to communicate
 � Possess good 
interpersonal skills.

Effectiveness
 � Bring a proactive and 
solution-oriented approach.

EXPERIENCE ATTRIBUTES 

ATTRIBUTE FACTORS THAT MAY BE CONSIDERED

Financial acumen
Has good knowledge of business finance 
and financial statements

 � Satisfies the financial literacy requirements  
of the NYSE

 � Qualifies as an audit committee financial 
expert under the rules and regulations of 
the SEC

 � Has an accounting, finance or banking 
background  

General business experience
Possesses experience that will aid in 
judgments concerning business issues

 � Has leadership experience as a chief or 
senior executive officer

 � Has experience setting compensation 

Industry knowledge
Possesses knowledge about our industries

 � Has substantial knowledge of the 
healthcare industry, including with respect to 
caregiving, cost reimbursement or regulatory 
environment

 � Has governance/public company board 
experience

Diversity of background and viewpoint
Brings to the Board an appropriate level of 
diversity

 � Brings a diverse viewpoint that is 
representative of our customer, consumer, 
employee and stockholder base

 � Provides a different perspective (stemming, 
for example, from an academic background 
or experience from outside the healthcare 
industries) 

Special business experience
Possesses global management experience 
and experience with healthcare supplies and 
medical devices

 � Has international experience
 � Has a track record of successful innovation
 � Has supply chain management expertise
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Proposal 1. Election of Directors The Nominees

The Governance Committee has reviewed the background of each of our current directors and 
their service on the Board in light of the personal and experience attributes described above. The 
Committee has determined that each director possesses all of the personal attributes as well as a 
sufficient mix of the experience attributes. 

For details about each director’s specific experience attributes, see “The Nominees” and “Directors 
Continuing in Office” below. 

As noted above, the Governance Committee believes that diversity of backgrounds and 
viewpoints is a key attribute for directors. As a result, the Committee seeks to have a diverse 
Board that is representative of our customer, product user, employee and stockholder base. While 
the Committee carefully considers this diversity when considering nominees for director, the 
Committee has not established a formal policy regarding diversity in identifying director nominees. 

The following three individuals are nominated for election to the Board of Directors for a three-year 
term expiring at the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (Class of 2020): 

Committee 
Review of 
Attributes of  
Current 
Directors

Diversity of 
Directors

The Nominees

Robert E. Abernathy, age 62, has been the Chairman of our Board of Directors and our Chief 
Executive Officer since our spin-off from Kimberly-Clark on October 31, 2014. He served as 
President Global Health Care of Kimberly-Clark from June 2014 until the spin-off. Prior to that 
he served as an Executive Vice President of Kimberly-Clark from November 2013 to June 2014, 
and prior to that served as Kimberly-Clark’s Group President — Europe, Global Nonwovens, 
and Continuous Improvement & Sustainability from 2012 to November 2013. He had overall 
responsibility for Kimberly-Clark’s Health Care business from 1997 to early 2004. His past 
responsibilities at Kimberly-Clark have also included overseeing its businesses in Asia, Latin 
America, Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Africa, as well as operations and major project 
management in North America. He was appointed Vice President — North American Diaper 
Operations in 1992; Managing Director of Kimberly-Clark Australia Pty. Limited in 1994; Group 
President — Developing and Emerging Markets in 2004; and Group President — North Atlantic 
Consumer Products in 2008. Mr. Abernathy was selected to serve as the Chairman of our Board of 
Directors due to his leadership experience as our Chief Executive Officer and as an executive vice 
president of Kimberly-Clark, knowledge of, and experience in, the healthcare industry, international 
experience and governance and public company board experience.

Ronald W. Dollens, age 70, was elected to our Board in October 2014. Mr. Dollens is the Lead 
Director of our Board of Directors, and, as such, serves as the Chairman of the Executive 
Committee. Mr. Dollens retired as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Guidant 
Corporation, a global producer of cardiovascular therapeutic devices and related products, 
in 2005 where he had served since its spin-off from Eli Lilly & Company in 1994. Prior to that 
time, he held various management positions at Eli Lilly & Company from 1972 until 1994. From 
2000 until 2011, he served on the Board of Directors of Kinetic Concepts, Inc., a publicly-traded 
global medical technology company devoted to the discovery, development, manufacturing and 
marketing of innovative, high-technology therapies and products, and served as Chairman from 
2005 until 2011. Mr. Dollens has also served on the Board of Directors of Abiomed, Inc. from 2006 
until October 2010, and Beckman Coulter, Inc. from 1999 until April 2005. Mr. Dollens has been 
selected to serve as the Lead Director of our Board of Directors due to his leadership experience 
as a chief executive officer, knowledge of, and experience in, the healthcare industry, international 
experience and governance and public company board experience.
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Heidi K. Kunz, age 62, was elected to our Board in October 2014. Ms. Kunz is the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. Ms. Kunz retired as the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
of Blue Shield of California, a not-for-profit health plan provider, where she served from 2003 to 
2012. Prior to that time, she served as the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
of Gap, Inc., a multinational clothing and accessories retailer, from 1999 until 2003. Ms. Kunz 
also serves as a director of Agilent Technologies, Inc., a public research development and 
manufacturing company, and as a director of Financial Engines, Inc., an investment advisement 
company. Ms. Kunz has been selected to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to her 
executive leadership experience as a chief financial officer, financial literacy and experience in 
finance and accounting, knowledge of, and experience in, the healthcare industry, international 
experience and governance and public company board experience.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the election of each of the three nominees for 
director named above. 
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Proposal 1. Election of Directors Directors Continuing in Office

Directors 
Continuing in 
Office

The following members of the Board of Directors are continuing in office and have terms expiring 
as indicated below: 

Term Expiring at the 2019 Annual Meeting (Class of 2019):

John P. Byrnes, age 58, was elected to our Board in October 2014. Mr. Byrnes served as the 
Chairman of the Board of Lincare Holdings, Inc. (“Lincare”), a provider of home respiratory care, 
infusion therapy and medical equipment, from March 2000 through March 2015 and as a director of 
Lincare from May 1997 to August 2015. Mr. Byrnes was the Chief Executive Officer of Lincare from 
1997 until March 2015 and served as Lincare’s President from June 1996 until April 2003. Prior to 
becoming Lincare’s President, Mr. Byrnes served in a number of capacities at Lincare over a ten-
year period, including serving as Chief Operating Officer throughout 1996. Mr. Byrnes was a director 
of Kinetic Concepts, Inc., a publicly-traded global medical technology company devoted to the 
discovery, development, manufacturing and marketing of innovative, high-technology therapies and 
products, from January 2003 until February 2011 and of U.S. Renal Care, Inc., a dialysis provider, 
from August 2005 until 2012. Mr. Byrnes serves on the Board of Tenet Healthcare Corporation.  
Mr. Byrnes has been selected to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to his leadership 
experience as a chief executive officer, knowledge of, and experience in, the healthcare industry, 
international experience and governance and public company board experience.

Maria Sainz, age 51, was elected to our Board in February 2015. Ms. Sainz has served as the 
President and Chief Executive Officer of Cardiokinetix, a medical device company pioneering a 
catheter-based treatment for heart failure, since May 2012. She was the President and Chief Executive 
Officer of Concentric Medical, Inc., a developer of minimally invasive products for the treatment of acute 
ischemic stroke, from April 2008 until May 2012. In October 2011, Concentric Medical was acquired by 
Stryker Corporation, a medical technology company, where she was named General Manager of the 
business unit of Stryker Neurovascular. From 2006 to 2008, Ms. Sainz led integration activities following 
the acquisition of Guidant Corporation by Boston Scientific. From February 2003 through July 2006, 
Ms. Sainz served as President of the Cardiac Surgery division of Guidant Corporation. From January 
2001 through February 2003, Ms. Sainz served as Vice President, Global Marketing for the Vascular 
Intervention division of Guidant Corporation. From late 1998 through early 2001, Ms. Sainz served 
as Vice President of the Intermedics Cardiac Rhythm Management business of Guidant Corporation 
in Europe. Ms. Sainz also serves as a director of Orthofix International, N.V, a global medical 
device company, The Spectratenics Corporation, a cardiovascular technology company, and MRI 
Interventions, Inc., a medical device company. Ms. Sainz has been selected to serve as a member of 
our Board of Directors due to her leadership experience as a chief executive officer, knowledge of, and 
experience in, the healthcare industry, international experience, and public company board experience.

Dr. Julie Shimer, age 64, was elected to our Board in October 2014. Dr. Shimer is the Chairman 
of the Compensation Committee. She is currently a private investor and has 30 years of product 
development experience, including many years with major communications companies. From March 
2007 to April 2012 she served as Chief Executive Officer of Welch Allyn, Inc., a manufacturer of 
frontline medical products and solutions, having served on the board of directors beginning in July 
2002. Previously, Dr. Shimer was President and Chief Executive Officer of Vocera Communications, 
Inc., a provider of wireless communications systems, also serving on the board of directors. She 
also has served as general manager at 3Com Corporation and Motorola and has been a product 
development leader at Motorola and AT&T Bell Laboratories. She has also served as the Chairwoman 
of Empire State Development Corp., the State of New York’s economic development organization and 
as an advisor to two private companies, Kitchology, a mobile platform empowering families dealing 
with special diets through the power of technology and community, and CPLANE Networks, a leader 
in end-to-end data center and wide area network service orchestration that enables software-defined 
networking (SDN) and network function virtualization (NFV) services to be launched and managed 
in a single environment. She also serves on the boards of directors of three nonprofit organizations. 
Dr. Shimer also serves as a director of Netgear, Inc., a provider of home and small business network 
solutions, and EarthLink Holdings Corp., a leading managed network and cloud services provider. 
Dr. Shimer has been selected to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to her leadership 
experience as a chief executive officer, knowledge of, and experience in, the healthcare industry, 
international experience and governance and public company board experience.
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Term Expiring at the 2018 Annual Meeting (Class of 2018):

William A. Hawkins, age 62, was elected to our Board of Directors in December 2015. Mr. Hawkins 
is the Chairman of our Compliance Committee. Mr. Hawkins serves as the Lead Director at Immucor, 
Inc., a leading provider of transfusion and transplantation diagnostic products worldwide. He also 
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Immucor from October 2011 to July 2015. From 
2008 to 2011, he served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Medtronic, Inc., a global leader 
in medical technology. He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Medtronic, Inc. from 
2007 to 2008, President and Chief Operating Officer of Medtronic, Inc. from 2004 to 2007, and Senior 
Vice President and President, Vascular of Medtronic, Inc. from 2001 to 2004. From 1998 to 2001 
Mr. Hawkins served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Novoste Corporation, a medical 
equipment company. Prior thereto, Mr. Hawkins served in a variety of senior roles at American Home 
Products, a consumer products company, Johnson & Johnson, a healthcare company, Guidant 
Corporation, a medical products company, and Eli Lilly and Company, a global pharmaceutical 
company. Mr. Hawkins also serves as Chairman of the Board of KeraNetics, LLC, and Bioventus, 
LLC, and as a director of Trice Medical, Inc., and Baebies, Inc., all of which are medical products 
companies. Mr. Hawkins has been a member of the Duke University Board of Trustees since 2011. 
Mr. Hawkins was selected to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to his leadership 
experience as a chief executive officer, knowledge of, and experience in, the healthcare industry, 
international experience and governance and public company board experience.

Gary D. Blackford, age 59, was elected to our Board in October 2014. Mr. Blackford is the Chairman 
of our Governance Committee. From 2002 until February 2015, Mr. Blackford was the Chairman 
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Universal Hospital Services, Inc. (“UHS”), a leading, 
nationwide provider of medical technology outsourcing and services to the health care industry. 
Mr. Blackford was the Chief Executive Officer of Curative Health Services, Inc., a specialty pharmacy 
and health services company, from 2001 to 2002. He was also the Chief Executive Officer of 
ShopforSchool, Inc., an online retailer, from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Blackford has been a director of Wright 
Medical Group, N.V. (WMGI), since 2008, EnteroMedics, Inc., since 2016, PipelineRX, Inc. (private), 
since 2016, and Children’s Hospitals and Clinics of Minnesota since 2017. Mr. Blackford has been 
selected to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to his executive leadership experience 
as a chief executive officer, financial literacy and experience in finance and accounting, international 
experience, and governance and public company board experience.

Patrick J. O’Leary, age 59, was elected to our Board in October 2014. Mr. O’Leary served as 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of SPX Corporation, a global industrial and 
technological services and products company, from December 2004 until August 2012, when he 
retired. Prior to that time, he served as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of SPX Corporation from 
October 1996 to December 2004. Mr. O’Leary has been a director of PulteGroup, Inc. (NYSE:PHM), 
since 2005 and a director and Chairman of SPX Corporation (NYSE: SPXC), since 2015. Mr. O’Leary 
has been selected to serve as a member of our Board of Directors due to his executive leadership 
experience as a chief financial officer, financial literacy and experience in finance and accounting, 
international experience, and governance and public company board experience.
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Directors who are not officers or employees of the Company or any of our subsidiaries, affiliates 
or equity companies are “Outside Directors” for compensation purposes and are compensated for 
their services under our Outside Directors’ Compensation Plan. All independent directors currently 
on our Board are Outside Directors and are compensated under this Plan. 

Our objectives for Outside Director compensation are: 

 � to attract qualified candidates for Board service 

 � to remain competitive with the median compensation paid to outside directors of comparable 
companies 

 � to keep pace with changes in practices in director compensation 

 � to reinforce our practice of encouraging stock ownership by our directors 

In 2015, our Outside Director compensation was established based on the median 
non-management director compensation for our peers. 

The table below shows how we structure Outside Director compensation: 

Board Members Cash retainer: $70,000 annually, paid in four quarterly 
payments at the beginning of each quarter.

Restricted share units: Annual grant with a value of $140,000, 
awarded and valued on the first business day of the year

Lead Director Additional cash compensation of $20,000, paid in four quarterly 
payments at the beginning of each quarter

Committee Chairs Additional cash compensation of $15,000, paid in four quarterly 
payments at the beginning of each quarter

New Outside Directors receive a pro-rated annual retainer and grant of restricted share units 
based on the month when they join the Board. 

We also reimburse Outside Directors for expenses incurred in attending Board or committee 
meetings. 

Restricted share units are not shares of our common stock. Rather, restricted share units 
represent the right to receive a pre-determined number of shares of our common stock within 
90 days following a “restricted period” that begins on the date of grant and expires on the date the 
Outside Director retires from or otherwise terminates service on the Board. In this way, they align 
the director’s interests with the interests of our stockholders. Outside Directors may not dispose of 
the units or use them in a pledge or similar transaction. Outside Directors also receive additional 
restricted share units equivalent in value to the dividends, if any, that would have been paid to 
them if the restricted share units granted to them were shares of our common stock. 

Director 
Compensation
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The following table shows the compensation paid to each Outside Director for his or her service 
in 2016: 

Name
Fees Earned or 

Paid in Cash ($)
Stock 

Awards ($) (1)(2) Total ($)

Gary D. Blackford 85,000 140,000 225,000

John P. Byrnes 70,000 140,000 210,000

Ronald W. Dollens 90,000 140,000 230,000

William A. Hawkins, III 85,000 140,000 225,000

Heidi K. Kunz 85,000 140,000 225,000

Patrick O’Leary 70,000 140,000 210,000

Maria Sainz 70,000 140,000 210,000

Dr. Julie Shimer 85,000 140,000 225,000

(1) Amounts shown reflect the grant date fair value of those grants, determined in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718 — Stock Compensation (“ASC Topic 
718”) for restricted share unit awards granted pursuant to our 2016 Outside Directors’ Compensation Plan. See Note 
10 to our audited consolidated and combined financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
2016 for the assumptions used in valuing these restricted share units. 

(2) Each director received 4,274 restricted share units on January 4, 2016.

Other than the cash retainer and grants of restricted share units previously described, no 
Outside Director received any compensation or perquisites from the Company for services as a 
director in 2016. 

A director who is not an Outside Director does not receive any compensation for services as a 
member of the Board or any committee, but is reimbursed for expenses incurred as a result of the 
services. 

2016 Outside 
Director 
Compensation
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Proposal 2.  
Ratification of Auditors

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is directly responsible for the appointment, 
compensation, retention and oversight of our independent auditors. The Audit Committee is 
also responsible for overseeing the negotiation of the audit fees associated with retaining 
our independent auditors. To assure continuing auditor independence, the Audit Committee 
periodically considers whether a different audit firm should perform our independent audit work. 
Also, in connection with the mandated rotation of the independent auditor’s lead engagement 
partner, the Audit Committee and its chairman are directly involved in the selection of the lead 
engagement partner. 

For 2017, the Audit Committee has selected Deloitte & Touche LLP (along with its member firms 
and affiliates, “Deloitte”) as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit our financial 
statements. In engaging Deloitte for 2017, the Audit Committee utilized a review and selection 
process that included the following: 

 � a review of management’s assessment of the services Deloitte provided in 2016 

 � discussions, in executive session, with the Chief Financial Officer and the Vice President and 
Controller regarding their viewpoints on the selection of the 2017 independent auditors and on 
Deloitte’s performance 

 � discussions, in executive session, with representatives of Deloitte about their possible 
engagement 

 � Audit Committee discussions, in executive session, about the selection of the 2017 independent 
auditors 

 � a review and approval of Deloitte’s proposed estimated fees for 2017 

 � a review and assessment of Deloitte’s independence 

The Audit Committee and the Board believe that the continued retention of Deloitte to serve as 
our independent auditor is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, and they 
recommend that stockholders ratify this selection. 

Representatives of Deloitte are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting with the opportunity 
to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate 
questions. 

Stockholders are not required to ratify the appointment of Deloitte as our independent auditor. 
However, we are submitting the ratification to our stockholders as a matter of good corporate 
practice. If our stockholders fail to ratify the appointment of Deloitte, or even if our stockholders 
do ratify the appointment of Deloitte, the Audit Committee in its discretion may select a different 
independent auditor at any time during the year if it determines that such change would be in the 
best interest of the Company and our stockholders. 

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR ratification of Deloitte’s selection as the Company’s 
auditor for 2017. 
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Proposal 2. Ratification of Auditors Audit Committee Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services

Audit Committee Report 

In accordance with its Charter adopted by the Board, the Audit Committee assists the Board 
in overseeing the quality and integrity of the Company’s accounting, auditing and financial 
reporting practices. 

In discharging its oversight responsibility for the audit process, the Audit Committee 
obtained from the independent registered public accounting firm (the “auditors”) a formal 
written statement describing all relationships between the auditors and the Company that 
might bear on the auditors’ independence, as required by Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) Rule 3526, Communication with Audit Committees Concerning 
Independence, discussed with the auditors any relationships that may impact their objectivity 
and independence and satisfied itself as to the auditors’ independence. The Audit Committee 
also discussed with management, the internal auditors, and the auditors, the quality and 
adequacy of the Company’s internal controls and the internal audit function’s organization, 
responsibilities, budget and staffing. The Audit Committee reviewed with both the auditors and 
the internal auditors their audit plans, audit scope and identification of audit risks. 

The Audit Committee discussed and reviewed with the auditors all communications 
required by the PCAOB’s auditing standards, including those required by PCAOB AS 16, 
“Communication with Audit Committees.” Also, with and without management present, it 
discussed and reviewed the results of the auditors’ examination of our financial statements. 

Management is responsible for preparing the Company’s financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) 
and for establishing and maintaining the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
The auditors have the responsibility for performing an independent audit of the Company’s 
financial statements, and expressing opinions on the conformity of the Company’s financial 
statements with GAAP. The Audit Committee discussed and reviewed the Company’s 
audited financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016, with 
management and the auditors. 

Based on the above-mentioned review and discussions with management and the auditors, 
the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the Company’s audited financial 
statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016, for filing with the SEC. The Audit Committee also has selected and 
recommended to the Company’s stockholders for ratification the reappointment of Deloitte as 
the independent registered public accounting firm for 2017. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Heidi Kunz, Chairman  
Patrick O’Leary  
Gary Blackford 

Our aggregate fees to Deloitte (excluding value added taxes) with respect to the fiscal years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, were as follows: 

2016 ($) 2015 ($)

Audit Fees (1) 3,894,391 3,345,000

Audit-Related Fees (2)  — —

Tax Fees (3)  360,150 629,000

All Other Fees  — —

(1) These amounts represent fees billed or expected to be billed for professional services rendered by Deloitte for the 
audit of the Company’s annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 
2015, reviews of the financial statements included in the Company’s Form 10-Qs, and other services that are normally 
provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in connection with statutory or regulatory filings or 
engagements for each of those fiscal years, including: fees for consolidated financial audits, statutory audits, comfort 
letters, attest services, consents, assistance with and review of SEC filings and other related matters. 

(2) These amounts represent aggregate fees billed or expected to be billed by Deloitte for assurance and related 
services reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements for the fiscal years 
ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, which are not included in the audit fees listed above. 

(3) These amounts represent Deloitte’s aggregate fees for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning for 2016 and 2015.

Using the following procedures, the Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and non-audit services 
provided by Deloitte to the Company: 

 � Before the first face-to-face Audit Committee meeting of the year, our Vice President and 
Controller prepares a detailed memorandum regarding non-audit services to be provided by  
Deloitte during the year. This memorandum includes the services to be provided, the estimated  
cost of these services, reasons why it is appropriate to have Deloitte provide these services,  
and reasons why the requested service is not inconsistent with applicable auditor 
independence rules; 

 � At the first face-to-face Audit Committee meeting each year, our Vice President and Controller 
presents a proposal, including fees, to engage Deloitte for audit and non-audit services; and 

 � Before each subsequent meeting of the Audit Committee, our Vice President and Controller 
prepares an additional memorandum that includes updated information regarding the approved 
services and highlights any new audit and non-audit services to be provided by Deloitte. All 
new non-audit services to be provided are described in individual requests for services. 

The Audit Committee reviews the requests presented in these proposals and memoranda and 
approves all services it finds acceptable. 

To ensure prompt handling of unexpected matters, the Audit Committee has delegated to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee the authority to amend or modify the list of audit and non-audit 
services and fees between meetings, as long as the additional or amended services do not affect 
Deloitte’s independence under applicable rules. Any actions taken under this authority are reported 
to the Audit Committee at its next meeting. 

All Deloitte services and fees in 2016 were pre-approved by the Audit Committee or the Audit 
Committee Chairman. 

Principal 
Accounting 
Firm Fees 

Audit 
Committee 
Approval of 
Audit and  
Non-Audit 
Services 
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Proposal 2. Ratification of Auditors Audit Committee Report

Audit Committee Report 

In accordance with its Charter adopted by the Board, the Audit Committee assists the Board 
in overseeing the quality and integrity of the Company’s accounting, auditing and financial 
reporting practices. 

In discharging its oversight responsibility for the audit process, the Audit Committee 
obtained from the independent registered public accounting firm (the “auditors”) a formal 
written statement describing all relationships between the auditors and the Company that 
might bear on the auditors’ independence, as required by Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) Rule 3526, Communication with Audit Committees Concerning 
Independence, discussed with the auditors any relationships that may impact their objectivity 
and independence and satisfied itself as to the auditors’ independence. The Audit Committee 
also discussed with management, the internal auditors, and the auditors, the quality and 
adequacy of the Company’s internal controls and the internal audit function’s organization, 
responsibilities, budget and staffing. The Audit Committee reviewed with both the auditors and 
the internal auditors their audit plans, audit scope and identification of audit risks. 

The Audit Committee discussed and reviewed with the auditors all communications 
required by the PCAOB’s auditing standards, including those required by PCAOB AS 16, 
“Communication with Audit Committees.” Also, with and without management present, it 
discussed and reviewed the results of the auditors’ examination of our financial statements. 

Management is responsible for preparing the Company’s financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) 
and for establishing and maintaining the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
The auditors have the responsibility for performing an independent audit of the Company’s 
financial statements, and expressing opinions on the conformity of the Company’s financial 
statements with GAAP. The Audit Committee discussed and reviewed the Company’s 
audited financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016, with 
management and the auditors. 

Based on the above-mentioned review and discussions with management and the auditors, 
the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the Company’s audited financial 
statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016, for filing with the SEC. The Audit Committee also has selected and 
recommended to the Company’s stockholders for ratification the reappointment of Deloitte as 
the independent registered public accounting firm for 2017. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Heidi Kunz, Chairman  
Patrick O’Leary  
Gary Blackford 
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Proposal 3. Advisory Vote to 
Approve Named Executive 
Officer Compensation

In the Compensation Discussion and Analysis that follows, we describe in detail our executive 
compensation program, including its objectives, policies and components. Our executive 
compensation program seeks to align the compensation of our executives with the objectives of 
our business plans and strategies. To this end, the Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) 
approved an executive compensation program for 2016 that was designed to achieve the following 
objectives: 

 � Pay-for-Performance. Support a performance-oriented environment that rewards achievement 
of our financial and non-financial goals. 

 � Focus on Long-Term Success. Reward executives for long-term strategic management and 
stockholder value enhancement. 

 � Stockholder Alignment. Align the financial interest of our executives with those of our 
stockholders. 

 � Quality of Talent. Attract and retain executives whose abilities are considered essential to our 
long-term success. 

For a more detailed discussion of how our executive compensation program reflects these 
objectives, including information about the 2016 compensation of our named executive officers, 
see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” below. 

We are asking our stockholders to support our executive compensation as described in this proxy 
statement. This proposal, commonly known as a “say-on-pay” proposal, gives our stockholders 
the opportunity to express their views on our executive compensation. This vote is not intended to 
address any specific item of compensation, but rather the overall compensation of our executives 
and the objectives, policies and practices described in this proxy statement. Accordingly, our 
stockholders are being asked to vote on the following non-binding resolution at the Annual 
Meeting: 

RESOLVED, that the compensation paid to the Company’s named executive officers, as 
disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K, including the Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis, compensation tables and narrative discussion, is hereby approved by the Company’s 
stockholders on an advisory basis. 

The say-on-pay vote is advisory and is therefore not binding on the Company, the Committee or 
our Board. Nonetheless, the Committee and our Board value the opinions of our stockholders. 
Therefore, to the extent there is any significant vote against the executive compensation as 
disclosed in this proxy statement, the Committee and our Board will consider our stockholders’ 
concerns and will evaluate whether any actions are necessary to address those concerns. 

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the approval of named executive officer 
compensation, as disclosed in this proxy statement pursuant to the SEC’s compensation disclosure rules. 
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Compensation Discussion 
and Analysis 

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A”) is intended to provide investors with an 
understanding of the compensation policies and decisions regarding 2016 compensation for our 
named executive officers as well as information on 2017 compensation decisions as of the date of 
this proxy statement. 

For 2016, our named executive officers were: 

Named Executive Officer Title

Robert E. Abernathy Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Steven E. Voskuil Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Rhonda D. Gibby Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer

Christopher M. Lowery Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

John W. Wesley Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer

To assist stockholders in finding important information, this CD&A is organized as follows: 

Compensation Executive Summary 26

Executive Compensation Objectives and Policies 28

Executive Compensation Design Philosophy and Guiding Principles 29

Components of Our Executive Compensation Program 30

Setting Annual Compensation 31

Executive Compensation for 2016 33

Benefits and Other Compensation 38

Executive Compensation for 2017 39

Additional Information about Our Compensation Practices 40 
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Executive Summary

This executive summary provides a brief overview of our key accomplishments in 2016 and our 
key compensation principles and practices. 

2016 HIGHLIGHTS 
Business and Results: 

 � For 2016, net sales of Medical Devices increased 11% compared to 2015, including 7% growth 
attributed to our Corpak acquisition. 

 � 2016 net sales for the Company increased during the year by 1% compared to 2015, including 
Corpak sales that contributed 2% of growth. As described later in this CD&A, 2016 net sales 
on a constant currency basis and adjusted to eliminate sales to Kimberly-Clark and the impact 
of the Corpak acquisition, which we refer to as Adjusted Net Sales, was a performance metric 
under our 2016 incentive compensation programs. 

 � 2016 ended the year with net income of $40 million, compared to a net loss of $426 million in 
2015. The net loss in 2015 was driven by a non-cash goodwill impairment charge relating to our 
S&IP business of $474 million. For 2016, adjusted net income was $93 million, compared to 
adjusted net income of $99 million in the prior year.

 � 2016 diluted earnings per share were $0.85, compared to $9.15 loss per share in 2015. 
Adjusted diluted earnings per share were $1.97, compared to adjusted diluted earnings per 
share of $2.11 in the prior year. As described later in this CD&A, 2016 adjusted diluted earnings 
per share was a performance metric under our 2016 incentive compensation programs.

Adjusted net income and adjusted diluted earnings per share are non-GAAP financial measures. 
A description of these measures and a reconciliation to the most directly comparable GAAP 
financial measures is provided in Appendix A to this 2017 Proxy Statement.

PERFORMANCE-BASED COMPENSATION 
Pay-for-performance is a key objective of our compensation program. Consistent with that 
objective, performance-based compensation constituted a significant portion of our named 
executive officers’ target direct annual compensation for 2016. Also, to further align the financial 
interests of our executives with those of our stockholders, a majority of our executives’ target direct 
annual compensation for 2016 was equity-based. As discussed later in this CD&A, because the 
Company’s and management’s performance was above expectations for the year, management’s 
compensation for 2016 was above target.

Compensation 
Executive 
Summary 
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Executive Summary

COMPENSATION DESIGN PRINCIPLES AND GOVERNANCE PRACTICES 
The design principles for our executive compensation program are intended to protect and 
promote the interests of our stockholders. Below we summarize certain practices we have 
implemented to drive performance and those we have not implemented because we do not believe 
they would serve our stockholders’ long-term interests: 

What We Do What We Don’t Do

  Pay for performance 

  Perform an annual compensation risk 
assessment 

  Utilize an independent compensation 
consultant 

  Require that change-in-control agreements 
contain a double trigger 

  Maintain share ownership guidelines 

  Maintain a clawback policy on incentive 
payments in case of financial restatement 

  Benchmark our compensation practices to 
ensure executive compensation is consistent 
with market 

  Cap short and long-term incentive payments 
at reasonable levels 

  Maintain employment contracts 

  Provide excise tax gross-up on change- 
in-control payments or on perquisites  
(other than on certain relocation benefits) 

  Allow repricing of underwater options 
without stockholder approval 

  Allow current payment of dividends or 
dividend equivalents on unearned  
long-term incentives 

  Provide more than minimal perquisites 

  Allow executive officers to engage in 
hedging or pledging transactions 

COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION OF STOCKHOLDER ADVISORY VOTES ON 
COMPENSATION 
At our 2016 Annual Meeting, our executive compensation program received the support of over 
95 percent of shares represented at the meeting. Our Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) 
has considered the results of this vote and views this outcome as evidence of stockholder support 
of its executive compensation decisions and policies. 

As noted under “Proposal 3. Advisory Vote to Approve Named Executive Officer Compensation,” 
the Committee will continue to review stockholder votes on our executive compensation and 
determine whether to make any changes to the program in light of those vote results.
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Compensation Objectives and Policies

The Committee is responsible for establishing and administering our policies governing the 
compensation of our executive officers. The Committee reviews our executive officer compensation 
objectives and policies annually, including determining whether they continue to support our 
business objectives and are consistent with the Committee’s charter. 

Our 2016 executive officer compensation policies were designed to achieve the following objectives: 

Objective Description Related Policies

Pay for Performance Support a performance-oriented 
environment that rewards achievement 
of our financial and non-financial 
goals.

The majority of executive officer 
pay varies with the levels at which 
annual and long-term performance 
goals are achieved. Performance 
goals are aligned with our strategies 
for sustained growth and profitability.

Focus on Long-Term 
Success

Reward executive officers for long-term 
strategic management and stockholder 
value enhancement.

A significant component of executive 
officer annual target compensation 
is in the form of performance-based 
restricted share units. The number 
of shares actually received on 
payout of these units depends on 
our performance over a three-year 
period.

Stockholder Alignment Align the financial interest of our 
executive officers with those of our 
stockholders.

Equity-based awards make up the 
largest part of executive officer 
annual target compensation. Our 
executive officers also receive 
stock options, which vest over time 
and have value only if our stock 
price rises after the option grants 
are made. We also have other 
policies that link our executive 
officers’ interests with those 
of our stockholders, including 
stock ownership guidelines.

Quality of Talent Attract and retain executive officers 
whose abilities are considered 
essential to our long-term success as 
a global company.

The Committee reviews peer group 
data to ensure our executive officer 
compensation program remains 
competitive so we can continue to 
attract and retain this talent.

Executive 
Compensation 
Objectives and 
Policies 
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Compensation Design Philosophy and Guiding Principles

The Committee has adopted the following design philosophies to guide the manner in which the 
key executive officer compensation objectives and policies are implemented: 

Philosophy Description Guiding Principles

Aligned A majority of executive officer 
compensation should be at risk and 
vary with the performance outcomes 
of stockholders

  50% or more of executive officer 
compensation is incentive based

  Incentive metrics aligned to 
stockholder value

  Performance goals should 
generally reflect year-over-year 
growth to achieve target funding

  No annual grants of time-based 
restricted share units to executive 
officers

  Within business groups, a majority 
of performance is placed on 
business unit performance goals

Compelling The value and structure of executive 
officer compensation provided should 
assist in the attraction of key executive 
talent

  Base salaries at or above the 
50th percentile with variance 
based on skills, experience, and 
performance

  Actual total compensation payout 
opportunities are set well above 
the 50th percentile, allowing for 
meaningful upside payouts for over 
performance

Simple The executive officer compensation 
arrangements should maximize 
simplicity and focus on broad 
performance factors

  Use minimal number of metrics; 
typically one or two

  Strategic metrics (i.e., non-financial)  
are generally avoided

  Special or one-time incentive 
awards are used sparingly

  Perquisites and other special 
executive benefits are generally 
avoided

Sound Executive officer compensation 
policies and structure should support 
strong corporate governance and 
drive an ownership culture among 
executives

  Ownership culture is reinforced 
through use of good governance

  Individual contracts are avoided 
and severance practices should be 
conservative

  Compensation deferral 
opportunities provided consistent 
with market practices

  Encourage innovation while 
deterring excessive risk taking

The Committee retains the right to deviate from the guiding principles set out above whenever it 
determines that to do so is consistent with our overall executive officer compensation objectives 
and is in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Executive 
Compensation 
Design 
Philosophy 
and Guiding 
Principles
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Components of Our Executive Compensation Program

The table below gives an overview of the compensation components used in our 2016 executive 
officer compensation program and matches each with one or more of the objectives described 
above. 

Component Objectives Purpose Target Competitive Position

Base salary Quality of talent Provide annual cash income 
based on:
•	 level of responsibility, 

performance and experience
•	 comparison to market pay 

information

•	 Compared to median of 
peer group

•	 Actual base salary will vary 
based on the individual’s 
performance and 
experience in the position

Annual cash 
incentive

Pay-for-performance

Quality of talent

Motivate and reward 
achievement of annual 
performance goals

•	 Target compared to 
median of peer group

•	 Actual payout will vary 
based on actual corporate 
and business unit or staff 
function performance

Long-term 
equity incentive

Stockholder 
alignment

Focus on long-term 
success

Pay-for-performance 

Quality of talent

Provide an incentive to deliver 
stockholder value and to achieve 
our long-term objectives through 
awards of:
•	 performance-based restricted 

share units
•	 stock option grants
Time-vested restricted share 
units may be granted from time 
to time for recruiting, retention or 
other purposes

•	 Target compared to 
median of peer group

•	 Actual payout of 
performance-based 
restricted share units 
will vary based on actual 
performance

•	 Actual payout will also 
vary based on actual stock 
price performance

Retirement 
benefits

Quality of talent Provide competitive retirement 
plan benefits through 401(k) plan 
and other defined contribution 
plans

•	 Benefits comparable to 
those of peer group

Perquisites Quality of talent Provide minimal market-based 
additional benefits

•	 Determined by the 
Committee

Post-termination 
compensation 
(severance 
and change of 
control)

Quality of talent Encourage attraction and 
retention of executives critical 
to our long-term success and 
competitiveness:
•	 Severance Pay Plan, which 

provides eligible employees, 
including executives, with 
payments and benefits in the 
event of certain involuntary 
terminations

•	 Executive Severance Plan, 
which provides eligible 
executives with payments 
in the event of a qualified 
separation from service 
following a change of control

•	 Determined by the 
Committee

Components  
of Our 
Executive 
Compensation 
Program 
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Setting Annual Compensation

This section describes the processes followed in setting 2016 target annual compensation for our 
executive officers. 

FOCUS ON TOTAL DIRECT ANNUAL COMPENSATION 
In setting 2016 compensation for our executive officers, including our Chief Executive Officer, 
the Committee focused on total direct annual compensation, which consists of annual 
cash compensation (base salary and target annual cash incentive) and long-term equity 
incentive compensation (performance-based restricted share units and stock options). The 
Committee considered annual cash and long-term equity incentive compensation both separately 
and as a package to help ensure that the executive officer compensation objectives are met. 

BENCHMARKING – EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PEER GROUP 
To ensure that our executive officer compensation program is reasonable and competitive in 
the marketplace, our program is compared to programs at other companies. In setting 2016 
compensation for our executive officers, the Committee used the following peer group for the 
Company’s executive compensation: 

2016 Executive Compensation Peer Group

Align Technology, Inc.

CONMED Corporation

The Cooper Companies, Inc.

C.R. Bard, Inc.

DENTSPLY International Inc.

Edwards Lifesciences Corporation

Greatbatch, Inc.

Haemonetics Corporation

Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc.

Hologic, Inc.

Integra Lifesciences Holding 
Corporation

Invacare Corporation

Merit Medical Systems, Inc.

NuVasive, Inc.

ResMed Inc.

Sirona Dental Systems, Inc.

STERIS Corporation

Teleflex Incorporated

Varian Medical Systems, Inc.

West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc.

The peer group is intended to consist of companies with whom we compete for talent. We believe 
that we generally compete for talent with healthcare and medical device companies with annual 
revenues ranging from approximately one-third to three times our annual revenues. 

The Committee (working with its independent compensation consultant) reviews the executive 
compensation peer group annually to ensure that it continues to serve as an appropriate 
comparison for our compensation program. 

PROCESS FOR SETTING TOTAL DIRECT ANNUAL COMPENSATION TARGETS 
In setting the total direct annual compensation of our executive officers, both market data provided 
by the independent compensation consultant and information on the performance of each 
executive officer for prior years is evaluated. To remain competitive in the marketplace for executive 
talent, the target levels for the executive officers’ compensation components, including our Chief 
Executive Officer, are compared to the median of the peer group. 

To reinforce a pay-for-performance culture, targets for individual executive officers may be 
set above or below this median depending on the individual’s performance in prior years 
and experience in the position, as well as any applicable retention concerns. The Committee 
believes that comparing target levels to the median, setting targets as described above, and 
providing incentive compensation opportunities that will enable executives to earn above-target 
compensation if they deliver above-target performance on their performance goals, are consistent 
with the objectives of our executive officer compensation policies. In particular, the Committee 
believes that this approach enables us to attract and retain skilled and talented executive officers 
to guide and lead our businesses and supports a pay-for-performance culture. 

Setting Annual 
Compensation 
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Setting Annual Compensation

When setting annual compensation for our executive officers, the Committee considers each 
compensation component (base salary, annual cash incentive and long-term equity incentive), but 
its decision regarding a particular component does not necessarily impact its decision about other 
components. 

In setting compensation for executive officers that join us from other companies, the Committee 
will evaluate both market data for the position to be filled and the candidate’s compensation history. 
The Committee recognizes that in order to successfully recruit a candidate to leave his or her 
current position and to join the Company, the candidate’s compensation package may have to 
exceed his or her current compensation, which could result in a compensation package above the 
median of our peer group. 

CEO TOTAL DIRECT ANNUAL COMPENSATION 
Mr. Abernathy’s total direct annual compensation is determined in the same manner as the 
direct annual compensation of the other named executive officers. The difference between 
Mr. Abernathy’s compensation and that of the other named executive officers reflects the fact 
that Mr. Abernathy’s responsibilities for management and oversight of a global enterprise are 
significantly greater than those of the other executive officers. As a result, the market pay level for 
Mr. Abernathy is appropriately higher than the market pay for our other executive officer positions. 

TOTAL DIRECT ANNUAL COMPENSATION TARGETS FOR 2016 
Consistent with the focus on total direct annual compensation, the Committee established the 
following 2016 direct annual compensation targets for our named executive officers based on their 
roles and responsibilities: 

Name
2016 Total Direct Annual
Compensation Target ($)

Robert E. Abernathy 4,674,750

Steven E. Voskuil 1,541,965

Rhonda D. Gibby 836,975

Christopher M. Lowery 1,941,932

John W. Wesley 1,130,000

These 2016 direct annual compensation target amounts differ from the amounts set forth in the 
Summary Compensation Table in the following ways: 

•	 Annual cash incentive compensation is included at the target level, while the Summary 
Compensation Table reflects the actual amount earned for 2016; 

•	 Performance-based restricted share units are valued for direct annual compensation target 
purposes as equal to the value of a share of Halyard common stock on the date of grant, while 
the Summary Compensation Table reflects the grant date fair value as determined in accordance 
with ASC Topic 718 and as required by SEC rules (see Note 10 to our audited consolidated and 
combined financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year-ended 
December 31, 2016 for the assumptions used in valuing performance-based restricted share 
units); and 

•	 In setting total direct annual compensation targets, the Committee does not include deferred 
compensation earnings or other compensation, while those amounts are required to be included in 
the Summary Compensation Table.
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Compensation for 2016

To help achieve the objectives discussed above, our executive officer compensation program for 
2016 consisted of fixed and performance-based components, as well as short-term and long-term 
components. 

BASE SALARY 
To attract and retain high caliber executives, we pay our executive officers an annual fixed salary 
that we believe to be competitive in the marketplace. 

Salary ranges and individual salaries for executive officers are reviewed annually, and salary 
adjustments generally are effective on April 1 of each year. In determining individual salaries, 
salary levels for similar positions at our peer group companies are considered, as well as the 
executive officer’s performance and experience in his or her position. This performance evaluation 
is based on how the executive officer performs during the year against results-based objectives 
established at the beginning of the year. In general, an experienced executive officer who is 
performing at a satisfactory level will receive a base salary at or around the median of our peer 
group companies. However, executive officers may be paid above or below the median depending 
on their experience and performance. From time to time, if warranted, executive officers and other 
employees may receive additional salary increases because of promotions, changes in duties and 
responsibilities, retention concerns, or market conditions. 

The following table shows the 2016 base salaries in effect for each named executive officer during 
the year. 

Name
2016 Base Salary

as of January 1 ($)

Robert E. Abernathy 837,375

Steven E. Voskuil 436,450

Rhonda D. Gibby 314,650

Christopher M. Lowery 482,125

John W. Wesley 393,750

ANNUAL CASH INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
Consistent with our pay-for-performance compensation objective, our executive officer 
compensation program includes an annual cash incentive program to motivate and reward 
executives in achieving annual performance objectives established by the Committee. 

2016 Targets 

The target payment amount for annual cash incentives is a percentage of the executive officer’s 
base salary. The range of possible payouts is expressed as a percentage of the target payment 
amount. These ranges are set based on competitive factors. The following table sets forth the 
target payment amounts and range of possible payouts for each named executive officer in 2016:

Executive 
Compensation 
for 2016 
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Compensation for 2016

TARGET PAYMENT AMOUNTS AND RANGE OF POSSIBLE PAYOUTS  
FOR 2016 ANNUAL CASH INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

Name Target Payment Amount
Range of

Potential Payout

Robert E. Abernathy 100% of base salary 0% - 225% of target
payment amount

Steven E. Voskuil 70% of base salary 0% - 225% of target
payment amount

Rhonda D. Gibby 50% of base salary 0% - 225% of target
payment amount

Christopher M. Lowery 85% of base salary 0% - 225% of target
payment amount

John W. Wesley 60% of base salary 0% - 225% of target
payment amount

2016 Performance Goals, Performance Assessments and Payouts 
Payment amounts under the annual cash incentive program are dependent on performance 
measured against goals established at the beginning of the year. These performance goals are 
derived from our financial goals. 

The table below shows the performance goals and weights established for 2016:

ANNUAL CASH INCENTIVE PROGRAM  
2016 PERFORMANCE GOALS AND WEIGHTS

Robert E.
Abernathy

Steven E.
Voskuil

Rhonda D.
Gibby

Christopher M.
Lower

John W.
Wesley

Adjusted Net Sales 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Adjusted EPS 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Cash conversion cycle multiplier multiplier multiplier multiplier multiplier

In February 2017, the Committee determined the extent to which the goals were met in 2016 and 
the resulting payout. Below we explain how the Committee assessed the performance of the goals 
for the year and show the payout that was determined. 
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Compensation for 2016

For 2016, the Committee chose the following as the performance goals for the annual cash 
incentive program: 

2016 Goal Explanation Reason for Use as a Performance Measure

Adjusted Net Sales Net sales for 2016 on a constant 
currency basis, and adjusted to 
eliminate sales to Kimberly-Clark and 
the impact of the Corpak acquisition

A key indicator of overall growth

Adjusted EPS

Diluted net income per share, adjusted 
for spin-off related charges, intangible 
asset amortization, certain litigation 
costs, the impact of the Corpak 
acquisition and the impact of certain tax 
reforms

A key indicator of overall performance

Cash Conversion 
Cycle

Days it takes to convert raw materials 
into finished goods and then collect on 
the sales of those finished goods

A measure of operational efficiency

To determine the payout percentage the Committee used the following process: 

First, it determined an initial payout percentage based on how the Company performed 
against the adjusted net sales and adjusted EPS goals. For 2016, the Committee set these 
goals and the corresponding initial payout percentages at the following levels: 

Range of Performance Levels

Measure (each weighted 50%) Threshold Target Maximum

Adjusted Net Sales (millions) $ 1,402 $ 1,476 $ 1,550

Adjusted EPS $    1.44 $    1.60 $    1.84

Initial Payout Percentage 0% 100% 200%

Second, the Committee applied a multiplier to this initial payout percentage. The multiplier was 
based on how the Company performed against its cash conversion cycle goals. Depending 
on the level of improvement in cash conversion cycle, the multiplier would either decrease or 
increase the initial payout percentage (but the amount of the final payout percentage could not 
exceed a 225 percent cap). 

For 2016, the Committee set the following ranges for this cash conversion cycle multiplier: 

Range of Performance Levels

Threshold Target Maximum

Cash Conversion Cycle 128 days 113 days 103 days

Cash Conversion Cycle Multiplier Applied to Initial 
Payout Percentage 0.8 x 1.0 x 1.2 x

Actual results and actual payout percentages. For 2016, the Committee determined that the 
Company’s adjusted net sales were $1,475 million and its adjusted EPS was $1.97. Based on 
these results, the Committee determined the initial payout percentage to be 149.3 percent of 
target. To this percentage, the Committee then applied a cash conversion cycle multiplier of 112 
percent, which was based on the actual 2016 cash conversion cycle of 107 days. After taking into 
account performance on all of these goals, the Committee determined that the payout percentage 
for achieving the 2016 performance goals should be 167.2 percent of target. 
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Annual Cash Incentive Payouts for 2016 

The following table shows the payout opportunities and the actual payouts of annual cash 
incentives for 2016 for each of our named executive officers. Payouts were based on the payout 
percentages for each element, weighted for each executive as shown above. 

Annual
Incentive Target

Opportunity

Annual
Incentive Maximum

Opportunity

Actual
2016 Annual

Incentive Payout

Name
% of Base 

Salary Amount ($) 
% of 

Target Amount ($) 
% of 

Target Amount ($) 

Robert E. Abernathy 100% 837,375 225% 1,884,094 167.2% 1,400,091

Steven E. Voskuil 70% 305,515 225% 687,409 167.2% 510,821

Rhonda D. Gibby 50% 157,325 225% 353,981 167.2% 263,047

Christopher M. Lowery 85% 409,806 225% 922,064 167.2% 685,196

John W. Wesley 60% 236,250 225% 531,563 167.2% 395,101

The Committee believes that the 2016 annual incentive payout is consistent with the pay-for-
performance objective of our executive officer compensation program. 

LONG-TERM EQUITY INCENTIVE COMPENSATION 
Our executive officers receive annual long-term equity incentive grants as part of their overall 
compensation package. These awards are consistent with the objectives of aligning our senior 
leaders’ interests with the financial interests of our stockholders, focusing on our long-term 
success, supporting our performance-oriented environment and offering competitive compensation 
packages. 

Information regarding long-term equity incentive awards granted to our named executive officers 
can be found under “Summary Compensation,” “Grants of Plan-Based Awards,” and “Discussion of 
Summary Compensation and Plan-Based Awards Tables.” 

2016 Grants 

In determining the 2016 long-term equity incentive award amounts for our named executive 
officers the following factors were considered by the Committee, among others: the specific 
responsibilities and performance of the executive, business performance, retention needs, 
stock price performance and other market factors. Because these awards are part of the annual 
compensation program that compares total direct annual compensation to the median of the 
peer group comparison, grants from prior years were not considered when setting 2016 targets or 
granting awards. 

To determine target values, each executive officer’s total direct annual compensation was 
compared to the median of the peer group, and then individual performance and the other factors 
listed above, as applicable, were considered. Target grant values were then approved by the 
Committee and were divided into two types: 

•	 Performance-based restricted share units (60 percent of the target grant value). 

•	 Stock options (40 percent of the target grant value). 
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The Committee believed this allocation between performance-based restricted share units 
(PRSUs) and stock options supports the pay-for-performance and stockholder alignment 
objectives of our executive officer compensation program. In 2016, the following annual long-term 
equity incentive awards were granted to our named executive officers: 

Name

Target Grant Value  
of Awards

($)
Target PRSUs Awarded

(#)
Stock Options Awarded

(#)

Robert E. Abernathy 3,000,000 65,598 155,844

Steven E. Voskuil 800,000 17,493 41,558

Rhonda D. Gibby 365,000 7,981 18,961

Christopher M. Lowery 1,050,000 22,959 54,545

John W. Wesley 500,000 10,933 25,974

For valuation purposes, each PRSU granted was assigned a value equal to the closing price of 
one share of Company common stock at the end of the day on the date of grant, and each stock 
option was assigned a value equal to the Black-Scholes valuation for that option at the end of the 
day on the date of grant. 

The performance goals of the PRSUs granted in 2016 are based on relative total stockholder 
return and will vest on March 1, 2019. As a result of the Company’s performance in 2016, these 
PRSUs are on pace to vest at 200 percent of target. The PRSUs granted in 2015, which have 
performance targets tied to Adjusted EBITDA, are on pace to vest at zero percent.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
Our named executive officers received contributions from the Company under the Halyard Health, 
Inc. 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) and the Halyard Health, Inc. Supplemental Retirement 401(k) 
Plan (the “Supplemental 401(k) Plan”). The Company does not have a defined benefit pension plan 
in the United States, and none of our named executive officers participate in any Company defined 
benefit pension plans. 

The 401(k) Plan and Supplemental 401(k) Plan are consistent with those maintained by our peer 
group companies and are therefore necessary to remain competitive for recruiting and retaining 
executive talent. The Committee believes that these retirement benefits are important parts of 
our compensation program. For more information, see “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation – 
Overview of Qualified and Non-Qualified Plans” and “Pension Benefits.” 

OTHER COMPENSATION 
We believe the perquisites provided to our executive officers are minimal and well below the 
median of those provided by our peer group. In addition, the Company does not provide tax 
reimbursement or gross-ups for perquisites offered to executive officers, except for certain 
relocation benefits. 

POST-TERMINATION BENEFITS 
We maintain two severance plans that cover our executive officers: the Severance Pay Plan 
and the Executive Severance Plan. An executive officer may not receive severance payments 
under more than one severance plan. Benefits under these plans are payable only if the 
executive’s employment terminates under the conditions specified in the applicable plan. We 
believe that our severance plans are consistent with those maintained by our peer group 
companies and that they are therefore important for attracting and retaining executives 
who are critical to our long-term success and competitiveness. For more information about 
these severance plans and their terms, see “Potential Payments on Termination or Change  
of Control – Severance Benefits.” 

Severance Pay Plan 

Our Severance Pay Plan provides severance benefits to most of our U.S. hourly and salaried 
employees, including our named executive officers, who are involuntarily terminated under the 
circumstances described in the plan. The objective of this plan is to facilitate the employee’s 
transition to his or her next position, and it is not intended to serve as a reward for the employee’s 
past service. 

Executive Severance Plan 

Our Executive Severance Plan provides severance benefits to eligible executives, including our 
named executive officers, in the event of a qualified termination of employment (as defined in 
the plan) in connection with a change of control. For an eligible employee to receive a payment 
under this plan, two things must occur: there must be a change of control of the Company, 
and the executive must have been involuntarily terminated without cause or have resigned for 
good reason (as defined in the plan) within two years of the change of control (often referred to 
as a “double trigger”). The objective of this plan is to encourage the executive to stay with the 
Company in the event of a change of control transaction to ensure a smooth transition. Each 
of our named executive officers has entered into an agreement under the plan that expires on 
October 31, 2017.

Benefits 
and Other 
Compensation 

Compensation Discussion 
and Analysis
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2017 BASE SALARY 

In February 2017, the Committee approved the base salaries for our named executive officers, 
effective April 1, 2017:

2017 Base Salary ($)

Name January to March April to December

Robert E. Abernathy 837,375.00 862,496.00

Steve E. Voskuil 436,449.96 449,544.00

Rhonda D. Gibby 314,649.96 320,943.00

Christopher M. Lowery 482,124.96 496,589.00

John W. Wesley 393,750.00 393,750.00

2017 ANNUAL CASH INCENTIVE TARGETS 
In February 2017, the Committee also established objectives for 2017 annual cash incentives, 
which will be payable in 2018. The target payment amounts and range of possible payouts for 2017 
are as follows: 

Target Payment Amount Possible Payout

Robert E. Abernathy 100% of base salary 0% - 225% of
target payment amount

Steven E. Voskuil 70% of base salary 0% - 225% of
target payment amount

Rhonda D. Gibby 50% of base salary 0% - 225% of
target payment amount

Christopher M. Lowery 85% of base salary 0% - 225% of
target payment amount

John W. Wesley 60% of base salary 0% - 225% of
target payment amount

The Committee sets the appropriate split among the different elements of performance that make 
up our performance goals. The following are the 2017 performance goals and relative weights for 
our named executive officers. 

ANNUAL CASH INCENTIVE PROGRAM  
2017 PERFORMANCE GOALS AND WEIGHTS 

Robert E.
Abernathy

Steven E.
Voskuil

Rhonda D.
Gibby

Christopher M.
Lower

John W.
Wesley

Adjusted Net Sales 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Adjusted EPS 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Cash conversion cycle multiplier multiplier multiplier multiplier multiplier

The performance goals for 2017 are designed to encourage a continued focus on executing our 
long-term business plans and objectives. 

Executive 
Compensation 
for 2017 
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2017 LONG-TERM EQUITY COMPENSATION INCENTIVE AWARDS 
In February 2017, the Committee approved long-term incentive compensation awards for the 
named executive officers consisting of awards of performance-based restricted share units with 
a value equal to 60 percent of the target grant value for long-term equity incentive compensation, 
with the balance of the value to be granted in stock options. The performance objectives for 
the performance-based restricted share unit awards granted in 2017 are based on relative total 
stockholder return for the period January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019. The actual number 
of shares to be received by our named executive officers will range from zero to 200 percent of the 
target levels established by the Committee for each executive, depending on the degree to which 
the performance objectives are met. 

PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS  
GRANTED IN 2017 

Name
Target Amount
of Shares (#)

Maximum Amount
of Shares (#)

Robert E. Abernathy 46,083 92,166

Steven E. Voskuil 12,289 24,578

Rhonda D. Gibby 5,376 10,752

Christopher M. Lowery 15,745 31,490

John W. Wesley 7,680 15,360

The Committee also approved the dollar amount of stock options to be granted to our named 
executive officers in May 2017, along with our annual stock option grants to other employees. The 
number of options they will receive will be based on the fair market value of our stock on the date 
of grant.

Name
Value of Stock Options

to be Granted ($)

Robert E. Abernathy 1,200,000

Steven E. Voskuil   320,000

Rhonda D. Gibby   140,000

Christopher M. Lowery   410,000

John W. Wesley   200,000

As a matter of sound governance, we follow certain practices with respect to our executive officer 
compensation program. We regularly review and evaluate our executive officer compensation 
practices in light of regulatory developments, market standards and other considerations. 

USE OF INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANT 
The Committee engaged Meridian Compensation Partners LLC (“Meridian”) as its independent 
consultant to assist it in determining the appropriate executive officer compensation under our 
compensation policies described above. Consistent with the Committee’s policy in which its 
independent consultant may provide services only to the Committee, Meridian had no other 
business relationship with the Company and received no payments from us other than fees and 
expenses for services to the Committee. See “Corporate Governance—Compensation Committee” 
for information about the use of compensation consultants. 

Additional 
Information 
about Our 
Compensation 
Practices 
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ROLE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER IN COMPENSATION DECISIONS 
Our Chief Executive Officer makes a recommendation to the Committee each year on the 
appropriate target annual compensation for each of the other executive officers. The Committee 
makes the final determination of the target annual compensation for each executive officer, 
including our Chief Executive Officer. While our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Human 
Resources Officer typically attend Committee meetings, none of the other executive officers is 
present during the portion of the Committee’s meetings when compensation for executive officers 
is set. In addition, neither our Chief Executive Officer nor our Chief Human Resources Officer is 
present during the portion of the Committee’s meetings when their compensation is set.

ADJUSTMENT OF FINANCIAL MEASURES FOR ANNUAL AND LONG-TERM 
EQUITY INCENTIVES 
Financial measures for the annual and long-term equity incentive programs are developed 
based on expectations about our planned activities and reasonable assumptions about the 
performance of our key business drivers for the applicable period. From time to time, however, 
discrete items or events may arise that were not contemplated by these plans or assumptions. 
These could include accounting and tax law changes, tax credits from items not within the 
ordinary course of our business operations, restructuring and write-off charges, significant 
acquisitions or dispositions, and significant gains or losses from litigation matters. 

Under the Committee’s exception guidelines regarding our annual and long-term equity incentive 
program measures, the Committee may adjust in the future the calculation of financial measures 
for these incentive programs to eliminate the effect of the types of items or events described above. 
In making these adjustments, the Committee’s policy is to seek to neutralize the impact of the 
unexpected or unplanned items or events, whether positive or negative, in order to provide consistent 
and equitable incentive payments that the Committee believes are reflective of our performance. In 
considering whether to make a particular adjustment under its guidelines, the Committee will consider 
the potential tax impact of the adjustment under Code Section 162(m) and will review whether the 
item or event was one for which management was responsible and accountable, treatment of similar 
items in prior periods, the extent of the item’s or event’s impact on the financial measure, and the 
item’s or event’s characteristics relative to normal and customary business practices. Generally, the 
Committee will apply an adjustment to all compensation that is subject to that financial measure. 

PRICING AND TIMING OF STOCK OPTION GRANTS AND TIMING OF 
PERFORMANCE-BASED EQUITY GRANTS 
Our policies and our Equity Participation Plan require stock options to be granted at no less 
than the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant, except for the options granted 
to replace Kimberly-Clark stock options forfeited as a result of the spin-off (which were priced to 
preserve the intrinsic value of the forfeited Kimberly-Clark options), and the other options granted 
following the spin-off which used a five day variable weighted price. Stock option grants to our 
executive officers are generally made annually at a meeting of the Committee that is scheduled 
at least one year in advance, and the grants are effective on the date of this meeting. However, if 
the meeting occurs during a period when we do not permit insiders to trade Company common 
stock (a “Blackout Period”), the stock option grants will not be effective until the first business day 
following the end of the Blackout Period. Our Blackout Periods end at 11:59 p.m. on the day we 
issue our quarterly earnings press releases. Our executives are not permitted to choose the grant 
date for their individual stock option grants. 

The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer has been delegated the limited authority 
to approve equity grants, including stock options, to employees for recruiting and special employee 
recognition and retention purposes. These grants may not exceed 100,000 shares in calendar year 
2017. The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is not permitted to make any grants 
to any of our executive officers. 
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Annual stock option grants to non-executive officers are effective on the same date as the 
annual stock option grants to our executive officers. Recruiting, special recognition and retention 
stock-based awards are generally made on a pre-determined date following our quarterly 
earnings release. 

The Committee awards performance-based restricted share units to executive officers at its 
February meetings. We believe this practice is consistent with award practices at other public 
companies of comparable size. Our executives are not permitted to choose the grant date for their 
individual restricted share unit awards. 

POLICY ON INCENTIVE COMPENSATION CLAWBACK 
As described in detail above, a significant percentage of our executive officer compensation is 
incentive-based. The determination of the extent to which the incentive objectives are achieved 
is based in part on the Committee’s discretion and in part on our published financial results. The 
Committee has the right to reassess its determination of the performance awards if the financial 
statements on which it relied are restated. The Committee has the right to direct management to 
seek to recover from any executive officer any amounts determined to have been inappropriately 
received by the individual executive officer. In addition, under the Company’s Equity Participation 
Plan, the Committee may require awards with performance goals under the Plan to be subject to 
any policy we may adopt relating to the recovery of that award to the extent it is determined that 
performance goals relating to the awards were not actually achieved. Further, the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 mandates that the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer reimburse us for 
any bonus or other incentive-based or equity-based compensation paid to them in a year following 
the issuance of financial statements that are later required to be restated as a result of misconduct. 
The Committee intends to review and revise the incentive compensation clawback policy once the 
SEC issues final regulations on clawbacks under the Dodd-Frank legislation enacted in 2010.

STOCK OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES 
We strongly believe that the financial interests of our executive officers should be aligned with those 
of our stockholders. Accordingly, the Committee has established the following stock ownership 
guidelines for our executive officers: 

TARGET STOCK OWNERSHIP AMOUNTS 

Position Ownership Level

Chief Executive Officer Five times annual base salary

Other named executive officers Two times annual base salary

Failure to attain these targeted stock ownership levels within five years from date of hire for, or 
appointment to, an eligible position can result in the reduction of part or all of the executive’s annual 
cash incentive (with a corresponding grant of time-vested restricted share units or restricted stock in 
that amount), or a reduction in future long-term equity incentive awards, either of which may continue 
until the ownership guideline is achieved. In determining whether our stock ownership guidelines 
have been met, any restricted stock and time-vested restricted share units held are counted as 
owned, but performance-based restricted share units are excluded until they vest. Executive officer 
stock ownership levels will be reviewed annually for compliance with these guidelines. 
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OTHER POLICES RELATING TO TRANSACTIONS IN COMPANY SECURITIES 
We require all executive officers to pre-clear transactions involving our common stock (and other 
securities related to our common stock) with our Legal Department. 

We do not permit our executive officers to engage in transactions that hedge an executive 
officer’s economic risk of owning shares of our common stock. Additionally, our executives are 
not permitted to pledge shares of our common stock owned by them as collateral for loans or 
other obligations. 

COMMITTEE EXERCISE OF DISCRETION TO REDUCE ANNUAL CASH 
INCENTIVE PAYMENT 
In establishing performance goals and target levels under the annual cash incentive program, the 
Committee is exercising its discretion to limit the amount of the incentive payments, consistent with 
our pay-for-performance objective. In the absence of this exercise of discretion, our chief executive 
officer would be entitled to an award equal to four percent of our earnings before unusual items, 
and each of our other executive officers would be entitled to an award equal to two percent of our 
earnings before unusual items; however, the Committee has exercised its discretion to limit the 
amount of the incentive payments each year of the program, and this potential maximum award 
has never been paid to any of the executive officers.

CORPORATE TAX DEDUCTION FOR EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 
The United States income tax laws generally limit the deductibility of compensation paid to the 
chief executive officer and each of the three highest-paid executive officers (not including the 
chief financial officer) to $1,000,000 per annum. However, an exception exists for performance-
based compensation that meets certain regulatory requirements. Several classes of our executive 
compensation, including option awards and portions of our long-term equity grants to executive 
officers, are designed to meet the requirements for deductibility. Other classes of our executive 
compensation, including portions of the long-term equity grants described above, may be subject 
to the $1,000,000 deductibility limit. 

Although deductibility of compensation is preferred, tax deductibility is not a primary objective 
of our compensation programs. In the Committee’s view, meeting the compensation objectives 
set forth above is more important than the benefit of being able to deduct the compensation for 
tax purposes. 
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Compensation Committee Report 

In accordance with its written charter adopted by the Board, the Compensation Committee 
of the Company has oversight of compensation policies designed to align executive officers’ 
compensation with our overall business strategy, values and management initiatives. 
In discharging its oversight responsibility, the Committee has retained an independent 
compensation consultant to advise the Committee regarding market and general 
compensation trends. 

The Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with 
our management, which has the responsibility for preparing the Compensation Discussion 
and Analysis. Based upon this review and discussion, the Committee recommended to the 
Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement 
and incorporated by reference in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. 

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF  
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Julie Shimer, Chairman  
John Byrnes  
William Hawkins  
Maria Sainz 

Compensation Committee Report
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.

Compensation Committee Report 

In accordance with its written charter adopted by the Board, the Compensation Committee 
of the Company has oversight of compensation policies designed to align executive officers’ 
compensation with our overall business strategy, values and management initiatives. 
In discharging its oversight responsibility, the Committee has retained an independent 
compensation consultant to advise the Committee regarding market and general 
compensation trends. 

The Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with 
our management, which has the responsibility for preparing the Compensation Discussion 
and Analysis. Based upon this review and discussion, the Committee recommended to the 
Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement 
and incorporated by reference in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. 

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF  
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Julie Shimer, Chairman  
John Byrnes  
William Hawkins  
Maria Sainz 

Compensation Committee Report

The Committee has reviewed an assessment of our compensation programs for our employees, 
including our executive officers, to analyze the risks arising from our compensation systems. The 
Committee’s independent consultant assisted with the review of our executive compensation 
programs. 

Based on this assessment, the Committee believes that the design of our compensation programs, 
including our executive compensation program, does not encourage our executives or employees 
to take excessive risks and that the risks arising from these programs are not reasonably likely to 
have a material adverse effect on the Company. 

Several factors contributed to the Committee’s conclusion, including: 

•	 The Committee believes the Company maintains a values-driven, ethics-based culture 
supported by a strong tone at the top. 

•	 The performance targets for annual cash incentive programs are selected to ensure that they 
are reasonably attainable in a manner consistent with the Company’s business plans without 
encouraging executives or employees to take inappropriate risks. 

•	 An analysis by the Committee’s consultant indicated that our compensation programs are 
consistent with those of our peer group. In addition, the analysis noted that target levels for 
direct annual compensation are compared to the median of our peer group. 

•	 The Committee believes the allocation among the components of direct annual compensation 
provides an appropriate balance between annual and long-term incentives, total fixed and 
performance-based compensation. 

•	 Annual cash incentives and long-term performance-based restricted share unit awards under 
our executive compensation program are capped at a reasonable percent of the target award, 
and all other material non-executive cash incentive programs are capped at reasonable levels, 
which the Committee believes protects against disproportionately large incentives. 

•	 The Committee believes the performance measures and the multi-year vesting features of 
the long-term equity incentive compensation component encourage participants to seek 
sustainable growth and value creation. 

•	 The Committee believes inclusion of share-based compensation through the long-term equity 
incentive compensation component encourages appropriate decision-making that is aligned 
with the long-term interests of stockholders. 

•	 Our stock ownership guidelines further align the interests of management and stockholders. 

Analysis of 
Compensation-
Related Risks 
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Summary Compensation 

The following table contains information concerning compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to the Company’s 
named executive officers by the Company for the years 2016 and 2015, and by Kimberly-Clark and the Company for 
the year 2014. Position titles refer to each Company named executive officer’s title at the Company effective  
December 31, 2016. Additional information regarding the items reflected in each column follows the table.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

Name and
Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($)

Stock 
Awards ($)

Option 
Awards ($) 

Non-Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Compensation ($)

Change in 
Pension 

Value and 
Nonqualified 

Deferred 
Compensation 

Earnings ($) 

All Other 
Compensation 

($) Total ($)

Robert E. Abernathy
Chairman of the
Board and Chief 
Executive Officer

2016 837,375 — 2,465,829 1,199,999 1,400,091 — 55,752 5,959,046

2015 837,375 — 1,800,021 2,699,994 161,613 — 96,755 5,595,758

2014 787,500 — 3,700,828 508,375 708,516 1,024,198 161,189 6,890,606

Steven E. Voskuil
Senior Vice President  
and Chief Financial 
Officer

2016 436,450 — 657,562 319,997 510,821 — 45,916 1,970,746

2015 436,450 — 465,732 697,949 58,964 — 75,784 1,734,880

2014 367,496 150,000 1,357,579 808,736 221,078 46,809 44,577 2,996,275

Rhonda D. Gibby
Senior Vice President  
and Chief Human 
Resources Officer

2016 314,650 — 300,006 146,000 263,047 — 19,128 1,042,831

2015 314,650 — 209,980 315,008 30,364 — 22,891 892,892

2014 258,004 100,000 577,224 335,264 123,742 — 25,409 1,419,643

Christopher M. Lowery
Senior Vice President  
and Chief Operating 
Officer

2016 482,125 — 863,029 419,997 685,196 — 31,262 2,481,609

2015 482,125 — 604,232 902,739 79,093 — 42,381 2,110,570

2014 332,667 250,000 1,156,670 535,857 200,185 — 32,815 2,508,193

John W. Wesley
Senior Vice President, 
General Counsel 
and Chief Ethics and 
Compliance Officer

2016 393,750 — 410,971 200,000 395,010 — 24,392 1,424,123

2015 393,750 — 239,991 360,014 45,596 — 35,771 1,075,122

2014 323,750 150,000 521,460 66,157 174,302 — 162,313 1,397,981

Salary. The amounts in this column represent base salary earned during the year. 

Bonus. The amounts in this column represent one-time retention and relocation payments paid in 
2014 in connection with the spin-off from Kimberly-Clark. 

Stock Awards and Option Awards. The amounts in these columns reflect the grant date fair value, 
computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718, of restricted share unit awards and stock options, 
respectively, granted under the Halyard Health, Inc. Equity Participation Plan in 2016, 2015, and 
2014, and under the Kimberly-Clark’s 2001 Equity Participation Plan (the “Kimberly-Clark 2001 
Plan”), as amended by the Kimberly-Clark 2011 Plan (collectively, the “Kimberly-Clark Equity 
Plans”) in 2014. See Note 10 to our audited consolidated and combined financial statements 
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 for the 
assumptions used in valuing and expensing these restricted share units and stock option awards 
in accordance with ASC Topic 718. 

At the time of the spin-off, the named executive officers forfeited a number of unvested 
performance-based restricted share units and stock option awards previously granted by 
Kimberly-Clark. Because the SEC rules require the Summary Compensation Table to reflect the 
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grant date value of all of the awards granted to the named executive officers by Kimberly-Clark 
and the Company, the 2014 values in the stock award and option awards columns (and as a result, 
the total compensation column) of the Summary Compensation Table above are higher than they 
normally would have been. 

For example, the full grant date values of the awards made by Kimberly-Clark in June 2014 are 
included in the 2014 numbers, even with respect to the awards that were forfeited in connection 
with the spin-off, and the full grant date value of the replacement awards made by the Company 
are also included in the 2014 numbers even though those awards replace equity awards granted 
by Kimberly-Clark in 2012, 2013 and 2014. In order to reflect a more normal value for the 
2014 stock and option awards, in the table below we have taken the amounts in the Summary 
Compensation Table and subtracted both (i) the grant date fair value of the forfeited June 2014 
Kimberly-Clark awards that were replaced by new Company awards and (ii) the grant date value of 
Company replacement awards that relate to pre-2014 Kimberly-Clark awards that were forfeited: 

Stock Awards Options

Name

2014 Stock
Awards From

Summary
Compensation

Table ($)

2014
Stock

Awards
Forfeited

at Time of
Spin-
off ($)

Replacement
Awards for

pre-2014
unvested

Stock
Awards ($)

Normalized
2014 Stock
Awards ($)

2014 Option
Awards from

Summary
Compensation

Table ($)

2014
Option

Awards
Forfeited

at Time
of Spin-

off ($)

Replacement
Awards for

pre-2014
unvested

Option
Awards ($)

Normalized
2014

Option
Awards ($)

Robert E. Abernathy 3,700,828 1,424,960 — 2,275,868 508,375 — — 508,375

Steven E. Voskuil 1,357,579 356,297 413,498 587,784 808,736 72,758 373,880 362,098

Rhonda D. Gibby 577,224 127,475 184,968 264,781 335,264 26,036 165,430 143,798

Christopher M. Lowery 1,156,670 217,511 185,195 753,964 535,857 44,421 166,481 324,955

John W. Wesley 521,460 217,511 — 303,949 66,157 — — 66,157

For awards that are subject to performance conditions, the value is based on the probable 
outcome of the conditions at grant date. This value, as well as the value of the awards at the grant 
date assuming the highest level of performance conditions will be achieved and using the grant 
date stock price, is set forth below: 

Name Year
Stock Awards at

Grant Date Value ($)
Stock Awards at Highest Level
of Performance Conditions ($)

Robert E. Abernathy 2016 1,800,009 3,600,018

2015 1,800,021 3,600,042

 2014 1,424,960 2,849,920

Steven E. Voskuil 2016 480,008 960,016

2015 465,732 931,464

 2014 356,297 712,594

Rhonda D. Gibby 2016 218,999 437,998

2015 209,980 419,960

 2014 127,475 254,950

Christopher M. Lowery 2016 629,995 1,259,990

2015 604,232 1,208,464

 2014 217,511 435,022

John W. Wesley 2016 300,002 600,004

2015 239,991 479,982

2014 217,511 435,022

As noted above, the performance awards granted by Kimberly-Clark in 2014 to all of the named 
executive officers were forfeited upon the spin-off from Kimberly-Clark on October 31, 2014. 
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Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation. The amounts in this column are the annual cash 
incentive payments described above in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.” These amounts 
were earned during the years indicated and were paid to the Company’s named executive officers 
in February or March of the following year.

Change In Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings. The amounts in 
this column reflect the aggregate change during the year in actuarial present value of accumulated 
benefits under all Kimberly-Clark defined benefit and actuarial plans (including supplemental 
pension plans). With respect to the supplemental pension plans, amounts have been calculated 
to reflect an approximate 30-year Treasury bond rate to determine the amount of the earlier 
retirement age lump sum benefit in a manner consistent with Kimberly-Clark’s financial statements.

Each of the Company’s named executive officers participated in the Halyard Health Supplemental 
401(k) Plan, a non-qualified defined contribution plan. Earnings on each of these plans are not 
included in the Summary Compensation Table because the earnings were not above-market or 
preferential. See “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation” below for a discussion of this plan and 
each named executive officer’s earnings under the plan in 2016. 

All Other Compensation. All other compensation consists of the following: 

Name Year
Perquisites

($) (1) 
Defined Contribution

Plan Amounts ($) (2)

Tax
Gross-Up

($) (3)
Total

($) 

Robert E. Abernathy 2016 — 55,752 — 55,752

 2015 — 96,755 — 96,755

 2014 34,242 113,287 13,660 161,189

Steven E. Voskuil 2016 10,000 27,543 8,374 45,916

 2015 18,585 41,637 15,562 75,784

 2014 3,413 41,164 — 44,577

Rhonda D. Gibby 2016 — 19,128 — 19,128

 2015 — 22,891 — 22,891

 2014 — 25,409 — 25,409

Christopher M. Lowery 2016 — 31,262 — 31,262

 2015 — 42,381 — 42,381

 2014 — 30,045 2,770 32,815

John W. Wesley 2016 — 24,392 — 24,392

 2015 — 35,771 — 35,771

 2014 107,915 36,641 17,757 162,313

(1) Perquisites. The amount shown for Mr. Voskuil in 2016 reflects a moving allowance paid in connection with his relocation 
to Atlanta, Georgia, to assume his new role with the Company. 

(2) Defined Contribution Plan Amounts. Matching contributions were made under the Kimberly-Clark 401(k) Profit Sharing 
Plan and accrued under the Kimberly-Clark Supplemental 401(k) Plan in 2014, and under the Halyard Health 401(k) 
Plan and Supplemental 401(k) Plan in 2016, 2015 and 2014, for each of the Company’s named executive officers. A 
profit-sharing contribution was also made under the Kimberly-Clark 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan and the Kimberly-Clark 
Supplemental 401(k) Plan in February 2015 with respect to Kimberly-Clark’s performance in 2014 for the Company’s 
named executive officers as follows:
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Name Performance Year Profit Sharing Contribution ($) 

Robert E. Abernathy 2014 45,016 

Steven E. Voskuil 2014 15,820 

Rhonda D. Gibby 2014 9,679 

Christopher M. Lowery 2014 10,841 

John W. Wesley 2014 14,096 

 The profit sharing contribution varied depending on Kimberly-Clark’s performance for the year. The Company does 
not have a profit sharing plan. 

(3) Tax Gross-Ups. The amount shown for Mr. Voskuil reflects tax reimbursement for income attributed to him in 2016 
under the Company’s relocation program in connection with his relocating to the Atlanta, Georgia area to assume his 
new role with the Company. 
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards 
The following table sets forth Company plan-based awards granted to the Company’s named executive officers during 
2016 on a grant-by-grant basis. 

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS IN 2016 

Estimated Future Payouts
Under Non-Equity

Incentive Plan Awards (1)

Estimated Future Payouts
Under Equity Incentive

Plan Awards (2)

Name Grant Type

Date
Committee

Took
Action (3)

Grant
Date (3)

Threshold
($)

Target
($)

Maximum
($)

Threshold
(#)

Target
(#)

Maximum
(#)

All Other
Stock

Awards:
Number 

of Shares 
of Stock 
or Units  

(#)

All Other
Option

Awards:
Number of
Securities

Underlying
Options

(#) (4)

Exercise
or Base
Price of
Option

Awards
($/SH)

Grant
Date Fair
Value of

Stock and
Option

Awards
($) (5)

Robert E. 
Abernathy

Performance-
based RSUs

2/25/2016 3/1/2016 — 65,598 131,196 2,465,829

Time-vested 
stock option

2/25/2016 5/5/2016 155,844 29.48 1,199,999

Annual cash 
incentive 
award

 2/25/2016 — 837,375 1,884,094

Steven E. 
Voskuil

Performance-
based RSUs

2/25/2016 3/1//2016 — 17,493 34,986 657,562

Time-vested 
stock option

2/25/2016 5/5/2016 41,558 29.48 319,997

Annual cash 
incentive 
award

2/25/2016 — 305,515 687,409

Rhonda D. 
Gibby

Performance-
based RSUs

2/25/2016 3/1/2016 — 7,981 15,962 300,006

Time-vested 
stock option

2/25/2016 5/5/2016 18,961 29.48 146,000

Annual cash 
incentive 
award

2/25/2016 — 157,325 353,981

Christopher
M. Lowery

Performance-
based RSUs

2/25/2016 3/1/2016 — 22,959 45,918 863,029

Time-vested 
stock option

2/25/2016 5/5/2016 54,545 29.48 419,997

Annual cash 
incentive 
award

2/25/2016 — 409,806 922,064

John W. 
Wesley

Performance-
based RSUs

2/25/2016 3/1/2016 — 10,933 21,866 410,971

Time-vested 
stock option

2/25/2016 5/5/2016 25,974 29.48 200,000

Annual cash 
incentive award

2/25/2016 — 236,250 531,563

(1) Represents the potential annual performance-based incentive cash payments each named executive officer could earn in 2016. These awards 
were granted under the Executive Officer Achievement Award Program, which is the annual cash incentive program for the Company’s executive 
officers. Actual amounts earned in 2016 were based on the 2016 objectives established by the Company’s Compensation Committee. See 
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis.” At the time of the grant, the incentive payment could range from the threshold amount to the maximum 
amount depending on the extent to which the 2016 objectives were met. The actual amounts paid in 2017 based on the 2016 objectives are set 
forth in the Summary Compensation Table under the column entitled “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.” 

(2) Performance-based restricted share units granted to the named executive officers under the Equity Participation Plan.
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(3) The grant date for each award is the effective date of each grant established by the Company’s Compensation Committee when it took action 
to grant the awards, unless there is a date for such grant in the column entitled “Date Committee Took Action.” If the date on which the Committee 
takes action to approve a grant falls during a blackout period during which insiders are not permitted to buy or sell shares of our common stock, 
then the grant is made effective as of a later date when the blackout period has expired. Our blackout periods typically expire at 11:59 p.m. 
Eastern time on the day after we publicly release the results of the prior quarter. In addition, as described in “Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis,” the Committee approved the dollar value of annual time-vested stock options grants to executive officers at its meetings in February 
but the option award is not effective until May when annual option awards are granted to non-executive officers. 

(4) Time-vested stock options granted to the named executive officers under the Equity Participation Plan on May 5, 2016 with respect to annual 
long-term incentive grants. See “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” for a discussion of our annual long-term annual grants. 

(5) Grant date fair value is determined in accordance with ASC Topic 718. See Note 10 to our audited consolidated and combined financial 
statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 for the assumptions used in valuing and 
expensing these restricted share units and stock option awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718. 

Discussion of Summary Compensation and Plan-Based Awards Tables 
The Company’s executive compensation policies and practices, pursuant to which the compensation set forth in 
the Summary Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2016 table was paid or awarded, are 
described under “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above. 

Outstanding Equity Awards 
The following table sets forth information concerning outstanding Company equity awards for the named executive 
officers as of December 31, 2016. The 2016 awards were part of our annual long-term incentive compensation 
awards. The 2015 awards were part of our annual long-term incentive compensation awards or our 2015 Grow to 
Greatness awards. The March 18, 2015 grants to Messrs. Lowery and Voskuil were made to correct errors in the 
calculation of their annual long-term incentive compensation awards and our 2015 Grow to Greatness awards. The 
2014 option awards were granted to replace Kimberly-Clark options that terminated as a result of the spin-off and 
those replacement options have terms equal to the remaining terms of the Kimberly-Clark options being replaced. 
Additionally, options were also granted in 2014 to the named executive officers which have ten-year terms, ending on 
the option expiration date set forth in the table. Stock awards were granted as indicated in the footnotes to the table. 
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 (1)

Option Awards (2) Stock Awards

Name Grant Date

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options (#) 
Exercisable

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options (#) 
Unexercisable

Option 
Exercise 

Price ($) (3)

Option 
Expiration 

Date

Number 
of Shares 

or Units of 
Stock That 

Have Not 
Vested 

(#) (4)

Market 
Value of 
Shares 

or Units 
of Stock 

That 
Have Not 

Vested 
($) (7)

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Number of 
Unearned 

Shares, 
Units 

or Other 
Rights 

That 
Have Not 

Vested 
(#)

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Market or 
Payout 

Value of 
Unearned 

Shares, 
Units, or 

Other Rights 
That Have 

Not Vested 
($) (10)

Robert E. Abernathy 5/5/2016 — 155,844 29.48 5/5/2026  

3/1/2016 —  65,598 (9) 2,425,814 

5/5/2015 28,846 67,308 45.43 5/5/2025   

3/5/2015 — 85,616 45.47 3/5/2025  

3/5/2015  39,587 (8) 1,463,927

11/7/2014 13,119 8,800 37.88 11/7/2024

11/7/2014 38,302 (5) 1,416,408

11/7/2014 21,779 (6) 805,387  

Steven E. Voskuil 5/5/2016 — 41,558 29.48 5/5/2026  

3/1/2016     17,493 (9) 646,891

5/5/2015 7,452 17,388 45.43 5/5/2025   

3/18/2015 — 713 47.62 3/5/2025  

3/18/2015     330 (8) 12,203

3/5/2015 21,404 45.47 3/5/2025

3/5/2015 9,987 (8) 365,991

11/7/2014 (A) 14,135 — 26.04 5/2/2022   

11/7/2014 (B) 20,443 — 34.24 5/1/2023   

11/7/2014 (C) 19,002 12,699 37.50 6/19/2024   

11/7/2014 3,600 2,400 37.88 11/7/2024    

11/7/2014  9,577 (5) 354,157

11/7/2014 5,940 (6) 219,661

Rhonda D. Gibby 5/5/2016 — 18,961 29.48 5/5/2026

3/1/2016 7,981 (9) 295,137

5/5/2015 3,365 7,853 45.53 5/5/2025

3/5/2015     4,618 (8) 170,774

3/5/2015 — 9,989 45.47 3/5/2025

11/7/2014 (A) 5,378 --- 26.04 5/2/2022

11/7/2014 (B) 10,223 --- 34.24 5/1/2023

11/7/2014 (C) 6,799 4,534 37.50 6/19/2024  

11/7/2014 2,160 1,440 37.88 11/7/2024

11/7/2014  3,426 (5) 126,693

11/7/2014 3,564 (6) 131,797

Christopher M. Lowery 5/5/2016 — 54,545 29.48 5/5/2026

3/1/2016 22,959 (9) 849,024

5/5/2015 9,615 22,436 45.53 5/5/2025   

3/18/2015 — 4,281 47.62 3/5/2025   

3/18/2015     1,979 (8) 73,183

3/5/2015 — 24,258 45.47 3/5/2025   

3/5/2015     11,216 (8) 414,768

11/7/2014 (A) 5,840 --- 26.04 5/2/2022

11/7/2014 (B) 9,713 --- 34.24 5/1/2023

11/7/2014 (C) 11,601 7,735 37.50 6/19/2024

11/7/2014 8,520 5,680 37.88 11/7/2024  

11/7/2014  5,846 (5) 216,185

11/7/2014 14,058 (6) 519,865
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Option Awards (2) Stock Awards

Name Grant Date

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options (#) 
Exercisable

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options (#) 
Unexercisable

Option 
Exercise 

Price ($) (3)

Option 
Expiration 

Date

Number 
of Shares 

or Units of 
Stock That 

Have Not 
Vested 

(#) (4)

Market 
Value of 
Shares 

or Units 
of Stock 

That 
Have Not 

Vested 
($) (7)

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Number of 
Unearned 

Shares, 
Units 

or Other 
Rights 

That 
Have Not 

Vested 
(#)

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Market or 
Payout 

Value of 
Unearned 

Shares, 
Units, or 

Other Rights 
That Have 

Not Vested 
($) (10)

John W. Wesley 5/5/2016 — 25,974 29.48 5/5/2026

3/1/2016 10,933 (9) 404,302

5/5/2015 3,846 8,975 45.53 5/5/2025  

3/5/2015 5,278 (8) 195,180

3/5/2015 — 11,416 45.57 3/5/2025  

11/7/2014 1,320 880 37.88 11/7/2024  

11/7/2014    5,846 (5) 216,185

11/7/2014 2,178 (6) 80,542

(1) The amounts shown reflect outstanding equity awards granted under the Equity Participation Plan. 

(2) Stock options granted under the Equity Participation Plan generally become exercisable in three annual installments of 30 percent,  
30 percent and 40 percent, beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date. Grow to Greatness awards become exercisable in three 
annual installments of 33.3% each, beginning on March 5, 2017. Option awards with a letter (A), (B) or (C) following the grant date were 
replacement options awarded to replace unvested Kimberly-Clark stock options which were forfeited as a result of the spin-off. The vesting 
schedule of those replacement options are the same as the forfeited Kimberly-Clark options, as follows:

Original Grant Year 1st 30 percent vest 2nd 30 percent vest Final 40 percent vest

(A) 2012 Vested in 2013 Vested in 2014 Vested in 2015
(B) 2013 Vested in 2014 Vested in 2015 Vested in 2016
(C) 2014 Vested in 2015 Vested in 2016 4/30/2017

 All options become exercisable for three years upon death or total and permanent disability and for the earlier of five years or the remaining 
term of the options, upon retirement of the officer. In addition, options generally become exercisable upon a termination of employment 
following a change of control, and options granted to the named executive officers are subject to the Executive Severance Plan. See 
“Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control” below. The options may be transferred by the officers to family members or certain 
entities in which family members have interests. 

(3) The option price per share is equal to the closing price per share of the Company’s common stock at grant date, except for replacement 
options which have a grant price intended to preserve the intrinsic value of the forfeited Kimberly-Clark option being replaced, and options 
granted immediately following the spin-off which were priced using a weighted average closing price for the first five trading days following 
the effective date of the spin-off. 

(4) Time-vested restricted share units granted under the Equity Participation Plan. These awards replaced unvested Kimberly-Clark 
performance-based restricted share units that were forfeited as a result of the spin-off. 

(5) These replacement awards vest on April 30, 2017, which is the same date on which the forfeited awards they replaced were scheduled to vest. 

(6) These awards vest on November 7, 2017.

(7) The values shown in this column are based on the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2016 of $36.98 per share. 

(8) These performance-based restricted share units vest on March 5, 2018.

(9) These performance-based restricted share units vest on March 1, 2019.

(10)  The values shown in this column are based on the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2016 of $36.98 per share. The value 
assumes the performance-based restricted share units will payout at target. As of December 31, 2016, the performance-based share units 
issued in March 2015 are on pace to payout at zero percent, and the performance-based share units issued on March 1, 2016 are on pace to 
payout at 200 percent.
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested 
The following table sets forth information concerning Company stock options exercised and stock 
awards vested during 2016 for the Company’s named executive officers. 

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED IN 2016

Option Awards Stock Awards (1)

Name

Number of
Shares Acquired

on Exercise (#)
Value Realized on

Exercise ($) 

Number of
Shares Acquired on

Vesting (#)
Value Realized on

Vesting ($) (2)

Robert E. Abernathy — — — —

Steven E. Voskuil — — 6,123 165,015

Rhonda D. Gibby — — 3,061 82,494

Christopher M. Lowery — — 2,911 78,451

John W. Wesley — — — —

(1) The amounts in this table reflect Company time-based restricted share units that vested during the year. 

(2) The dollar amount reflects the total pre-tax value received by the Company’s named executive officers upon the 
vesting of the Company time-vested restricted share units (number of shares vested times the closing price of the 
Company’s common stock on the vesting date), including cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. It is not the grant date 
fair value disclosed in other locations in this proxy statement. 

Pension Benefits 
The Company does not offer a pension plan in the United States, and none of the Company’s 
executive officers participate in a Company pension plan. 

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation 
The following table sets forth information concerning the Company’s nonqualified defined 
contribution plan and deferred compensation plans for the Company’s named executive officers 
during 2016. 

2016 NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

Name Plan

Company  
Contributions in 

2016 ($) (1)

Aggregate 
Earnings 

in 2016 ($) (2)

Aggregate Balance  
at December 31,  

2016 ($)

Robert E. Abernathy Supplemental 
401(k) Plan

39,852 54,991 706,361

Steven E. Voskuil Supplemental 
401(k) Plan

11,643 19,300 195,652

Rhonda D. Gibby Supplemental 
401(k) Plan

3,228 5,741 66,893

Christopher M. Lowery Supplemental 
401(k) Plan

15,362 5,554 92,558

John W. Wesley Supplemental 
401(k) Plan

8,492 21,500 311,317

(1) Contributions consist of amounts accrued by the Company under the Halyard Supplemental 401(k) Plan. These 
amounts are included in the Summary Compensation Table and represent a portion of the Defined Contribution Plan 
Payments included in All Other Compensation. 

(2) The amounts in this column show the changes in the aggregate account balance for the Company’s named executive 
officers during 2016 that are not attributable to company contributions. Aggregate earnings are not included in the 
Summary Compensation Table because the earnings are not above-market or preferential. 
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Overview of Qualified and Non-Qualified Plans. The following is an overview of the Company’s 
qualified and non-qualified plans offered to our executive officers as of December 31, 2016. 

Halyard 401(k) Plan Halyard Supplemental 401(k) Plan

Purpose To assist employees in saving for 
retirement

To provide benefits to the extent 
necessary to fulfill the intent of the 
Halyard 401(k) Plan without regard to 
the limitations imposed by the Code 
on qualified defined contribution plans

Eligible participants Most employees Salaried employees impacted by 
limitations imposed by the Code on 
the Halyard 401(k) Plan

Is the plan qualified under 
the Code?

Yes No

Can employees make 
contributions?

Yes No

Does the Company make 
contributions or match 
employee contributions?

The Company matches 100% 
of employee contributions, to a 
yearly maximum of 6% of eligible 
compensation.

The Company provides credit to the 
extent the Company’s contributions 
to the Halyard 401(k) Plan are limited 
by the Code

When do account balances 
vest?

Immediately Immediately

How are account balances 
invested?

Account balances are invested 
in certain designated investment 
options selected by the participant

Account balances are credited with 
earnings and losses as if such 
account balances were invested 
in certain designated investment 
options selected by the participant

When are account balances 
distributed?

Distributions of the participant’s 
vested account balance are only 
available after termination of 
employment. Loans, hardship and 
certain other withdrawals are allowed 
prior to termination of employment 
for certain vested amounts under the 
Halyard 401(k) Plan

Distributions of the participant’s 
vested account balance are payable 
after termination of employment.

The Halyard Supplemental 401(k) Plan is not funded and represents a general obligation of the 
Company. 

Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control 
The Company’s executive officers are eligible to receive certain benefits in the event of termination of 
employment, including following a change of control of the Company. This section describes various 
termination scenarios as well as the payments and benefits payable under those scenarios. 

Severance Benefits 

The Company maintains two severance plans that cover its executive officers, depending on the 
circumstances that result in their termination. Those plans include the Executive Severance Plan, 
which is applicable when an executive officer is terminated following a change of control, and 
the Severance Pay Plan, which is applicable in the event of certain other involuntary terminations. 
An executive officer may not receive severance payments under more than one of the plans 
described below.
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Executive Severance Plan. The Company’s Board of Directors determines the eligibility criteria for 
participation in the Executive Severance Plan. The Company has entered into an agreement under 
this plan with each of its named executive officers. The agreements provide that, in the event of 
a “Qualified Termination of Employment” (as described below), the executive officers will each 
receive a cash payment in an amount equal to the sum of: 

 � For the Chief Executive Officer, two times the sum of annual base salary and the average 
of the annual cash incentive award for the prior three years, or such fewer number of years 
for which the Chief Executive Officer had been employed by the Company, and for any other 
executive officer, one and one-half times the sum of annual base salary and the average of the 
annual cash incentive award for the prior three years, or such fewer number of years for which 
the executive officer had been employed by the Company, 

 � If the separation from service occurs after March 31 of a given year, the pro-rated annual cash 
incentive award for that year, assuming that performance was achieved at the target level of 
performance,

 � The value of any outstanding stock option awards, based on the closing price of the Company’s 
common stock at the date of the Qualified Termination of Employment, 

 � The value of the employer match each executive officer would have received if he or she had 
remained employed an additional two years under the Halyard Health 401(k) Plan and Halyard 
Health Supplemental 401(k) Plan, and 

 � For the Chief Executive Officer, two times the value of the amount of COBRA premiums for 
medical and dental coverage and for any other executive officer, one and one-half times the 
value of the amount of COBRA premiums for medical and dental coverage.

A “Qualified Termination of Employment” is a separation from service within two years following a 
change of control of the Company (as defined in the plan) either involuntarily without cause or by 
the participant with good reason (as defined in the plan). In addition, any involuntary separation 
from service without cause within one year before a change of control will also be determined to 
be a Qualified Termination of Employment if it is in connection with, or in anticipation of, a change 
of control. 

The current agreements with each executive officer expire on October 31, 2017, unless extended 
by the Company’s Compensation Committee. 

The Executive Severance Plan provides that the executive officers are not entitled to a tax 
gross-up if they incur an excise tax due to the application of Section 280G of the Code. Instead, 
payments and benefits payable to an executive officer will be reduced to the extent doing so would 
result in the officer retaining a larger after-tax amount, taking into account the income, excise and 
other taxes imposed on the payments and benefits. 

The agreements with the executive officers provide that they will retain in confidence any 
confidential information known to them concerning the Company and the Company’s business so 
long as such information is not publicly disclosed. 

Severance Pay Plan. The Company’s Severance Pay Plan generally provides eligible employees 
(including the Company’s named executive officers) severance payments and benefits in the 
event of certain involuntary terminations. Benefits under the Severance Pay Plan depend on the 
participants’ employee classification. 
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Under the Severance Pay Plan, if an executive officer’s employment was involuntarily terminated, 
he or she would receive: 

 � For the Chief Executive Officer, two times the sum of annual base salary and the average 
annual incentive award for the three prior fiscal years, and for any other executive officer, one 
and one-half times the sum of annual base salary and the average annual incentive award for 
the three prior fiscal years, 

 � If the termination occurs after March 31 of a given year, a pro-rated annual incentive award for 
that year based on actual performance, 

 � Six months of COBRA premiums for medical coverage, and 

 � Six months of outplacement services and three months of participation in Halyard’s employee 
assistance program. 

Severance pay under the Severance Pay Plan will not be paid to any participant who is terminated 
for cause (as defined in the plan), is terminated during a period in which the participant is 
not actively at work for more than 25 weeks (except to the extent otherwise required by law), 
voluntarily quits or retires, dies or is offered a comparable position (as defined in the plan). 

A named executive officer must execute a full and final release of claims against the Company 
within a specified period of time following termination to receive severance benefits under the 
Severance Pay Plan. If the release has been timely executed, severance benefits are payable as 
a lump sum cash payment no later than 60 days following the participant’s termination date. Any 
current year annual incentive award that is payable under the Severance Pay Plan will be paid at 
the same time as it was payable under the Executive Officer Achievement Award Program or the 
Management Achievement Award Program, as applicable, but no later than 60 days following the 
calendar year of the separation from service. 

Retirement, Death and Disability 

Retirement. Retirement is defined as separation from service on or after the age of 60 with five 
years of service, or on or after age 55 with ten years of service. Years of service at Kimberly-Clark 
prior to the spin-off are considered years of service for the definition of retirement. In the event of 
retirement, the Company’s named executive officers are entitled to receive: 

 � Accelerated vesting of unvested stock options, and the options will be exercisable until the 
earlier of five years or the remaining term of the options, 

 � For units outstanding more than six months after the date of grant, performance-based 
restricted share units will be payable based on attainment of the performance goal at the end of 
the performance period, 

 � Time-vested restricted share units will be vested pro rata, based on the number of full months 
of employment during the restricted period prior to the participant’s termination of employment, 
payable within 70 days following the end of the performance period, 

 � Annual incentive award payment under the Executive Officer Achievement Award Program or 
the Management Achievement Award Program, as applicable, as determined by the Halyard 
Compensation Committee in its discretion. 
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Death. In the event of death while an active employee, the following benefits are payable: 

 � Accelerated vesting of unvested stock options, and the options will be exercisable until the 
earlier of three years or the remaining term of the options, 

 � Time-vested restricted share units will be vested pro rata, based on the number of full months 
of employment during the restricted period prior to the participant’s termination of employment, 
payable within 70 days following the end of the restricted period, 

 � For units outstanding more than six months after the date of grant, performance-based 
restricted share units will be vested pro rata, based on attainment of the performance goal at 
the end of the restricted period, payable within 70 days following the end of the performance 
period, 

 � Annual incentive award payment under the Executive Officer Achievement Award Program or 
the Management Achievement Award Program, as applicable, as determined by the Halyard 
Compensation Committee in its discretion, and 

 � Payment of benefits under the Company’s group life insurance plan (which is available to all 
salaried employees in the United States) equal to two times the participant’s annual pay, up to 
$1 million (plus any additional coverage of three, four, five or six times the participant’s annual 
pay, in increments of up to $1 million each, purchased by the participant at group rates). The 
Company provided and employee-purchased benefits cannot exceed $6 million. 

Disability. In the event of a separation from service due to a total and permanent disability, as 
defined in the applicable plan, the Company’s named executive officers are entitled to receive: 

 � Accelerated vesting of unvested stock options, and the options will be exercisable until the 
earlier of three years or the remaining term of the options, 

 � Time-vested restricted share units will be vested pro rata, based on the number of full months 
of employment during the restricted period prior to the participant’s termination of employment, 
payable within 70 days following the end of the performance period, 

 � For units outstanding more than six months after the date of grant, performance-based 
restricted share units will be vested pro rata, based on attainment of the performance goal 
at the end of the restricted period, payable within 70 days following the end of the restricted 
period, 

 � Annual incentive award payment under the Executive Officer Achievement Award Program or 
the Management Achievement Award Program, as applicable, as determined by the Company’s 
Compensation Committee in its discretion, 

 � Continuing coverage under the Company’s group life insurance plan (available to all U.S. 
salaried employees), with no requirement to make monthly contributions toward coverage 
during disability, and 

 � Payment of benefits under the Company’s Long-Term Disability Plan (available to all U.S. 
salaried employees). Long-term disability under the plan would provide income protection of 
monthly base pay, ranging from a minimum monthly benefit of $50 to a maximum monthly 
benefit of $20,000. Benefits are reduced by the amount of any other Company or government-
provided income benefits received (but will not be lower than the minimum monthly benefit). 
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Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control Table 

The following table presents the approximate value of (1) the severance benefits for the named 
executive officers under the Executive Severance Plan had a Qualified Termination of Employment 
under that plan occurred on December 31, 2016; (2) the severance benefits for the Halyard named 
executive officers under the Severance Pay Plan if an involuntary termination had occurred on 
December 31, 2016; (3) the benefits that would have been payable on the death of the Halyard 
named executive officers on December 31, 2016; (4) the benefits that would have been payable on 
the total and permanent disability of the Halyard named executive officers on December 31, 2016; 
and (5) the potential payments to Messrs. Abernathy and Wesley if they had retired on December 
31, 2016. If applicable, amounts in the table were calculated using the closing price of Halyard’s 
common stock on December 31, 2016 of $36.98 per share. 

Because none of the Company’s named executive officers, other than Messrs. Abernathy and 
Wesley, were eligible to retire as of December 31, 2016, potential payments assuming retirement 
on that date are not included for the other named executive officers. The value of benefits that 
already were vested as of December 31, 2016, such as vested but unexercised stock options and 
the balances of the executive officers’ accounts under the Halyard Health 401(k) Plan and the 
Halyard Supplemental 401(k) Plan, are not included in the table. 

The amounts presented in the following table are in addition to amounts each Company named 
executive officer earned or accrued prior to termination, such as previously vested benefits under 
Company’s qualified and non-qualified plans, previously vested options, restricted stock and 
restricted share units and accrued salary and vacation. For information about these previously 
earned and accrued amounts, see the “Summary Compensation Table,” “Outstanding Equity 
Awards,” “Option Exercises and Stock Vested,” and “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation.”
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Name
Cash 

Payment ($)

Equity with 
Accelerated
Vesting ($) 

Additional
Retirement
Benefits ($)

Continued
Benefits

and Other
Amounts ($) Total ($)

Robert E. Abernathy

Qualified Termination of Employment in 
connection with a Change in Control (1) 3,816,262   1,168,830 (2) 100,485 (3) 32,932 (4) 5,118,509

Involuntary termination absent a Change in 
Control (5) 3,816,262       13,646 (6) 3,829,908

Death (7) 2,400,091 (8) 4,222,366 (2)     6,622,457
Disability 1,400,091 (8) 4,222,366 (2)   (9) 5,622,457
Retirement 1,400,091   2,413,144 (2)   (10) 3,813,235

Steven E. Voskuil      
Qualified Termination of Employment in 

connection with a Change in Control (1) 1,279,244   522,392 (2) 52,374 (3) 34,792 (4) 1,888,802
Involuntary termination absent a Change 

in Control (5) 1,279,244       16,768 (6) 1,296,013
Death (7) 1,383,721 (8) 1,098,585 (2)     2,482,306
Disability 510,821 (8) 1,309,292 (2)   (9) 1,820,113

Rhonda D. Gibby              
Qualified Termination of Employment in 

connection with a Change in Control (1) 798,545   229,075 (2) 37,758 (3) 20,490 (4) 1,085,868
Involuntary termination absent a Change  

in Control (5) 798,545       12,243 (6) 810,789
Death (7) 892,347 (8) 494,714 (2)     1,387,061
Disability 263,047 (8) 581,580 (2)   (9) 844,628

Christopher M. Lowery      
Qualified Termination of Employment in 

connection with a Change in Control (1) 1,512,779   499,614 (2) 57,855 (3) 28,966 (4) 2,099,214
Involuntary termination absent a Change  

in Control (5) 1,512,779       14,826 (6) 1,527,605
Death (7) 1,649,396 (8) 1,370,129 (2)     3,019,525
Disability 685,196 (8) 1,460,655 (2)   (9) 2,145,851

John W. Wesley      
Qualified Termination of Employment in 

connection with a Change in Control (1) 1,075,267   194,805 (2) 47,250 (3) 34,792 (4) 1,352,114
Involuntary termination absent a Change 

in Control (5) 1,075,267       16,768 (6) 1,092,035
Death (7) 1,182,510 (8) 621,961 (2)     1,804,471
Disability 395,010 (8) 621,961 (2)   (9) 1,016,971
Retirement 395,010   376,431 (2)   (10) 771,441

(1) Represents amounts payable under the Halyard Health Executive Severance Plan. 
(2) Assumes that performance-based restricted stock units would vest at target level. 
(3) Includes the value of two additional years of employer contributions under the Halyard 401(k) Plan and the Halyard Supplemental 401(k) 

Plan, pursuant to the terms of the Executive Severance Plan.
(4) Includes an amount equal to 24 months of COBRA medical and dental coverage for Mr. Abernathy and 18 months of COBRA medical and 

dental coverage for the other executive officers. 
(5) Benefits payable under the Halyard Health Severance Pay Plan. 
(6) Equals six months of COBRA medical coverage and outplacement services. 
(7) Balances in each executive’s accounts under the Halyard 401(k) Plan and the Halyard Supplemental 401(k) Plan are excluded because the 

payout of those balances upon death is a benefit available to all U.S. salaried employees. 
(8) For death, includes the payment of benefits under the Company’s group life insurance plan (which is available to all U.S. salaried employees). 

For death and disability, assumes the Company Compensation Committee would approve payment under the Executive Officer Achievement 
Award Program for 2016 at the actual award level discussed in Compensation Discussion and Analysis. 

(9) The cost of continued coverage under the Company’s group life insurance plans has been excluded from the table because the benefit is 
available to all U.S. salaried employees and does not discriminate in scope or terms or operation in favor of our named executive officers. 
Also does not include benefits payable under Halyard’s Long-Term Disability Plan (which is available to all U.S. salaried employees), 
the value of which would be dependent on the life span of the Company’s named executive officer and the value of any Company or 
government-provided income benefits received. 

(10) The cost of continued coverage under the Company’s group life insurance plans has been excluded from the table because the benefit is 
available to all U.S. salaried employees and does not discriminate in scope or terms or operation in favor of our named executive officers. 
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The following table shows the number of shares of our common stock beneficially owned as 
of March 3, 2017, by each director and nominee, by each named executive officer, and by all 
directors, nominees and executive officers as a group. 

Name Number of Shares (1)(2)(3)(4)(5) Percent of Class

Robert E. Abernathy 191,827 *

Gary D. Blackford 11,974 *

John P. Byrnes 12,002 *

Ronald W. Dollens 11,974 *

Rhonda D. Gibby 47,938 *

William A. Hawkins, III 14,321 *

Heidi K. Kunz 11,979 *

Christopher M. Lowery 92,146 *

Patrick J. O’Leary 12,024 *

Maria Sainz 11,166 *

Dr. Julie Shimer 11,974 *

Steven E. Voskuil 111,851 *

John W. Wesley 26,050 *

All directors, nominees and executive officers as a group 
(15 persons) 590,254 1.3

* Each director, nominee, and named executive officer owns less than one percent of the outstanding shares of our 
common stock. 

(1) Except as otherwise noted, the directors, nominees and named executive officers, and the directors, nominees and 
executive officers as a group, have sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed. 

(2) A portion of the shares owned by certain executive officers and directors may be held in margin accounts at 
brokerage firms. Under the terms of the margin account agreements, stocks and other assets held in these accounts 
may be pledged to secure margin obligations. As of the date of this proxy statement, none of the executive officers or 
directors has any outstanding margin obligations under any of these accounts. 

(3) Share amounts include unvested restricted share units granted to the following named executive officers under the 
Halyard Health, Inc. Equity Participation Plan as indicated below. Amounts representing performance-based restricted 
share units (“PRSUs”) in the table below represent target levels for the awards. The PRSUs in the table below were 
granted on March 5, 2015, March 1, 2016, and February 28, 2017. 

Name Time-Vested Restricted Share Units (#) Performance-Based Restricted Share Units (#)

Robert E. Abernathy 60,081 105,185

Steven E. Voskuil 21,640 27,720

Rhonda D. Gibby 10,051 12,599
Christopher M. Lowery 22,815 36,154
John W. Wesley 8,024 16,211

(4) For each director who is not an officer or employee of the Company, share amounts include restricted share units 
granted under our Outside Directors’ Compensation Plan. These awards are restricted and may not be transferred, 
pledged or sold until the Outside Director retires from or otherwise terminates service on the Board. 

Security 
Ownership 
Information
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(5) Includes the following shares which could be acquired within 60 days of the date of this proxy statement:
 

Name Number of Shares

Robert E. Abernathy 75,599 

Steve E. Voskuil 32,588 

Rhonda D. Gibby 13,587 

Christopher M. Lowery 33,713 

John W. Wesley 11,638 

All directors, nominees and executive officers as a group (15 persons) 185,766 

Our Corporate Governance Policies provide that, within five years of joining the Board, all Outside 
Directors should own an amount of our common stock or restricted share units at least equal in 
value to five times the annual Board cash compensation. For the purpose of these stock ownership 
guidelines, a director is deemed to own beneficially-owned shares, as well as restricted share units 
(whether or not any applicable restrictions have lapsed). 

The following table sets forth the information, as of December 31, 2016, regarding persons or 
groups known to us to be beneficial owners of more than five percent of our common stock. 

Name and Address of  
Beneficial Owner

Number of Shares of Common  
Stock Beneficially Owned

Percentage of Common  
Stock Outstanding

Blackrock, Inc. (1)

55 East 52nd Street
New York, NY 10022

5,826,524 12.5

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. (2)

100 E. Pratt Street
Baltimore, MD 21202

5,713,972 12.2

The Vanguard Group (3)

100 Vanguard Way
Malvern, PA 19355

4,154,151 8.9

(1) The address, number and percentage of shares of our common stock beneficially owned by Blackrock, Inc. are based 
on the Schedule 13G filed by Blackrock, Inc. with the SEC on January 10, 2017. According to the filing Blackrock, Inc. 
had sole voting power with respect to 5,665,421 shares, sole dispositive power with respect to 5,826,524 shares, and 
did not have shared voting or dispositive power as to any shares.

(2) The address, number and percentage of shares of our common stock beneficially owned by T. Rowe Price Associates, 
Inc. (“Price Associates”) are based on Schedule 13G filed by Price Associates with the SEC on February 7, 2017. 
According to the filing, Price Associates had sole voting power with respect to 1,246,903, sole dispositive power with 
respect to 5,713,972 shares, and did not have shared voting or dispositive power as to any shares.

(3) The address, number and percentage of shares of our common stock beneficially owned by The Vanguard Group are 
based on the Schedule 13G filed by The Vanguard Group with the SEC on February 9, 2017. According to the filing, The 
Vanguard Group had sole voting power with respect to 55,885 shares, sole dispositive power with respect to 4,094,924 
shares, shared voting power with respect to 5,687 shares, and shared dispositive power with respect to 59,227 shares.
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Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers, chief accounting 
officer, and any person beneficially owning more than 10 percent of our common stock to file 
reports with the SEC regarding their ownership of our stock and any changes in ownership. We 
maintain a compliance program to assist our directors, executive officers and chief accounting 
officer in making these filings. Based solely on a review of the Section 16 forms filed with the SEC 
during 2016, and certifications from our executive officers, directors, and chief accounting officer 
that no other reports were required for them, we believe that our executive officers, directors, and 
chief accounting officer and persons who beneficially own more than 10 percent of our common 
stock timely complied with their filing requirements for 2016. 

Policies and Procedures for Review, Approval or Ratification of Related Person Transactions. The 
Board has adopted written procedures for reviewing any transactions between the Company and 
certain “related persons” that involve amounts above certain thresholds. The SEC requires that our 
proxy statement disclose these “related person transactions.” A related person is defined under the 
SEC’s rules and includes our directors, executive officers and five percent stockholders. 

The Board’s procedures provide that: 

 � The Governance Committee is best suited to review, approve and ratify related person 
transactions involving any director, nominee for director, any five percent stockholder, or any of 
their immediate family members or related firms. 

 � The Audit Committee is best suited to review, approve and ratify related person transactions 
involving executive officers (or their immediate family members or related firms), other than any 
executive officer that is also a Board member. 

 � Either Committee may, in its sole discretion, refer its consideration of related person 
transactions to the full Board. 

Each director, director nominee and executive officer is required to promptly provide written 
notification of any material interest that he or she (or an immediate family member) has or will 
have in a transaction with the Company. Based on a review of the transaction, a determination 
will be made as to whether the transaction constitutes a related person transaction under the 
SEC’s rules. As appropriate, the Governance Committee or the Audit Committee will then review 
the terms and substance of the transaction to determine whether to ratify or approve the related 
person transaction. 

In determining whether the transaction is consistent with the Company’s best interest, the 
Governance Committee or the Audit Committee may consider any factors deemed relevant or 
appropriate, including: 

 � Whether the transaction is on terms comparable to those that could be obtained in arm’s-length 
dealings with an unrelated third party; 

 � Whether the transaction constitutes a conflict of interest under our Code of Conduct, the 
nature, size or degree of any conflict, and whether mitigation of the conflict is feasible; 

 � The impact of the transaction on a director’s independence; and 

 � Whether steps have been taken to ensure fairness to the Company. 

2016 Related Person Transactions. Based on SEC rules, the Board’s procedures, and the factors 
listed above there were no related party transactions in 2016. 

Section 16(a) 
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As permitted by SEC rules, multiple stockholders sharing the same address who hold their stock 
through a bank, broker, or other holder of record may receive a single copy of our annual report 
to stockholders and this proxy statement. Upon written or oral request, we will promptly deliver a 
separate copy of the annual report to stockholders and this proxy statement to any stockholder 
at a shared address to which a single copy of each document was delivered. Please contact 
Stockholder Services by mail at 5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South, Alpharetta, GA 30004, 
by telephone at 678-425-9273, or by e-mail at stockholder.services@hyh.com. In addition, any 
stockholder who wants to receive separate copies of the proxy statement or the annual report to 
stockholders in the future, or who is currently receiving multiple copies and would like to receive 
only one copy for his or her household, should contact his or her bank, broker, or other nominee 
record holder. 

Proposals by stockholders for inclusion in our proxy statement and form of proxy pursuant to SEC 
Rule 14a-8 for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2018 should be addressed to the 
Corporate Secretary, Halyard Health, Inc. 5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South, Alpharetta, 
GA 30004, and must be received at this address no later than November 12, 2017; provided that  
if the date of the 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is more than 30 days before or after April 27, 
2018 (the anniversary date of the 2017 Annual Meeting), the deadline will be a reasonable time 
before we begin to print and send our proxy materials to stockholders. Upon receipt of a proposal, 
we will determine whether or not to include the proposal in the proxy statement and form of proxy 
in accordance with applicable law. It is suggested that proposals be forwarded by certified mail, 
return receipt requested. 

Under our By-Laws, a stockholder who wishes to nominate a candidate for election to the Board 
is required to give written notice to our Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices. We 
must receive this notice at least 90 days, but not more than 120 days, before the anniversary of 
the prior year’s Annual Meeting of stockholders (unless the date of the annual meeting is more 
than 30 days before or more than 60 days after the anniversary date, in which case the notice 
must be received at least 90 days, but not more than 120 days, before the annual meeting date; 
or if we give less than 100 days’ notice of the annual meeting date, in which case the notice must 
be received within 10 days after the meeting date is announced). For a special meeting, we must 
receive the written nomination at least 90 days, but not more than 120 days, before the special 
meeting date (unless we give less than 100 days’ notice of the special meeting date, in which case 
the notice must be received within 10 days after the meeting date and the nominees proposed by 
the Board to be elected at the meeting are announced). 

Our By-Laws specify information that the notice must contain about both the nominee and the 
nominating stockholder, including information sufficient to allow the Governance Committee to 
determine if the candidate meets the director nominee criteria described in this proxy statement. 

The notice must contain: 

•	 the name and address of the nominating stockholder; 

•	 information about certain Company stock holdings of the nominating stockholder, including 
shares of stock, derivative holdings, arrangements under which the nominating stockholder 
has a right to vote shares, short interests, dividend rights that are separated or separable 
from the underlying shares, shares held through general or limited partnerships, and certain 
performance-related fees; 
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•	 information about any interests of the nominating stockholder in contracts with the Company, its 
affiliates or principal competitors, as well as any significant equity interests, derivative holdings, 
or short interests in the Company’s principal competitors; 

•	 as to the nominee and the nominating stockholder, any information that would be required to 
be disclosed in connection with a proxy solicitation (and whether a proxy solicitation will be 
conducted); 

•	 information about certain related person transactions, contact and related information regarding 
the nominee; and 

•	 information about any compensation and other understandings during the past three years, and 
other material relationships, between the nominating stockholder and the nominee. 

The notice must be accompanied by each nominee’s written consent to being named in the proxy 
statement and to serving as a director if elected, and a completed and signed questionnaire, 
representation and agreement as required by our By-Laws. 

A nomination that does not comply with the requirements set forth in our By-Laws will not be 
considered for presentation at the annual meeting, but will be considered by the Governance 
Committee for any vacancies arising on the Board between annual meetings in accordance with 
the process described in “Proposal 1. Election of Directors — Process and Criteria for Nominating 
Directors.” 

Our By-Laws require advance notice for any business to be brought by a stockholder before a 
meeting of stockholders. In general, for business to be properly brought before an annual meeting 
by a stockholder (other than in connection with the election of directors; see “Other Information — 
Stockholder Nominations for Board of Directors”, and other than pursuant to SEC Rule 14a-8), 
written notice of the stockholder proposal must be received by our Corporate Secretary at 
our principal executive offices not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the first 
anniversary of the preceding year’s Annual Meeting of stockholders (unless the date of the annual 
meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after the anniversary date, in which 
case the notice must be received at least 90 days, but not more than 120 days, before the annual 
meeting date; or if we give less than 100 days’ notice of the annual meeting date, the notice must 
be received within 10 days after the meeting date is announced). For the 2018 Annual Meeting, our 
Corporate Secretary must receive the proposal, which must conform to the notice requirements in 
our By-Laws, between December 28, 2017 and January 27, 2018. 

Under our By-Laws, the stockholder’s notice to the Corporate Secretary must contain certain 
information regarding the stockholder, including name and address, shares held, derivative 
positions, dividend rights that are separate or separable from the underlying shares and certain 
performance-related fees. Additional information concerning the advance notice requirements 
and a copy of our By-Laws may be obtained from the Corporate Secretary of the Company at the 
address provided below. A copy of our By-Laws is also available in the Investors section of our 
website at www.halyardhealth.com. 

Copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K may be obtained without charge by: writing to Halyard 
Health, Inc., Attn: Corporate Secretary, 5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South, Alpharetta, 
Georgia 30004; accessing the Investors section of our website at www.halyardhealth.com; or 
accessing the SEC’s EDGAR database at www.sec.gov. 
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Our management does not know of any other matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting. 
Should any other matter requiring a vote of the stockholders arise at the meeting, the persons 
named in the proxy will vote the proxies in accordance with their best judgment. 

Halyard Health, Inc. 
5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South 
Alpharetta, Georgia 30004
Telephone (678) 425-9273 
March 10, 2017

By Order of the Board of Directors.

Ross Mansbach 
Vice President — Deputy General Counsel  
Corporate Secretary
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Adjusted net income and adjusted diluted earnings per share are financial measures that have not 
been calculated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S., or GAAP, 
and are therefore referred to as non-GAAP financial measures.

Adjusted net income and adjusted diluted earnings per share exclude the following items, as 
applicable, for the relevant time periods indicated in the following non-GAAP reconciliation to the 
most directly comparable GAAP financial measures:

•	 Transition costs relating to the separation from Kimberly-Clark, which include costs to establish 
Halyard Health’s capabilities as a stand-alone entity. These costs are related primarily to the 
transition services the company received from Kimberly-Clark as well as the rebranding and 
other supply chain transition costs, and are expected to continue through 2017.

•	 Manufacturing and strategic charges and gains associated with exiting one of the disposable 
glove facilities in Thailand and outsourcing the related production.

•	 Certain acquisition and integration charges related to the acquisition of CORPAK Medsystems, Inc.

•	 Impairment charges resulting from the annual impairment testing on the Company’s reporting units.

•	 Expenses associated with certain litigation matters.

•	 Expenses associated with the amortization of intangible assets related to prior business 
acquisitions.

•	 Impact of tax regulatory changes from prior periods.

The reconciliation of adjusted net income and adjusted diluted earnings per share to the most 
directly comparable GAAP measures, which are net income and diluted earnings per share, is 
presented in the following table (in millions, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015

Net income, as reported $ 39.8 $ (426.3)

Diluted EPS, as reported $ 0.85 $ (9.15)

Spin-related transition charges 14.1 32.8

Manufacturing strategic changes — (8.4)

Acquisition-related charges 10.9 —

Goodwill impairment — 474.0

Litigation and legal 12.6 10.6

Intangibles amortization 13.9 16.2

Regulatory tax changes 1.4 —

Net income, as adjusted (non-GAAP) $ 92.7 $ 98.9

Diluted EPS, as adjusted (non-GAAP) $ 1.97 $ 2.11

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 47.0 46.8

Appendix A
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview 

Halyard Health, Inc. is a medical technology company focused on eliminating pain, speeding recovery and preventing infection 
for healthcare providers and patients in more than 100 countries. Headquartered in Alpharetta, Georgia, Halyard is committed to 
addressing some of today’s most important healthcare needs, such as reducing the use of opioids while helping patients move 
from surgery to recovery. The company’s Medical Devices and Surgical and Infection Prevention (“S&IP”) business segments 
develop, manufacture and market clinically superior solutions around the globe. 

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms “Halyard,” “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Halyard Health, Inc. 
and its consolidated subsidiaries. References to “Kimberly-Clark” mean Kimberly-Clark Corporation, a Delaware corporation, 
and its subsidiaries.

On October 31, 2014, Kimberly-Clark distributed all of our capital stock to its shareholders and completed a previously 
announced spin-off of its healthcare division (the “Spin-off”). Halyard was incorporated as a Delaware corporation in February, 
2014 in anticipation of that Spin-off and Kimberly-Clark transferred its Health Care business to us prior to the Spin-off.

On May 2, 2016, Halyard acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Medsystems Holdings, Inc. 
(“Medsystems”) a Delaware corporation. Medsystems owns and conducts its primary business through CORPAK Medsystems 
(“Corpak”). Corpak’s innovative enteral access feeding solutions and portfolio of nasogastric feeding tubes complement our 
existing enteral feeding products and create a complete offering of enteral feeding solutions within our Medical Devices 
segment. See “Business Acquisition” in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report.

The address of our principal executive offices is 5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South, Alpharetta, Georgia 30004, and our 
telephone number is (678) 425-9273. 

Business Segments 

We are organized into two operating segments based on product groupings: Medical Devices and S&IP. These operating 
segments, which are also our reportable global business segments, were determined in accordance with how our executive 
managers develop and execute global strategies to drive growth and profitability. These strategies include global plans for 
branding and product positioning, technology, research and development programs, cost reductions including supply chain 
management, and capacity and capital investments for each of these businesses. Segment management is evaluated on several 
factors, including operating profit. Segment operating profit excludes general corporate costs and expenses not associated with 
the business units including charges related to business acquisition, integration and restructuring, pre-Spin-off transaction, post-
Spin-off transition, certain litigation matters, manufacturing footprint changes in Thailand and goodwill impairment.

The principal sources of revenue in each global business segment are described below:

• Medical Devices provides a portfolio of innovative product offerings focused on pain management, respiratory and
digestive health to improve patient outcomes and reduce the cost of care. These products include post-operative pain
management solutions, minimally invasive interventional (or chronic) pain therapies, closed airway suction systems and
enteral feeding tubes. Products in this segment are sold under the ON-Q, COOLIEF, MICROCUFF, MIC-KEY,
QUIKBLOC, HOMEPUMP, CORTRAK and other brand names.

• S&IP provides healthcare supplies and solutions that target the prevention of healthcare-associated infections. This
segment has recognized brands across its portfolio of product offerings, including sterilization wrap, surgical drapes and
gowns, facial protection, protective apparel and medical exam gloves. This business is also a global leader in education to
prevent healthcare-associated infections. Products in this segment are sold under the HALYARD ONE-STEP, QUICK
CHECK, SMART-FOLD, POWERGUARD, MICROCOOL, AERO BLUE, AERO CHROME, FLUIDSHIELD,
PURPLE NITRILE, LAVENDER, STERLING, BLACK-FIRE and other brand names.

For additional information concerning our business segments, please refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements in 
Item 8 of this report.
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Sales and Marketing 

We direct our primary sales and marketing efforts toward hospitals and other healthcare providers to highlight the unique 
benefits and competitive differentiation of our branded products. We work directly with physicians, nurses, professional 
societies, hospital administrators and healthcare group purchasing organizations (“GPOs”) to collaborate and educate on 
emerging practices and clinical techniques that prevent infection, eliminate pain and speed recovery. These marketing programs 
are delivered directly to healthcare providers. Additionally, we provide marketing programs to our strategic distribution partners 
throughout the world. 

Distribution 

While our products are generally marketed directly to hospitals and other healthcare providers, they are generally sold through 
third-party distribution channels.

Our products are sold principally through independent wholesale distributors, with some sales directly to healthcare facilities 
and other end-user customers. In 2016, approximately 67% of our net sales in North America were made through distributors. 
Globally, sales to Owens & Minor, Inc. (“Owens”), one of our distributors, accounted for approximately 11% of our 2016 net 
sales. No other customer or distributor accounted for more than 10% of our net sales in 2016. Owens purchases both Medical 
Device and S&IP products from us under standard terms and conditions of sale. In certain cases, Owens also competes with us. 
See “Competition.” 

Approximately 44% of our 2016 global net sales, including sales to wholesale distributors, were contracted through four major 
national GPOs, principally relating to our S&IP business. Of these 2016 GPO-contracted sales, 21% were represented by 
contracts that will expire by the end of 2017, 50% were represented by contracts that will expire between 2018 and 2019 and 
29% were represented by contracts that will expire between 2020 and 2021. 

Outside North America, sales are made either directly to end-user customers or through distributors, depending on the market 
served. In 2016, approximately 71% of our net sales outside North America were made through wholesalers or distributors. 

We operate six major distribution centers located in North America, Europe, Australia and Japan that ship multiple finished 
products to multiple customers, as well as eleven other distribution sites that also have customer shipping capabilities, in order 
to optimize cost and customer service requirements. 

No material portion of our business is subject to renegotiation of profits or termination of contracts at the election of the 
government. 

Raw Materials 

We use a wide variety of raw materials and other inputs in our production processes, with polypropylene polymers and nitrile 
constituting our most significant raw material purchases. We base our purchasing decisions on quality assurance, cost 
effectiveness and regulatory requirements, and we work closely with our suppliers to assure continuity of supply while 
maintaining high quality and reliability. We primarily purchase these materials from external suppliers, some of which are 
single-source suppliers. 

Global commodity prices can affect pricing of certain raw materials on which we rely. In our S&IP business, polypropylene 
polymers, which are oil based, and nitrile represent a significant component of our manufacturing costs. In addition, the prices 
of other raw materials we use, such as resins and finishing supplies, often fluctuate in response to changes in oil prices. Prices 
of these commodities can be volatile and have varied significantly in recent years, contributing to fluctuations in our results of 
operations. 

Competition 

While no single company competes with us across the breadth of our offerings, we face significant competition in U.S. and 
international markets. 

Medical Devices 

There are a variety of treatment means and alternative clinical practices to address the management of surgical and chronic pain 
and respiratory and digestive health. We face competition from these alternative treatments, as well as improvements and 
innovations in products and technologies by our competitors. 
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Competitors for our Medical Device products are fragmented by particular product category, and the individual markets for 
these products are highly competitive. Major competitors of our Medical Devices business include, among others: 

• Pain Management: B. Braun Medical Inc., Boston Scientific Corporation, Abbott Laboratories (formerly St. Jude
Medical), Pacira Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Stryker Corporation, Teleflex Incorporated, Ambu A/S and Baxter
International, Inc.

• Respiratory: Becton, Dickinson and Company, Stryker Corporation (formerly Sage Products, LLC) and Smiths
Medical

• Digestive Health: Boston Scientific Corporation, Cook Medical, and Applied Medical Technology, Inc.

In developing and emerging markets, alternative clinical practices and different standards of care are our primary competition. 

While we believe that the number of procedures using our Medical Devices will grow due, in part, to increasing global access 
to healthcare, we expect that our ability to compete with other providers of similar devices will be impacted by rapid 
technological advances, pricing pressures and third-party reimbursement practices. We believe that our key product 
characteristics, such as proven efficacy, reliability and safety, coupled with our core competencies such as our efficient 
manufacturing processes, established distribution network, field sales organization and customer service, are important factors 
that distinguish us from our competitors. 

Surgical and Infection Prevention 

In developed markets, the major competitors of our S&IP business include Cardinal Health, Inc., Medline Industries, Inc., Hogy 
Medical, Multigate Medical Products, Mölnlycke Health Care and HARTMANN Group. In the United States several of our 
distribution partners and GPOs are also competitors or are increasingly seeking to compete with us by direct sourcing their own 
products. In developing and emerging markets, we compete against reusable products, or low usage of infection prevention 
products, due in large part to limited awareness and eduction on infection prevention practices and products. 

The highly competitive environment of the S&IP business requires us to seek out technological innovations and to market our 
products effectively. Our products face competition from other brands that may be less expensive than our products and from 
other companies that may have more resources than we do. Competitive factors include price, alternative clinical practices, 
innovation, quality and reputation. To successfully compete, we must demonstrate that our products offer higher quality, more 
innovative features or better value versus other products. 

Research and Development 

We continuously engage in research and development to commercialize new products and enhance the effectiveness, reliability 
and safety of our existing products. We incurred $41 million in 2016, $32 million in 2015 and $34 million in 2014 on research 
and development to develop new products and processes, and to improve existing products and processes. These expenses 
consisted primarily of salaries and related expenses for personnel, product trial costs, outside laboratory and license fees, the 
costs of laboratory equipment and facilities and asset write-offs for equipment that does not reach success in product 
manufacturing certifications. We intend to increase our research and development efforts as a key strategy for growth. 

In our Medical Devices business, we collaborate with physicians to develop solutions that seek to accelerate the global adoption 
of our therapies and procedures. We are investing to expand the indications for use of our pain products with clinical research 
and studies and associated new product developments. We are expanding our portfolio with customer-preferred product 
enhancements, such as next generation cooled radiofrequency generators and a full line of needles, kits and accessories for 
continuous peripheral nerve block procedures.

In our S&IP business, we are focused on maintaining our market position by providing innovative customer-preferred product 
enhancements, with a particular focus on the operating room. Leveraging customer insights and our vertically integrated 
manufacturing capabilities, we seek to continuously improve our product designs, specifications and features to deliver cost 
efficiencies while improving healthcare worker and patient protection. We continuously refresh our surgical drape and gown 
portfolio to ensure that our products are aligned with the latest medical and procedural standards. Our research team works with 
healthcare providers to develop and design exam glove and apparel portfolios that optimize comfort and fit and provide cost-
effective infection prevention solutions for use throughout the hospital. 
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We are also investing in new categories and solutions that complement our technical expertise and existing intellectual property. 
We are particularly focused on those new categories that we believe will leverage our existing scalable technology platforms as 
well as our sales and marketing expertise. 

Intellectual Property 

Patents, trademarks and other proprietary rights are very important to our business. We also rely upon trade secrets, 
manufacturing know-how, continuing technological innovations and licensing opportunities to maintain and improve our 
competitive position. We review third-party proprietary rights, including patents and patent applications, as available, in an 
effort to develop an effective intellectual property strategy, avoid infringement of third-party proprietary rights, identify 
licensing opportunities and monitor the intellectual property owned by others. 

We hold numerous patents and have numerous patent applications pending in the United States and other countries that relate to 
the technology used in many of our products. In our Medical Devices segment, we utilize patents in our surgical pain 
management, chronic pain management, respiratory health and digestive health products. These patents generally expire 
between 2019 and 2034. None of the patents we license from third parties are material to our Medical Devices segment. In our 
S&IP segment, we utilize patents in our sterilization wrap, surgical drapes and gowns, facial protection, protective apparel and 
medical exam gloves. These patents generally expire between 2017 and 2033. None of the patents we license from third parties 
are material to our S&IP segment.

We may distribute products bearing the Kimberly-Clark brand through April of 2017 under a royalty agreement that we have 
with Kimberly-Clark. Efforts to ensure our customers’ transition from the Kimberly-Clark brand to our Halyard-branded 
products are substantially complete.

We consider the patents and trademarks which we own and the trademarks under which we sell certain of our products, as a 
whole, to be material to our business. However, we do not consider our business to be materially dependent upon any individual 
patent or trademark. 

Regulatory Matters 

The development, manufacture, marketing, sale, promotion and distribution of our products are subject to comprehensive 
government regulation. Government regulation by various national, regional, federal, state and local agencies, both in the 
United States and other countries, addresses (among other matters) inspection of, and controls over, research and laboratory 
procedures, clinical investigations, product approvals and manufacturing, labeling, packaging, marketing and promotion, 
pricing and reimbursement, sampling, distribution, quality control, post-market surveillance, record keeping, storage and 
disposal practices. Our operations are also affected by trade regulations in many countries that limit the import of raw materials 
and finished products and by laws and regulations that seek to prevent corruption and bribery in the marketplace (including the 
U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the United Kingdom Bribery Act, which provide guidance on corporate interactions 
with government officials) and require safeguards for the protection of personal data. In addition, we are subject to laws and 
regulations pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including state and federal anti-kickback and false claims laws in the 
United States. 

Compliance with these laws and regulations is costly and materially affects our business. Among other effects, healthcare 
regulations substantially increase the time, difficulty and costs incurred in obtaining and maintaining approval to market newly 
developed and existing products. For example, in the United States, before we can market a new medical product, or market a 
new use for, claim for or significant modification to an existing product, we generally must first receive clearance under Section 
510(k) of the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (“510(k) clearance”) from the United States Food and Drug Administration 
(“FDA”). In order for us to obtain 510(k) clearance, the FDA must determine that our proposed product is substantially 
equivalent to a device legally on the market, known as a predicate device, with respect to intended use, technology, safety and 
effectiveness. Similarly, most major markets for medical devices outside the United States also require clearance, approval or 
compliance with certain standards before a product can be commercially marketed. For instance, the European Commission, or 
EC, has harmonized national regulations for the control of medical devices through European Medical Device Directives with 
which manufacturers must comply. Under these regulations, manufacturing plants must have received certification of 
conformity from a notified body in order to be able to sell products within the member states of the European Union. 
Certification allows manufacturers to stamp the products of certified plants with a “CE” mark. Products covered by the EC 
regulations that do not bear the CE mark may not be sold or distributed in the European Union. 
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We expect compliance with these regulations to continue to require significant technical expertise and capital investment to 
ensure compliance. Failure to comply can delay the release of a new product or result in regulatory and enforcement actions, 
the seizure or recall of a product, the suspension or revocation of the authority necessary for a product’s production and sale, 
and other civil or criminal sanctions, including fines and penalties. 

In addition to regulatory initiatives, our business can be affected by ongoing studies of the utilization, safety, efficacy, and 
outcomes of healthcare products and their components that are regularly conducted by industry participants, government 
agencies, and others. These studies can call into question the utilization, safety, and efficacy of previously marketed products. In 
some cases, these studies have resulted, and may in the future result, in the discontinuance of, or limitations on, marketing of 
such products domestically or worldwide, and may give rise to claims for damages from persons who believe they have been 
injured as a result of their use. 

Access to healthcare products continues to be a subject of investigation and action by governmental agencies, legislative bodies, 
and private organizations in the United States and other countries. A major focus is cost containment. Efforts to reduce 
healthcare costs are also being made in the private sector, notably by healthcare payors and providers, which have instituted 
various cost reduction and containment measures. We expect insurers and providers to continue attempts to reduce the cost of 
healthcare products. Outside the United States, many countries control the price of healthcare products directly or indirectly, 
through reimbursement, payment, pricing, coverage limitations, or compulsory licensing. Budgetary pressures in the United 
States and in other countries may also heighten the scope and severity of pricing pressures on our products for the foreseeable 
future. 

We expect debate to continue during the next several years at all government levels worldwide over the marketing, availability, 
method of delivery, and payment for healthcare products and services. We believe that future legislation and regulation in the 
markets we serve could affect access to healthcare products and services, increase rebates, reduce prices or the rate of price 
increases for healthcare products and services, change healthcare delivery systems, create new fees and obligations, or require 
additional reporting and disclosure. It is not possible to predict the extent to which we or the healthcare industry in general 
might be affected by the matters discussed above. 

Since we market our products worldwide, certain products of a local nature and variations of product lines must also meet other 
local regulatory requirements. Certain additional risks are inherent in conducting business outside the United States, including 
price and currency exchange controls, changes in currency exchange rates, limitations on participation in local enterprises, 
expropriation, nationalization, and other governmental action. 

Demand for many of our existing and new medical products is, and will continue to be, affected by the extent to which 
government healthcare programs and private health insurers reimburse our customers for patients’ medical expenses in the 
countries where we do business. Statutory and regulatory requirements for Medicaid, Medicare, and other government 
healthcare programs govern provider reimbursement levels. From time to time, legislative changes are made to government 
healthcare programs that impact our business, and the federal and/or state governments may continue to enact measures in the 
future aimed at containing or reducing reimbursement levels for medical expenses paid for in whole or in part with government 
funds. We cannot predict the nature of such measures or their impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition 
and cash flows. Any reduction in the amount of reimbursements received by our customers could harm our business by 
reducing their selection of our products and the prices they are willing to pay. 

Employee and Labor Relations 

In our worldwide operations, we had approximately 12,000 employees as of December 31, 2016. We believe that we have good 
relations with our employees. 

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters 

Our operations are subject to federal, state, provincial and local laws, regulations and ordinances relating to various 
environmental, health and safety matters. Our operations are in compliance with, or we are taking actions designed to ensure 
compliance with, these laws, regulations and ordinances. However, the nature of our operations exposes us to the risk of claims 
concerning non-compliance with environmental, health and safety laws or standards, and there can be no assurance that 
material costs or liabilities will not be incurred in connection with those claims. We are not currently named as a party in any 
judicial or administrative proceeding relating to environmental, health and safety matters. 

While we have incurred in the past several years, and will continue to incur, capital and operating expenditures in order to 
comply with environmental, health and safety laws, regulations and ordinances, we believe that our future cost of compliance 
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with environmental, health and safety laws, regulations and ordinances, and our exposure to liability for environmental, health 
and safety claims will not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash 
flows. However, future events, such as changes in existing laws and regulations, or contamination of sites owned, operated or 
used for waste disposal by us (including currently unknown contamination and contamination caused by prior owners and 
operators of such sites or other waste generators) may give rise to additional costs which could have a material adverse effect 
on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. 

Available Information

We make financial information, news releases and other information available on our corporate website at 
www.halyardhealth.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and 
any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
are available free of charge on our corporate website as soon as reasonably practicable after we file these reports and 
amendments with, or furnish them to, the SEC. The information contained on or connected to our website is not incorporated by 
reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K and should not be considered part of this or any other report filed with the 
SEC. Stockholders may also contact Stockholder Services, 5405 Windward Parkway, Suite 100 South, Alpharetta, Georgia 
30004 or call (678) 425-9273 to obtain a hard copy of these reports without charge.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business faces many risks and uncertainties that we cannot control. Any of the risks discussed below, as well as factors 
described in other places in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, or in our other filings with the SEC, could adversely affect our 
business, consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, these items could cause our future 
results to differ from those in any of our forward-looking statements. These risks are not the only ones we face. Other risks that 
we do not presently know about or that we presently believe are not material could also adversely affect us.

Risks Related to our Business and Industry

We face strong competition. Our failure to compete effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Our industry is highly competitive. We compete with many domestic and foreign companies ranging from small start-up 
enterprises that might sell only a single or limited number of competitive products or compete only in a specific market 
segment, to companies that are larger and more established than us, have a broad range of competitive products, participate in 
numerous markets and have access to significantly greater financial and marketing resources than we do. We also face 
competition from distributors who are expanding their private label portfolios and aggressively marketing their own product 
lines. For example, our products are distributed by Cardinal Health, Inc. and Medline Industries, Inc., each of which sells its 
own private label products and solutions that compete with some of our offerings. Competitive factors include price, alternative 
clinical practices, innovation, quality and reputation. Our failure to compete effectively could have a material adverse effect on 
our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We may not be successful in developing, acquiring or marketing competitive products and technologies. 

Our industry is characterized by extensive research and development and rapid technological advances. The future success of 
our business will depend, in part, on our ability to design, acquire and manufacture new competitive products and enhance 
existing products. Accordingly, we commit substantial time, funds and other resources to new product development, including 
research and development, acquisitions, licenses, clinical trials and physician education. We make these substantial 
expenditures without any assurance that our products will obtain regulatory clearance or reimbursement approval, acquire 
adequate intellectual property protection or receive market acceptance. Development by our competitors of improved products, 
technologies or enhancements may make our products, or those we develop, license or acquire in the future, obsolete or less 
competitive which could negatively impact our net sales. Our failure to successfully develop, acquire or market competitive 
new products or enhance existing products could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. 

We are exposed to price fluctuations of key commodities, which may negatively impact our results of operations. 

We rely on product inputs, such as polypropylene and nitrile, as well as other commodities, in the manufacture of our products. 
Prices of oil and gas affect our distribution and transportation costs. Prices of these commodities are volatile and have 
fluctuated significantly in recent years, which has contributed to, and in the future may continue to contribute to, fluctuations in 
our results of operations. Our ability to hedge commodity price volatility is limited. Furthermore, due to competitive dynamics, 



7

the cost containment efforts of our customers and third-party payors, and contractual limitations, particularly with respect to 
products we sell under group purchasing agreements, which generally set pricing for a three-year term, we may be unable to 
pass along commodity-driven cost increases through higher prices. If we cannot fully offset cost increases through other cost 
reductions, or recover these costs through price increases or surcharges, we could experience lower margins and profitability 
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

An inability to obtain key components, raw materials or manufactured products from third parties may have a material 
adverse effect on our business. 

We depend on the availability of various components, raw materials and manufactured products supplied by others for our 
operations. If the capabilities of our suppliers and third-party manufacturers are limited or stopped, due to quality, regulatory or 
other reasons, it could negatively impact our ability to manufacture or deliver our products and could expose us to regulatory 
actions. Further, for quality assurance or cost effectiveness, we purchase from sole suppliers certain components and raw 
materials such as polymers used in our S&IP products, latex bladders for our pain pumps, and nitrile for our medical exam 
gloves. Although there are other sources in the market place for these items, we may not be able to quickly establish additional 
or replacement sources for certain components or materials due to regulations and requirements of the FDA and other 
regulatory authorities regarding the manufacture of our products. The loss of any sole supplier or any sustained supply 
interruption that affects our ability to manufacture or deliver our products in a timely or cost effective manner could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

An interruption in our ability to manufacture products may have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Many of our key products are manufactured at single locations, with limited alternate facilities, including in certain cases by 
third-party manufacturers. If one or more of these facilities experience damage, or if these manufacturing capabilities are 
otherwise limited or stopped due to quality, regulatory or other reasons, including natural disasters, prolonged power or 
equipment failures or labor dispute, it may not be possible to timely manufacture the relevant products at previous levels or at 
all. A reduction or interruption in any of these manufacturing processes could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

An interruption in distribution or transportation may have a material adverse effect on our business.

We rely on various transportation channels for global distribution of our products through shipping ports located throughout the 
world. Labor unrest, political instability, the outbreak of pandemics, trade restrictions, transport capacity and costs, port 
security, weather conditions, natural disasters or other events could slow port activities and could adversely affect our business 
by interrupting product shipments and may increase our transportation costs if we are forced to use more expensive shipping 
alternatives. 

We are subject to extensive government regulation, which may require us to incur significant expenses to ensure 
compliance. 

Many of our products are subject to extensive regulation in the United States by the FDA and other regulatory authorities and 
by comparable government agencies in other countries concerning the development, design, approval, manufacture, labeling, 
importing and exporting and sale and marketing of many of our products. Furthermore, our facilities are subject to periodic 
inspection by the FDA and other federal, state and foreign government authorities, which require manufacturers of medical 
devices to adhere to certain regulations, including the FDA’s Quality System Regulation, which requires periodic audits, design 
controls, quality control testing and documentation procedures, as well as complaint evaluations and investigation. Regulations 
regarding the development, manufacture and sale of medical products are evolving and subject to future change. We cannot 
predict what impact those regulatory changes may have on our business. Failure to comply with applicable regulations could 
lead to manufacturing shutdowns, product shortages, delays in product manufacturing, product seizures, recalls, operating 
restrictions, withdrawal or suspension of required licenses, and prohibitions against exporting of products to, or importing 
products from, countries outside the United States and may require significant resources to resolve. Any one or more of these 
events could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We are subject to healthcare fraud and abuse laws and regulations that could result in significant liability, require us to 
change our business practices or restrict our operations in the future. 

We are subject to various U.S. federal, state and local laws targeting fraud and abuse in the healthcare industry, including anti-
kickback and false claims laws. Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal or civil sanctions, including substantial 
fines, imprisonment and exclusion from participation in healthcare programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. These laws and 
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regulations are wide ranging and subject to changing interpretation and application, which could restrict our sales or marketing 
practices. Furthermore, since many of our customers rely on reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid and other governmental 
programs to cover a substantial portion of their expenditures, our exclusion from such programs as a result of a violation of 
these laws could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We must obtain clearance or approval from the appropriate regulatory authorities prior to introducing a new product or a 
modification to an existing product. The regulatory clearance process may result in substantial costs, delays and limitations 
on the types and uses of products we can bring to market, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

In the United States, before we can market a new product, or a new use of, or claim for, or significant modification to, an 
existing product, we generally must first receive clearance or approval from the FDA and certain other regulatory authorities. 
Most major markets for medical devices outside the United States also require clearance, approval or compliance with certain 
standards before a product can be commercially marketed. The process of obtaining regulatory clearances and approvals to 
market a medical device can be costly and time consuming, involve rigorous pre-clinical and clinical testing, require changes in 
products or result in limitations on the indicated uses of products. There can be no assurance that these clearances and approvals 
will be granted on a timely basis, or at all. In addition, once a medical device has been cleared or approved, a new clearance or 
approval may be required before the medical device may be modified, its labeling changed or marketed for a different use. 
Medical devices are cleared or approved for one or more specific intended uses and promoting a device for an off-label use 
could result in government enforcement action. Furthermore, a product approval or clearance can be withdrawn or limited due 
to unforeseen problems with the medical device or issues relating to its application. The regulatory clearance and approval 
process may result in, among other things, delayed, if at all, realization of product net sales, substantial additional costs and 
limitations on the types of products we may bring to market or their indicated uses, any one of which could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We may incur product liability losses, litigation liability, product recalls, safety alerts or regulatory action associated with 
our products which can be costly and disruptive to our business. 

The risk of product liability claims is inherent in the design, manufacture and marketing of the medical products of the type we 
produce and sell. A number of factors could result in an unsafe condition or injury to, or death of, a patient with respect to the 
products that we manufacture or sell, including physician technique and experience in performing the relevant surgical 
procedure, component failures, manufacturing flaws, design defects or inadequate disclosure of product-related risks or 
information. 

In addition to product liability claims and litigation, an unsafe condition or injury to, or death of, a patient associated with our 
products could lead to a recall of, or issuance of a safety alert relating to, our products, or suspension or delay of regulatory 
product approvals or clearances, product seizures or detentions, governmental investigations, civil or criminal sanctions or 
injunctions to halt manufacturing and distribution of our products. Any one of these could result in significant costs and 
negative publicity resulting in reduced market acceptance and demand for our products and harm our reputation. In addition, a 
recall or injunction affecting our products could temporarily shut down production lines or place products on a shipping hold. 

All of the foregoing types of legal proceedings and regulatory actions are inherently unpredictable and, regardless of the 
outcome, could disrupt our business, result in substantial costs or the diversion of management attention and could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Economic conditions have affected and may continue to adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. 

Disruptions in the financial markets and other macro-economic challenges affecting the economy and the economic outlook of 
the United States, Europe, Japan, China and other parts of the world may have an adverse impact on our results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows. Economic conditions and depressed levels of consumer and commercial spending have 
caused and may continue to cause our customers to reduce, modify, delay or cancel plans to purchase our products, and we have 
observed certain hospitals delaying and prioritizing purchasing decisions, which has had and may continue to have a material 
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

In addition, as a result of economic conditions, our customers inside and outside the United States, including foreign 
governmental entities or other entities that rely on government healthcare systems or government funding, may be unable to pay 
their obligations on a timely basis or to make payment in full. If our customers’ cash flow or operating and financial 
performance deteriorate or fail to improve, or if our customers are unable to make scheduled payments or obtain credit, they 
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may not be able to pay, or may delay payment of accounts receivable owed to us. These conditions also may have an adverse 
effect on certain of our suppliers who may reduce output or change terms of sales, which could cause a disruption in our ability 
to produce our products. Any inability of current and/or potential customers to pay us for our products or any demands by our 
suppliers for different payment terms may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. 

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. 

Due to our international operations, we transact business in many foreign currencies and are subject to the effects of changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates, including the Thai baht, Malaysian ringgit, Mexican peso, Japanese yen, Australian dollar and 
the Euro. Our financial statements are reported in U.S. dollars with international transactions being translated into U.S. dollars. 
If the U.S. dollar strengthens in relation to the currencies of other countries where we sell our products, our U.S. dollar reported 
net sales and income will decrease. Additionally, we incur significant costs in foreign currencies and a fluctuation in those 
currencies’ value can negatively impact manufacturing and selling costs. While we have in the past engaged, and may in the 
future engage, in various hedging transactions in attempts to minimize the effects of foreign currency exchange rate 
fluctuations, there can be no assurance that these hedging transactions will be effective. Changes in the relative values of 
currencies occur regularly and could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash 
flows.

Cost-containment efforts of our customers, healthcare purchasing groups, third-party payors and governmental 
organizations could adversely affect our sales and profitability. 

Many of our customers are members of GPOs, or integrated delivery networks (“IDNs”). GPOs and IDNs negotiate pricing 
arrangements with healthcare product manufacturers and distributors and offer the negotiated prices to affiliated hospitals and 
other members. Although we are the sole contracted supplier to certain GPOs for certain product categories, members of the 
GPO are generally free to purchase from other suppliers, and such contract positions can offer no assurance that sales volumes 
of those products will be maintained. In addition, initiatives sponsored by government agencies and other third-party payors to 
limit healthcare costs, including price regulation and competitive bidding for the sale of our products, are ongoing in markets 
where we sell our products. Pricing pressure has also increased in our markets due to consolidation among healthcare providers, 
trends toward managed care, governments becoming payors of healthcare expenses and regulation relating to reimbursements. 
The increasing leverage of organized buying groups and consolidated customers and pricing pressure from third-party payors 
may reduce market prices for our products, thereby reducing our profitability and have a material adverse effect on our 
business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We face significant uncertainty in the healthcare industry due to government healthcare reform in the United States and 
elsewhere. 

In March 2010, comprehensive healthcare reform legislation was signed into law in the United States through the passage of the 
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act (the “PPACA”). Among other 
initiatives, the legislation implemented a 2.3% excise tax on the sales of certain medical devices in the United States, effective 
January 2013. In 2015, the excise tax had an impact on us of approximately $6 million, but was suspended for 2016. As a result 
of the passage of the Consolidated Appropriations Act in December 2016, the medical device excise tax has been suspended for 
the 2017 and 2018 calendar years. In addition, the legislation implemented payment system reforms and significantly altered 
Medicare and Medicaid reimbursements for medical services and medical devices, which could result in downward pricing 
pressure and decreased demand for our products.  

As additional provisions of healthcare reform are implemented, we anticipate that the U.S. Congress, regulatory agencies and 
certain state legislatures, as well as international legislators and regulators, will continue to review and assess alternative 
healthcare delivery systems and payment methods with an objective of ultimately reducing healthcare costs and expanding 
access. We cannot predict with certainty what healthcare initiatives, if any, will be implemented by states or foreign 
governments or what ultimate effect federal healthcare reform or any future legislation or regulation may have on our 
customers’ purchasing decisions regarding our products. However, the implementation of new legislation and regulation may 
lower reimbursements for our products, reduce medical procedure volumes and adversely affect our business, results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

In addition, the United States Government is currently evaluating the potential repeal and potential replacement of all or parts 
of the PPACA. Any such repeal or replacement may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows. 
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Our customers depend on third-party coverage and reimbursements. The failure of healthcare programs to provide coverage 
and reimbursement, or reductions in levels of reimbursement, could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

The ability of our customers to obtain coverage and reimbursements for products they purchase from us is important to our 
business. Demand for many of our existing and new medical products is, and will continue to be, affected by the extent to 
which government healthcare programs and private health insurers reimburse our customers for patients’ medical expenses in 
the countries where we do business. Any reduction in the amount of reimbursements received by our customers could harm our 
business by reducing their selection of our products and the prices they are willing to pay. 

In addition, as a result of their purchasing power, third-party payors are implementing cost-cutting measures such as seeking 
discounts, price reductions or other incentives from medical products suppliers and imposing limitations on coverage and 
reimbursements for medical technologies and procedures. These trends could compel us to reduce prices for our existing 
products and potential new products and could cause a decrease in the size of the market or a potential increase in competition 
that could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We are subject to political, economic and regulatory risks associated with doing business outside of the United States. 

Most of our manufacturing facilities are outside the United States in Honduras, Mexico, Thailand, France, Germany and 
Tunisia. We also use contract manufacturers to manufacture products on our behalf in China, Indonesia and Malaysia and 
source many of our raw materials and components from foreign suppliers. We distribute and sell our products in over 100 
countries. In 2016, approximately 25% of our net sales were generated outside of North America and we expect this percentage 
will grow over time. Our operations outside of the United States are subject to risks that are inherent in conducting business 
internationally, including compliance with both United States and foreign laws and regulations that apply to our international 
operations. These laws and regulations include robust data privacy requirements, labor relations laws that may impede 
employer flexibility, tax laws, anti-competition regulations, import, customs and trade restrictions, export requirements, 
economic sanction laws, environmental, health and safety laws, anti-bribery laws such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices 
Act and similar anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions. Given the high level of complexity of these laws, there is a risk that 
some provisions may be violated inadvertently or through fraudulent or negligent behavior of individual employees, our failure 
to comply with certain formal documentation requirements or otherwise. In addition, these laws are subject to changes, which 
may require additional resources or make it more difficult for us to comply with these laws. Violations of the laws and 
regulations governing our international operations could result in fines or criminal sanctions against us, our officers or our 
employees, and prohibitions on the conduct of our business. Any such violations could include prohibitions on our ability to 
manufacture or distribute our products in one or more countries and could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, our 
brand, our international expansion efforts, our ability to attract and retain employees, our business, results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows. Our success depends, in part, on our ability to anticipate and prevent or mitigate these risks 
and manage difficulties as they arise.

We may be subject to trade protection measures that are being contemplated by the United States Government that may result in 
new or higher tariffs, import-export restrictions and taxes. Changes in, or revised interpretations of import-export laws or 
international trade agreements, along with new or increased tariffs, trade restrictions or taxation on income earned or goods 
manufactured outside the United States may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows. 

In addition to the foregoing, engaging in international business inherently involves a number of other difficulties and risks, 
including: 

• different local medical practices, product preferences and product requirements,

• price and currency controls and exchange rate fluctuations,

• cost and availability of international shipping channels,

• longer payment cycles in certain countries other than the United States,

• minimal or diminished protection of intellectual property in certain countries,

• uncertainties regarding judicial systems, including difficulties in enforcing agreements through certain non-U.S. legal
systems,
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• political instability and actual or anticipated military or political conflicts, expropriation of assets, economic instability
and the impact on interest rates, inflation and the credit worthiness of our customers,

• difficulties and costs of staffing and managing non-U.S. operations.

These risks and difficulties, individually or in the aggregate, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We cannot guarantee that any of our strategic acquisitions, investments or alliances will be successful. 

We intend to supplement our growth through strategic acquisitions of, investments in and alliances with new medical 
technologies. The success of any acquisition, investment or alliance may be affected by a number of factors, including our 
ability to identify and then properly assess and value the potential business opportunity or to successfully integrate any business 
we may acquire into our existing business. These types of transactions may require more resources and investments than 
originally anticipated, may divert management’s attention from our existing business, may result in exposure to unexpected 
liabilities of the acquired business, and may not result in the expected benefits, savings or synergies. There can be no assurance 
that we will be able to identify and successfully make strategic acquisitions of, investments in and alliances with new medical 
technologies or that any past or future acquisition, investment or alliance will be cost-effective, profitable or successful. 

We have a significant amount of debt that could adversely affect our business. 

Our indebtedness includes $250 million of 6.25% senior unsecured notes and $339 million owed on a term loan. This debt 
could have important consequences to us and our investors, including:

• requiring a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to make interest payments on this debt,

• reducing the cash flow available to fund capital expenditures and other corporate purposes and to grow our business,

• increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions,

• increasing the risk of a future downgrade of our credit rating, which could increase future debt costs and limit the
future availability of debt financing,

• limiting our ability to borrow additional funds as needed or take advantage of business opportunities as they arise, and

• limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry and placing us at a
competitive disadvantage to our competitors that may not be as highly leveraged.

To the extent that we incur additional indebtedness, the risks described above could increase. In addition, our actual cash 
requirements in the future may be greater than expected. Our cash flow from operations may not be sufficient to repay all of the 
outstanding debt as it becomes due, and we may not be able to borrow money, sell assets or otherwise raise funds on acceptable 
terms, or at all, to refinance our debt. 

We may need additional financing in the future to meet our capital needs or to make acquisitions and such financing may 
not be available on favorable terms, if at all. 

We intend to increase our investment in research and development activities and make acquisitions. Accordingly, we may need 
to seek additional debt or equity financing. We may be unable to obtain any desired additional financing on terms favorable to 
us, if at all. If we lose a previously assigned credit rating or adequate funds are not available on acceptable terms, we may be 
unable to fund our expansion, successfully develop or enhance products or respond to competitive pressures, any of which 
could negatively affect our business.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property rights or may infringe the intellectual property rights of others. 

We rely on patents, trademarks, trade secrets and other intellectual property assets in the operation of our business. Our efforts 
to protect our intellectual property and proprietary rights may not be sufficient. We cannot be sure that pending patent 
applications will result in the issuance of patents or that patents issued or licensed to us will remain valid or prevent competitors 
from introducing similar competing technologies. Our ability to enforce and protect our intellectual property rights may be 
limited in certain countries outside of the United States in which we operate, which could make it easier for our competitors to 
develop or distribute similar competing technologies in those jurisdictions. In addition, our competitive position may be 
adversely affected by expirations of our significant patents, which would allow competitors to freely use our technology to 
compete with us. 
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We operate in an industry characterized by extensive patent litigation and competitors may claim that our products infringe their 
intellectual property rights. Resolution of patent litigation or other intellectual property claims is inherently unpredictable, 
typically time consuming and costly and can result in significant damage awards and injunctions that could prevent the 
manufacture and sale of the affected products or require us to make significant royalty payments in order to continue selling the 
affected products. Any one of these could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. At any given time we are involved as either a plaintiff or a defendant in a number of patent 
infringement actions, the outcomes of which may not be known for prolonged periods of time. We can expect to face additional 
claims of patent infringement in the future. 

We may be unable to attract and retain key employees necessary to be competitive. 

Our ability to compete effectively depends upon our ability to attract and retain executives and other key employees, including 
people in technical, marketing, sales, and research and development positions. Competition for experienced employees, 
particularly for persons with specialized skills, can be intense. Our ability to recruit such talent will depend on a number of 
factors, including compensation and benefits, work location and work environment. If we cannot effectively recruit and retain 
qualified executives and employees, our business could be materially adversely affected. 

Breaches of our information technology systems could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

We rely on information technology systems to process, transmit and store electronic information in our day-to-day operations. 
Our information technology systems may be subjected to computer viruses or other malicious codes, unauthorized access 
attempts and cyber- or phishing-attacks. We also store certain information with third parties that could be subject to these types 
of attacks. These attacks could result in our intellectual property and other confidential information, including personal health 
information, being lost or stolen, disruption of our operations, loss of reputation and other negative consequences, such as 
increased costs for security measures or remediation costs and diversion of management attention. While we will continue to 
implement additional protective measures to reduce the risk of and detect future cyber incidents, cyber-attacks are becoming 
more sophisticated and frequent, and the techniques used in such attacks change rapidly. There can be no assurances that our 
protective measures will prevent future attacks that could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Prior to the Spin-off, our historical and pro-forma financial data were not necessarily representative of the results we would 
have achieved as a stand-alone publicly-traded company and therefore may not be reliable as an indicator of our 
performance.

The historical combined and consolidated financial data included in this annual report on Form 10-K presents our results of 
operations, financial position and cash flows as a stand-alone public company in 2016, 2015 and for the period from November 
1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, but as Kimberly-Clark’s Health Care business through October 31, 2014 (the Spin-off 
date). Prior to the Spin-off date, the historical combined financial data presented the results and financial position of Kimberly-
Clark’s Health Care business that was transferred to us at the Spin-off date as that business was operated by Kimberly-Clark. 
Our historical combined financial data included in this Form 10-K for the periods prior to the Spin-off are derived from the 
historical consolidated financial statements and accounting records of Kimberly-Clark. Accordingly, this data may not be 
indicative of our future performance, or necessarily reflect what our financial position and results of operations or cash flows 
would have been, had we operated as a separate, stand-alone publicly-traded entity during all of the periods presented. 

Risks Related to Ownership of Halyard Common Stock 

We cannot guarantee that our stock price will not decline or fluctuate significantly. 

The price at which Halyard common stock trades has and may continue to fluctuate significantly. The market price, or 
fluctuations in price, for Halyard common stock may be negatively influenced by many factors, including: 

• actual or unanticipated fluctuations in our quarterly and annual operating results,

• our failure to achieve the quarterly financial results forecast provided from time to time by the securities analysts who
cover our stock,

• the outcome of litigation and enforcement actions,

• developments generally affecting the healthcare industry,

• changes in market valuations of comparable companies,
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• the amount of our indebtedness,

• general economic, industry and market conditions,

• the depth and liquidity of the market for Halyard common stock,

• price fluctuations in key commodities,

• fluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates,

• our dividend policy, and

• perceptions of or speculations by the press or investment community.

These and other factors may lower the market price of Halyard common stock, regardless of our actual financial condition or 
operating performance.

We have no present intention to pay dividends on Halyard common stock. 

We have no present intention to pay dividends on Halyard common stock. Any determination to pay dividends to holders of 
Halyard common stock will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on many factors, including our 
financial condition, results of operations, projections, liquidity, earnings, legal requirements, restrictions in our debt agreements 
and other factors that our Board of Directors deems relevant. 

Your percentage of ownership in Halyard may be diluted in the future. 

In the future, your percentage ownership in Halyard may be diluted because of equity issuances for acquisitions, capital market 
transactions or otherwise, including equity awards that we may grant to our directors, officers and employees. We also 
anticipate that our compensation committee will grant stock options or other equity based awards to our employees in the 
future. These awards will have a dilutive effect on existing stockholders and on our earnings per share, which could adversely 
affect the market price of shares of Halyard common stock. 

In addition, our certificate of incorporation authorizes us to issue, without the approval of Halyard stockholders, one or more 
classes or series of preferred stock having such designation, powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other 
special rights, including preferences over Halyard common stock with respect to dividends and distributions, as our Board of 
Directors generally may determine. If our Board of Directors were to approve the issuance of preferred stock in the future, the 
terms of one or more classes or series of such preferred stock could dilute the voting power or reduce the value of Halyard 
common stock. Similarly, the repurchase or redemption rights or liquidation preferences we could assign to Halyard preferred 
stock could affect the residual value of Halyard common stock.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and by-laws and of Delaware law may make it difficult for 
stockholders to change the composition of our Board of Directors and may discourage hostile takeover attempts which some 
of our stockholders may consider to be beneficial. 

Certain provisions contained in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws and those contained in Delaware law may have the 
effect of delaying or preventing changes in control if our Board of Directors determines that such changes in control are not in 
the best interests of us and our stockholders. These provisions include, among other things, the following:

• the division of our Board of Directors into three classes, each with three-year staggered terms,

• the ability of our Board of Directors to issue shares of preferred stock and to determine the price and other terms,
including preferences and voting rights, of those shares without stockholder approval,

• the inability of our stockholders to call a special meeting of stockholders,

• stockholder action may be taken only at a special or regular meeting of stockholders,

• advance notice procedures for nominating candidates to our Board of Directors or presenting matters at stockholder
meetings,

• stockholder removal of directors only for cause and only by a supermajority vote,

• the ability of our Board of Directors, and not our stockholders, to fill vacancies on our Board of Directors, and
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• supermajority voting requirements to amend our by-laws and certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and
to engage in certain types of business combinations.

While these provisions have the effect of encouraging persons seeking to acquire control of our company to negotiate with our 
Board of Directors, they could enable the Board of Directors to hinder or frustrate a transaction that some, or a majority, of the 
stockholders might believe to be in their best interests and, in that case, may prevent or discourage attempts to remove and 
replace incumbent directors. We are also subject to Delaware laws that could have similar effects. One of these laws prohibits 
us from engaging in a business combination with a significant stockholder unless specific conditions are met.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own or lease operating facilities located throughout the world that handle manufacturing production, assembly, research, 
quality assurance testing, distribution and packaging of our products. We believe our facilities are suitable and adequate for our 
present operations. We lease our principal executive offices that are located in Alpharetta, Georgia. The locations of our 
principal production facilities owned or leased by us around the world are as follows:

Segment    Location    Country    Owned/Leased

Medical Devices    Nogales    Mexico    Owned
Medical Devices    Nogales    Mexico    Leased
Medical Devices    Tucson, Arizona    USA    Leased
Medical Devices    Magdalena    Mexico    Leased
Medical Devices    Tijuana    Mexico    Leased
Medical Devices Buffalo Grove, Illinois USA Leased
Medical Devices    Weinheim    Germany    Leased
Medical Devices Marseille France Leased
Medical Devices Sousse Tunisia Leased

S&IP    Tambol Prik    Thailand    Owned
S&IP    Lexington, North Carolina    USA    Owned
S&IP    Acuña    Mexico    Owned
S&IP    Nogales    Mexico    Leased
S&IP    Villanueva    Honduras    Leased

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

We are subject to various legal proceedings, claims and governmental inspections, audits or investigations pertaining to issues 
such as contract disputes, product liability, tax matters, patents and trademarks, advertising, governmental regulations, 
employment and other matters, including the matters described below. Under the terms of the distribution agreement we entered 
into with Kimberly-Clark prior to the Spin-off, legal proceedings, claims and other liabilities that are primarily related to our 
business are our responsibility and we are obligated to indemnify and hold Kimberly-Clark harmless for such matters 
(“Indemnification Obligation”). For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we have incurred $20 million and $17 
million, respectively, related to these matters.

The only exception to the Indemnification Obligation relates to the pain pump litigation referenced in this paragraph. We are 
one of several manufacturers of continuous infusion medical devices, such as our ON-Q PAINBUSTER pain pumps, that are 
involved in several different pending or threatened litigation matters from multiple plaintiffs alleging that use of the continuous 
infusion device to deliver anesthetics directly into a synovial joint after surgery resulted in postarthroscopic glenohumeral 
chondrolysis, or a disintegration of the cartilage covering the bones in the joint (typically, in the shoulder). Plaintiffs generally 
seek monetary damages and attorneys’ fees. While Kimberly-Clark is retaining the liabilities related to these matters, the 
distribution agreement between us and Kimberly-Clark provides that we will indemnify Kimberly-Clark for any such claims or 
causes of actions arising after the Spin-off. 
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We have an Indemnification Obligation for, and have assumed the defense of, the matter styled Bahamas Surgery Center, LLC 
v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation and Halyard Health, Inc., No. 2:14-cv-08390-DMG-SH (C.D. Cal.) (“Bahamas”), filed on 
October 29, 2014. In that case, the plaintiff brings a putative class action asserting claims for common law fraud (affirmative 
misrepresentation and fraudulent concealment) and violation of California’s Unfair Competition Law in connection with our 
marketing and sale of MicroCool surgical gowns. On June 1, 2016, the plaintiff moved for class certification of a California-
only damages class and a California-only injunctive relief class. Although the plaintiff did not also move for certification of a 
nationwide class to determine liability, damages, or injunctive relief, it did move for certification of a nationwide “issue” class 
purporting to resolve certain issues allegedly “common” to members of that class. On July 8, 2016, we moved for summary 
judgment. On November 8, 2016, the court granted in part and denied in part the plaintiff’s motion for class certification. The 
court certified a California-only class for damages and injunctive relief arising from fraud by omission, but it rejected 
certification of a California-only class arising from affirmative fraud, and it also rejected certification of a nationwide “issue” 
class. The court also rejected the plaintiff’s request for “full restitution” damages, meaning the full value of the gowns. Instead, 
the court found any damages would be based on the difference between the purchase price of the gowns and what the purchase 
price would have been for gowns with no AAMI rating. On November 15, 2016, the court denied our motion for summary 
judgment. The parties remain engaged in discovery. The trial is scheduled to begin on March 28, 2017. We intend to continue 
our vigorous defense of the matter.

In June 2015, we were served with a subpoena from the Department of Veterans Affairs Office of the Inspector General (“VA 
OIG”) seeking information related to the design, manufacture, testing, sale and promotion of MicroCool and other Company 
surgical gowns, and, in July 2015, we also became aware that the subpoena and an earlier VA OIG subpoena served on 
Kimberly-Clark requesting information about gown sales to the federal government are related to a United States Department of 
Justice (“DOJ”) investigation. In May 2016, we were also served with a subpoena from the Department of Justice seeking 
further information related to Company gowns. The Company is cooperating with the VA OIG’s request and the DOJ 
investigation.

On October 12, 2016, after the DOJ submitted filings on behalf of itself and various States declining to intervene in two qui tam 
matters, both matters were unsealed. One of those matters is U.S. ex rel. Shahinian, et al. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, No. 
2:14-cv-08313-JAK-JPR (C. D. Cal.) (“Shahinian”), filed on October 27, 2014. The other of those matters is U.S. ex rel. 
Edgett, et al. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, Halyard Health, Inc., et al, No. 3:15-cv-00434-B (N.D. Tex.) (“Edgett”), filed on 
February 9, 2015. Both cases allege, among other things, violations of both the federal and state False Claims Acts in 
connection with the marketing and sale of certain surgical gowns. On November 7, 2016, Dr. Shahinian served his complaint on 
Kimberly-Clark, and on February 6, 2017, he served an amended complaint on Kimberly-Clark. On January 9, 2017, Mr. Edgett 
served his complaint on both Kimberly-Clark and Halyard Health. We may have an Indemnification Obligation for the two 
matters under the distribution agreement with Kimberly-Clark. We intend to vigorously defend the cases.

We were served with a complaint in a matter styled Jackson v. Halyard Health, Inc., Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et 
al., No. 1:16-cv-05093-LTS (S.D.N.Y.), filed on June 28, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff brings a putative class action against 
the Company, our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer and other defendants, asserting claims for violations of 
the Securities Exchange Act, Sections 10(b) and 20(a). The plaintiff alleges that the defendants made misrepresentations and 
failed to disclose certain information about the safety and effectiveness of our MicroCool gowns and thereby artificially inflated 
the Company’s stock prices during the respective class periods. The alleged class period for purchasers of Kimberly-Clark 
securities who subsequently received Halyard Health securities is February 25, 2013 to October 21, 2014, and the alleged class 
period for purchasers of Halyard Health securities is October 21, 2014 to April 29, 2016. On February 16, 2017, we moved to 
dismiss the case. We intend to continue our vigorous defense of this matter.

We were also served with a complaint in a matter styled Margaret C. Richardson Trustee of the Survivors Trust Dated 6/12/84 
for the Benefit of the H&M Richardson Revocable Trust v. Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et al., No. 1:16-cv-06296 (S. 
D. N. Y.) (“Richardson”), filed on August 9, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff sues derivatively on behalf of Halyard Health, Inc., 
and alleges that the defendants breached their fiduciary duty, were unjustly enriched, and violated Section 14(A) of the 
Securities and Exchange Act in connection with Halyard Health, Inc.’s marketing and sale of MicroCool gowns. We were also 
served with a complaint in a matter styled Kai Chiu v. Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et al, No. 2:16-cv-08768 (C.D. 
Cal.), filed on November 23, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff sues derivatively on behalf of Halyard Health, Inc., and makes 
allegations and brings causes of action similar to those in Richardson, but the plaintiff also adds causes of action for abuse of 
control, gross mismanagement, and waste of corporate assets. We intend to vigorously defend these matters.
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We were also served with a complaint in the matter styled Medline Industries, Inc. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, Halyard 
Health, Inc., et al., No. 2:16-cv-08571 (C. D. Cal.). In that case, the plaintiff makes allegations similar to those in Bahamas, 
Shahinian, and Edgett, and brings causes of action under federal and state false advertising laws and state unfair competition 
laws. We may have an Indemnification Obligation for this matter under the distribution agreement with Kimberly-Clark. We 
intend to vigorously defend it.

We operate in an industry characterized by extensive patent litigation and competitors may claim that our products infringe 
upon their intellectual property. Resolution of patent litigation or other intellectual property claims is typically time consuming 
and costly and can result in significant damage awards and injunctions that could prevent the manufacture and sale of the 
affected products or require us to make significant royalty payments in order to continue selling the affected products. At any 
given time we may be involved as either a plaintiff or a defendant in a number of patent infringement actions, the outcomes of 
which may not be known for prolonged periods of time.

We maintain general and professional liability, product liability and other insurance in an amount that we believe is reasonably 
adequate to insulate us from material liability for claims. However, our insurance policies may not cover all of these matters 
and may not fully cover liabilities arising out of these matters. In addition, we may be obligated to indemnify our directors and 
officers against these matters. Although the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we believe that 
the ultimate disposition of these matters, to the extent not previously provided for, will not have a material adverse effect, 
individually or in the aggregate, on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. However the above matters, 
regardless of the outcome, could disrupt our business and result in substantial costs and diversion of management attention. As 
of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we have an accrued liability which management believes is adequate for the matters described 
herein. The accrued liability is included in “Accrued Expenses” in the consolidated balance sheet in Item 8 of this report.

We are subject to federal, state and local environmental protection laws and regulations with respect to our business operations 
and are operating in compliance with, or taking action aimed at ensuring compliance with, these laws and regulations. None of 
our compliance obligations with environmental protection laws and regulations, individually or in the aggregate, is expected to 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The names and ages of our executive officers as of February 27, 2017, together with certain biographical information, are as 
follows:

Name    Position

Robert E. Abernathy    Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Rhonda D. Gibby    Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer
Christopher G. Isenberg    Senior Vice President - Global Supply Chain and Procurement
Christopher M. Lowery    Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Warren J. Machan    Senior Vice President - Business Strategy
Steven E. Voskuil    Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
John W. Wesley    Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Robert E. Abernathy, age 62, has been the Chairman of our Board of Directors and our Chief Executive Officer since our 
Spin-off from Kimberly-Clark on October 31, 2014. He served as President Global Health Care of Kimberly-Clark from June 
2014 until the Spin-off. Prior to that he served as an Executive Vice President of Kimberly-Clark from November 2013 to June 
2014, and prior to that served as Kimberly-Clark’s Group President - Europe, Global Nonwovens, and Continuous 
Improvement & Sustainability from 2012 to November 2013. He had overall responsibility for Kimberly-Clark’s Health Care 
business from 1997 to early 2004. His past responsibilities at Kimberly-Clark have also included overseeing its businesses in 
Asia, Latin America, Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Africa, as well as operations and major project management in North 
America. He was appointed Vice President - North American Diaper Operations in 1992; Managing Director of Kimberly-Clark 
Australia Pty. Limited in 1994; Group President - Developing and Emerging Markets in 2004; and Group President - North 
Atlantic Consumer Products in 2008. Mr. Abernathy was selected to serve as the Chairman of our Board of Directors due to his 
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leadership experience as an executive vice president of Kimberly-Clark, knowledge of, and experience in, the healthcare 
industry, international experience and governance and public company board experience. 

Rhonda D. Gibby, age 49, is our Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to the Spin-off, she had 
been serving as Kimberly-Clark’s Vice President - Human Resources for its global business-to-business units (K-C Professional 
and Kimberly-Clark’s Health Care business) as well as the leader of Kimberly-Clark’s global labor relations since 2010. Prior to 
that, Ms. Gibby served as Kimberly-Clark’s Global Vice President of Talent Management from 2008 to 2010. Prior to joining 
Kimberly-Clark in 2005, Ms. Gibby held leadership roles in operations, sales and human resources in a variety of industries and 
employers, including most recently at Covidien, a global healthcare products company. 

Christopher G. Isenberg, age 50, is our Senior Vice President - Global Supply Chain and Procurement. Prior to the Spin-off, 
he had been with Kimberly-Clark for over 25 years, serving most recently as Kimberly-Clark’s Vice President of Global Health 
Care Manufacturing and Supply Chain since July 2012. Before assuming this role, Mr. Isenberg served as Senior 
Manufacturing Director for K-C Professional, beginning in January 2011. From October 2007 until January 2011, Mr. Isenberg 
served as Plant Manager at Kimberly-Clark’s Everett, Washington Pulp and Tissue Mill. Prior to that, he served in various 
manufacturing operations, marketing and other roles for Kimberly-Clark’s Family Care business. 

Christopher M. Lowery, age 53, is our Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, and in that role has responsibility 
for leading worldwide sales, marketing, research and development, quality, regulatory and clinical affairs. Prior to the Spin-off, 
he had been serving as Kimberly-Clark’s Vice President - Global Health Care Sales and Marketing since July 2013. Prior to this 
role he served as Vice President, Global Medical Devices. Mr. Lowery joined Kimberly-Clark in 2010 bringing 15 years of 
healthcare industry experience. Before joining Kimberly-Clark, he held several senior marketing and sales roles at Covidien, a 
global healthcare products company. 

Warren J. Machan, age 51, is our Senior Vice President - Business Strategy. Prior to the Spin-off, he had been serving as 
Kimberly-Clark’s Senior Director of Strategy - Global Health Care since January 2012 and before that served as Senior 
Director of Finance for Kimberly-Clark’s Health Care business from 2008 to 2012. Mr. Machan served as Director of Finance 
and Strategic Planning for the Kimberly-Clark International business from 2004 to 2008. He joined Kimberly-Clark in 
1987 and, while spending the majority of time in Kimberly-Clark’s Health Care business, he has also held roles in sales, 
marketing and finance for the K-C Professional, Personal Care and Family Care businesses. 

Steven E. Voskuil, age 48, is our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to the Spin-off, he had been serving 
as Vice President - Finance for Kimberly-Clark International since September 2011 and previously served as Kimberly-Clark’s 
Vice President and Treasurer from January 2008 to September 2011. He joined Kimberly-Clark in 1991 in Finance and has held 
a variety of roles in business analysis, strategic analysis and treasury for Kimberly-Clark’s businesses worldwide. Mr. Voskuil 
also served as the executive sponsor for talent development for the company’s Global Finance organization. 

John W. Wesley, age 58, is our Senior Vice President and General Counsel. Prior to the Spin-off, he had been serving as 
Kimberly-Clark’s Vice President, Deputy General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since 2009. He joined Kimberly-Clark in 
May 2000 as Senior Counsel, Corporate Affairs and has held a variety of positions, overseeing corporate transactions and 
corporate governance matters. Prior to joining Kimberly-Clark, he was a partner at the Dallas law firm of Carrington, Coleman, 
Sloman & Blumenthal, L.L.P., where he specialized in corporate, securities, corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions and 
general, commercial and business law. 
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND 
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Halyard common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the ticker symbol “HYH”. The following 
table sets forth the quarterly high and low sales prices per share of our common stock on the NYSE:

2016 2015

Three Months Ended: High Low High Low

March 31 ................................................................. $ 33.73 $ 22.76 $ 49.95 $ 42.29
June 30 .................................................................... 34.10 26.05 50.92 40.14
September 30........................................................... 37.31 32.50 41.84 27.76
December 31 ........................................................... 39.54 31.59 34.88 26.58

We did not pay any dividends on our common stock in the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 and we do not expect to 
pay any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

As of February 15, 2017, we had 16,195 holders of record of our common stock.

For information relating to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, see Part III, Item 12 of this Form 
10-K.

Performance

The graph below compares the cumulative total return of our common stock from October 21, 2014, the first day of trading for 
our common stock on a when-issued basis, through December 31, 2016 with the cumulative return of companies comprising the 
Standard and Poor’s S&P MidCap 400 Index and the S&P 500 Health Care Equipment and Services Index. The graph plots the 
change in value of an initial investment of $100 in each of our common stock, the S&P MidCap 400 Index and the S&P 500 
Health Care Equipment and Services Index over the indicated time periods and assumes reinvestment of all dividends, if any, 
paid on the securities. We have not paid any cash dividends, and therefore, the cumulative total return calculation for us is based 
solely upon stock price appreciation and not upon reinvestment of cash dividends. The stock price performance shown on the 
graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.
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HYH
S&P

MidCap 400

S&P 500
Health Care
Equipment 

and Services

October 21, 2014 .................................................................................................................................................. $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00
December 31, 2014............................................................................................................................................... 110.90 107.89 110.93
March 31, 2015..................................................................................................................................................... 120.00 114.92 122.70
June 30, 2015........................................................................................................................................................ 98.78 115.04 127.35
September 30, 2015.............................................................................................................................................. 69.37 106.70 115.26
December 31, 2015............................................................................................................................................... 81.49 111.07 124.40
March 31, 2016..................................................................................................................................................... 70.07 116.63 124.08
June 30, 2016........................................................................................................................................................ 79.32 122.77 135.49
September 30, 2016.............................................................................................................................................. 84.54 129.40 137.01
December 31, 2016............................................................................................................................................... 90.20 140.54 133.59

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this annual 
report on Form 10-K (in millions, except per-share amounts):
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Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Income Statement Data:
Net Sales ................................................................................. $ 1,592.3 $ 1,574.4 $ 1,672.1 $ 1,677.5 $ 1,684.0
Gross Profit ............................................................................. 557.9 531.6 548.6 612.2 602.5
Operating Profit (Loss) ........................................................... 87.4 (377.7) 94.3 225.3 228.0
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes...................................... 55.3 (410.5) 91.2 227.8 229.8
Net Income (Loss)(a)(b)(c).......................................................... 39.8 (426.3) 27.1 154.6 152.6
Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic .................................................................................. $ 0.85 $ (9.15) $ 0.58 $ 3.32 $ 3.28
Diluted ............................................................................... $ 0.85 $ (9.15) $ 0.58 $ 3.32 $ 3.28

______________________________
(a) Net income in 2016 includes $14 million, net of tax, of spin-related transition expenses, $13 million, net of tax, of costs related to legal expenses and 

litigation (see “Commitments and Contingencies” in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report) and $11 million, net of
tax, of costs related to the acquisition of Medsystems (see “Business Acquisition” in Note 2. to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this 
report).

(b) Net loss in 2015 includes a $474 million goodwill impairment charge, $33 million, net of tax, of spin-related transition expenses and $11 million, 
net of tax, of costs related to legal expenses and litigation partially offset by a $8 million net gain on the disposal of one of our exam glove
manufacturing facilities in Thailand.

(c) Net income in 2014 includes charges of $88 million, net of tax, related to the Spin-off and $47 million, net of tax, related to our strategic changes to
our manufacturing footprint and $8 million, net of tax, related to post Spin-off transition charges. 

As of December 31,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash ........................................................................................ $ 113.7   $ 129.5   $ 149.0   $ 44.1   $ 47.9
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net........................................ 260.8    279.5    277.8    324.9    325.7
Total Assets............................................................................. 2,071.8    2,000.2    2,517.9    2,484.0    2,534.2
Debt......................................................................................... 579.0    578.1    626.5    11.9    75.9
Stockholders’ Equity............................................................... 1,102.5 1,055.3 1,491.2 — —
Kimberly-Clark’s Net Investment........................................... —    —    —    2,098.7    2,045.6
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS

Introduction

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) is intended to 
provide investors with an understanding of our recent performance, financial condition and prospects and should be read in 
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements contained in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in 
this annual report on Form 10-K. This MD&A represents the global operations of Halyard and its subsidiaries as an 
independent publicly-traded company following our spin-off from Kimberly-Clark (the “Spin-off”), and a combined reporting 
entity comprising the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Kimberly-Clark’s Health Care business prior to 
the Spin-off. The following will be discussed and analyzed:

• Acquisition of Medsystems Holdings, Inc.

• Overview of Business

• Results of Operations and Related Information

• Unaudited Quarterly Data

• Liquidity and Capital Resources

• Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

• Legal Matters

• Information Concerning Forward Looking Statements

Acquisition of Medsystems Holdings, Inc.

On May 2, 2016, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Medsystems Holdings, Inc. (“Medsystems”) a 
Delaware corporation, for a purchase price of $175 million, net of cash acquired (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was 
funded with a combination of cash on hand and our revolving credit facility (see “Debt” in Note 6 to the consolidated financial 
statements in Item 8 of this report). Medsystems owns and conducts its primary business through CORPAK Medsystems 
(Medsystems and CORPAK Medsystems hereinafter referred to as “Corpak”). Corpak’s innovative enteral access feeding 
solutions and portfolio of nasogastric feeding tubes complement our existing enteral feeding products and create a complete 
offering of enteral feeding solutions within our Medical Devices segment. Upon Acquisition, we initiated activities to integrate 
the operations of Corpak into our company. These activities include, but are not limited to, integration of corporate functions, 
information technology and alignment with our operations. 

In June 2016, we initiated a restructuring plan to close the Corpak corporate headquarters and operating facility in Buffalo 
Grove, Illinois and consolidated operations into our existing corporate and operational facilities by the third quarter of 2017 (the 
“Plan”). For the year ended December 31, 2016, we have accrued $4 million for severance and benefits for employees impacted 
by the Plan. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we have paid $1 million to affected employees and the remaining accrual 
for severance and employee benefits was $3 million as of December 31, 2016.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we have incurred $18 million for the acquisition, integration and restructuring activities 
described above, consisting primarily of severance and benefits, consulting, legal and other costs. These costs are included in 
“Cost of products sold” and “Selling and general expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

Overview of Business 

Halyard is a medical technology company focused on eliminating pain, speeding recovery and preventing infection for 
healthcare providers and patients. We are committed to addressing some of today’s most important healthcare needs, such as 
reducing the use of opioids while helping patients move from surgery to recovery. Our Medical Devices and Surgical and 
Infection Prevention (“S&IP”) business segments develop, manufacture and market clinically superior solutions around the 
globe.

Consolidated net sales increased $18 million to $1.6 billion in the year ended December 31, 2016 driven primarily by the 
acquisition of Corpak, which provided $36 million of incremental net sales, along with improved volume across all product 
categories in the Medical Devices segment. The incremental net sales from Corpak was partially offset by lower sales of rolled 
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non-woven materials to Kimberly-Clark, which is included in “Corporate and Other,” and price loss in the S&IP segment. The 
S&IP market remains challenging. However, we continue to defend our market positions and have introduced 11 new products, 
including five in the Medical Devices business and six in the S&IP business.

Consolidated operating profit was $87 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to an operating loss of $378 
million in the prior year. The primary driver of last year’s operating loss was a goodwill impairment charge of $474 million. 
Other items that impacted operating profit in 2016 and 2015 include the following:

Spin-related costs: In the year ended December 31, 2016, we incurred $21 million of spin-related costs, primarily for 
rebranding activities. Efforts to transition all of our products to Halyard-branded products are substantially complete. However, 
we will continue to sell products bearing the Kimberly-Clark brand through April of 2017. In the year ended December 31, 
2015, we incurred $54 million of costs for spin-related activities and recognized a $12 million gain on the sale of an exam glove 
manufacturing facility in Thailand.

Acquisition-related costs: As mentioned earlier, we completed the acquisition of Corpak and incurred $18 million of costs 
incurred in connection with the Acquisition. These costs include $13 million related to acquisition and integration activities and 
$5 million related to restructuring activities as we consolidate Corpak’s headquarters and operating facility in Buffalo Grove, 
Illinois into our existing corporate and operational facilities. See “Business Acquisition” in Note 2 to the consolidated financial 
statements in Item 8 of this report.

Legal matters: In the year ended December 31, 2016, we incurred $20 million of expenses for certain litigation matters 
compared to $17 million in the prior year. See “Commitments and Contingencies” in Note 11 to the consolidated financial 
statements in Item 8 of this report.

Amortization expenses: In the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we recorded $22 million and $26 million, 
respectively, of intangibles amortization expense.

Results of Operations and Related Information 

This section presents a discussion and analysis of our net sales, operating profit and other information relevant to an 
understanding of our results of operations. This discussion and analysis compares 2016 results to 2015 results, and 2015 to 
2014.

Net Sales

  Year Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2016 2015   Change   2014   Change

Business Segment
Medical Devices..................................................................... $ 567.3   $ 509.5    11.3%   $ 501.7    1.6 %
S&IP....................................................................................... 1,012.1 1,030.2    (1.8)   1,139.3    (9.6)
Corporate and Other............................................................... 12.9 34.7    N.M.   31.1    N.M.
Total Net Sales...................................................................... $ 1,592.3   $ 1,574.4    1.1%   $ 1,672.1    (5.8)%
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Percentage Change

Changes Due To

2016 vs. 2015 Total Volume(a) Pricing / Mix Currency Other(b)

Consolidated....................................................... 1 % 2 % (3)% — % 2 %
Medical Devices ................................................. 11 4 — — 7
S&IP ................................................................... (2) 2 (4) — —

2015 vs. 2014
Consolidated....................................................... (6)% (1)% (1)% (3)% (1)%
Medical Devices ................................................. 2 3 — (1) —
S&IP ................................................................... (10) (3) (2) (3) (2)

______________________________ 
(a) Volume excludes Corpak net sales and changes in sales volume to Kimberly-Clark.
(b) Other includes Corpak net sales, changes in sales volume to Kimberly-Clark and rounding.
N.M. - Not meaningful

Net Sales by Segment - 2016 Compared to 2015 

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2016 were 1% higher than the prior year primarily due to incremental sales provided 
by Corpak and higher volume in the Medical Devices segment partially offset by lower sales of non-woven materials and price 
loss in the S&IP segment. 

Medical Devices

Net sales in the Medical Devices segment increased 11% to $567 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of 
$58 million compared to last year. The acquisition of Corpak provided $36 million, or 7% of the increase, and the remaining 
4% is the result of improved sales volume across all product categories within the segment. 

Surgical and Infection Prevention

S&IP net sales decreased 2% to $1.0 billion, a decrease of $18 million compared to last year. Volume gains from exam gloves 
were more than offset by volume losses in other product categories, particularly in surgical drapes and gowns, and price loss 
across all product categories, but particularly in exam gloves and sterilization.

Net Sales by Segment - 2015 Compared to 2014 

Net sales declined 6% to $1.6 billion compared to $1.7 billion in 2014 due to unfavorable currency exchange rates and lower 
pricing and volume resulting from an increasingly competitive environment in the S&IP segment. This decline was partially 
offset by higher volume in the Medical Devices segment. 

Medical Devices

Medical Devices net sales increased 2% to $510 million compared to $502 million in 2014 primarily due to higher volume in 
interventional pain due to healthy sales growth of COOLIEF, as well as growth in digestive health. The impacts were partially 
offset by lower volume in surgical pain and unfavorable currency exchange rates.

Surgical and Infection Prevention

S&IP net sales declined 10% to $1.0 billion compared to $1.1 billion in 2014. This decline was due to unfavorable currency 
exchange rates, lower pricing and volume particularly for exam gloves and sterilization wrap due to competitive pressure, and 
lower volume in facial protection and protective apparel primarily due to pandemic-related sales in 2014.
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  Year Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2016 2015   Change   2014   Change

Geography
North America........................................................................ $ 1,191.7   $ 1,193.9 (0.2)% $ 1,218.5 (2.0)%
EMEA .................................................................................... 200.6 197.4 1.6 234.9 (16.0)
Asia Pacific and Latin America ............................................. 200.0 183.1 9.2 218.7 (16.3)
Total Net Sales...................................................................... $ 1,592.3 $ 1,574.4 1.1 % $ 1,672.1 (5.8)%

Net Sales by Geographic Region - 2016 Compared to 2015 

North America net sales in 2016 were even compared to 2015. Net sales from the Corpak acquisition and volume gains across 
all Medical Device categories and exam gloves were offset by lower sales of non-woven materials, price loss in the S&IP 
business, particularly in gloves, and lower S&IP volume, particularly in surgical drapes and gowns.

Net sales in EMEA increased by 2% primarily due to incremental sales from the Corpak acquisition partially offset by 
unfavorable currency exchange rates and price loss in both the Medical Devices and S&IP segments.

In Asia Pacific and Latin America, sales increased by 9% primarily due to volume gains, particularly in exam gloves, and across 
all product categories in the Medical Devices business, partially offset by price loss in exam gloves and surgical drapes and 
gowns.

Net Sales by Geographic Region - 2015 Compared to 2014 

Net sales in North America decreased by 2% compared to 2014 primarily due to lower S&IP volume in surgical drapes and 
gowns and apparel and unfavorable pricing in exam gloves, partially offset by higher Medical Devices volume in interventional 
pain and digestive health.

Net sales in EMEA decreased by 16% compared to 2014 primarily due to unfavorable currency exchange rates and lower S&IP 
volume in surgical drapes and gowns partially offset by higher Medical Devices volume in digestive health.

In Asia Pacific and Latin America, net sales decreased by 16% compared to 2014 driven by unfavorable currency exchange 
rates, lower S&IP volume in surgical drapes and gowns and sterilization, unfavorable pricing in surgical drapes and gowns and 
exam gloves partially offset by higher exam glove volume.

Operating Profit (Loss) 

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 Change 2014 Change

Business Segment
Medical Devices..................................................................... $ 123.8 107.8 14.8% 104.6 3.1%
Surgical and Infection Prevention.......................................... 90.7 98.4 (7.8) 166.3 (40.8)
Corporate and Other(a)(b)......................................................... (108.8) (105.4) N.M. (180.4) N.M.
Goodwill impairment ............................................................. — (474.0) N.M. — N.M.
Other (expense) and income, net(c)(d) ..................................... (18.3) (4.5) N.M. 3.8 N.M.
Total Operating Profit (Loss).............................................. $ 87.4 $ (377.7) N.M. $ 94.3 N.M.
______________________________

(a) Corporate and Other for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes $65 million of general expenses, $22 million of post spin-related transition expenses,
$18 million of acquisition, integration and restructuring expenses related to the Acquisition (see “Business Acquisition” in Note 2 to the consolidated 
financial statements in Item 8 of this report) and $4 million of costs related to corporate sales.

(b) Corporate and Other for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes $47 million of general expenses, $55 million of post spin-related transition expenses 
and $3 million of costs related to corporate sales.

(c) Other (expense) income for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes $20 million related to litigation matters (see “Commitments and Contingencies in 
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report).

(d) Other (expense) income for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes $17 million related to litigation matters, as noted in (c) above, partially offset by a 
$12 million gain on the sale of an exam glove manufacturing facility in Thailand.

N.M. - Not meaningful.
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Operating (Loss) Profit - 2016 Compared to 2015 

In 2016, our consolidated operating profit was $87 million compared to an operating loss of $378 million. The prior year’s 
operating loss was driven primarily by a goodwill impairment charge of $474 million. Our operating profit is impacted by a 
number of items, as described previously in this MD&A under “Overview of Business.”

Medical Devices

Operating profit in the Medical Devices segment was 15% higher than last year. Operating profit benefited from the 
incremental net sales provided by the Corpak acquisition and volume gains across all product categories partially offset by 
increased research and development spending and higher selling expenses to drive future growth.

Surgical and Infection Prevention

S&IP operating profit decreased 8% primarily due to the factors described previously in “Net Sales by Segment” partially offset 
by favorable currency exchange rates and lower costs for manufacturing and distribution.

Operating Profit - 2015 Compared to 2014 

The operating loss in 2015 was driven by a $474 million goodwill impairment charge and continued net spin-related transition 
costs of $42 million. In 2014, “Corporate and Other” included charges of $60 million related to the exit from our glove 
manufacturing facility in Thailand, $89 million of pre-spin transaction charges associated with the Spin-off and incremental 
transition expenses of $12 million following the Spin-off.

Medical Devices

Operating profit in the Medical Devices business was 3% higher than 2014 primarily due to higher volume, manufacturing cost 
savings and lower general expenses related to lower intangible asset amortization expense partially offset by  expenses related 
to operating as a stand-alone company.

Surgical and Infection Prevention

Operating profit in the S&IP business was 41% lower than 2014 primarily due to pricing and volume challenges noted in the 
discussion of net sales along with unfavorable currency exchange rates and higher general expenses related to operating as a 
stand-alone company partially offset by favorable raw materials pricing, primarily for oil-based polymers.

Interest Income and Expense

Interest income was not material in the years ended December 31, 2016 or 2015 and was $3 million in 2014.

Interest expense was $33 million in each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 and $6 million in 2014. Interest 
expense consists primarily of interest and amortization of debt discount and issuance costs on our senior secured term loan and 
our senior unsecured notes. Interest expense in 2014 represents only two months of expense since our credit facilities were 
established late that year. See “Debt” in Note 6 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report 
for further discussion of our indebtedness.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $16 million in each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. Our effective tax rate 
was 28% in 2016. Our effective tax rate was (4)% in 2015 due primarily to goodwill impairment. Our effective tax rate was 
70% in 2014 due to spin-related foreign cash repatriation and non-deductible transaction costs. See “Income Taxes” in Note 7  
to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report.
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Unaudited Quarterly Data

2016 2015
(in millions, except per-share amounts) Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Net Sales ...................................... $ 410.0 $ 397.5 $ 400.0 $ 384.8 $ 401.4 $ 389.5 $ 389.3 $ 394.2
Gross Profit .................................. 142.7 138.0 140.7 136.5 133.6 131.0 134.9 132.1
Operating Profit (Loss)(a)(b)(c) ....... 15.8 20.9 17.6 33.1 20.5 (461.2) 22.1 40.9
Net Income (Loss)........................ 10.0 9.1 6.5 14.2 14.5 (470.5) 8.0 21.7
Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

Basic........................................ $ 0.21 $ 0.19 $ 0.14 $ 0.30 $ 0.31 $ (10.10) $ 0.17 $ 0.47
Diluted..................................... $ 0.21 $ 0.19 $ 0.14 $ 0.30 $ 0.31 $ (10.10) $ 0.17 $ 0.46

______________________________
(a) Operating profit in 2016 includes $21 million of spin-related transition costs, $20 million of costs related to legal expenses and litigation (see 

“Commitments and Contingencies” in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report) and $18 million of costs related to the 
acquisition of Medsystems (see “Business Acquisition” in Note 2. to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report).

(b) Operating profit (loss) in 2015 includes $42 million of net spin-related transition costs.
(c) Operating loss in the third quarter of 2015 includes an estimated goodwill impairment charge of $476 million. The goodwill impairment charge was 

reduced by $2 million when the goodwill impairment analysis was completed in the fourth quarter of 2015.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General 

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash on hand provided by operating activities and amounts available under our revolving 
credit facility. Cash provided by operations has been and is expected to remain a primary source of funds. Cash provided by 
operations has historically generated sufficient cash to fund our investments in working capital and capital expenditures. As of 
December 31, 2016, $59 million of our $114 million of cash and cash equivalents was held by foreign subsidiaries. We consider 
the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitely reinvested and currently do not have plans to repatriate 
such earnings. We do not expect restrictions on repatriation of cash held outside of the United States to have a material effect on 
our overall liquidity, financial condition or results of operations for the foreseeable future. We believe that our ability to 
generate cash from domestic and international operations and the borrowing capacity under our available credit facilities are 
adequate to fund our requirements for working capital, capital expenditures and other investments necessary to grow our 
business for the foreseeable future for both our domestic and international operations.

Cash and equivalents decreased by $16 million to $114 million as of December 31, 2016 compared to $130 million last year. 
The decrease was driven by $175 million used in our acquisition of Corpak and $29 million of capital expenditures partially 
offset by $189 million of cash provided by operating activities. The Corpak acquisition was initially funded with $103 million 
of available cash on hand and $72 million drawn from our revolving credit facility. The amount drawn from our revolving 
credit facility was repaid by the end of the year.

Cash and equivalents decreased by $19 million to $130 million as of December 31, 2015 compared to $149 million as of 
December 31, 2014. The decrease was driven primarily by $51 million of debt repayments, which includes a $50 million 
prepayment on our senior secured term loan, and $70 million of capital expenditures partially offset by $98 million of cash 
provided by operating activities.

The $105 million increase in cash and equivalents in the year ended December 31, 2014 reflects the cash flows of Kimberly-
Clark’s healthcare business through October 31, 2014 and the cash flows of Halyard Health as an independent stand-alone 
public company from November 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014. The Spin-off payment to Kimberly-Clark, net of transfers 
from Kimberly-Clark of $587 million, $79 million of capital expenditures, $14 million of debt repayments and $12 million paid 
for debt issuance costs were more than offset by $638 million of proceeds from the issuance of debt, $148 million of cash 
provided by operating activities and $8 million of proceeds from the sale of property. 

Operating Activities 

Operating activities provided $189 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $98 million in the prior year and 
was favorably impacted by improvements in working capital, particularly inventories and accrued expenses, resulting in a $92 
million benefit to our operating cash flow.
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Operating activities provided $98 million in the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to $148 million in 2014 primarily 
due to lower net income, excluding goodwill and asset impairments, and net cash invested in working capital.

Investing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the $201 million used in investing activities included the acquisition of Corpak for 
$175 million, net of cash acquired (see “Business Acquisition” in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of 
this report). Capital expenditures were $29 million, using cash on hand. As of December 31, 2016, we had an additional $6 
million of capital expenditures included in accounts payable and accrued expenses that are expected to be paid using cash on 
hand.

Investing activities used $63 million and $71 million in the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, consisting 
primarily of capital expenditures.

Financing Activities

During 2016, we borrowed and repaid $72 million on our revolving credit facility, and paid $1 million of debt issuance costs in 
conjunction with an amendment to our senior secured term loan facility (see discussion below and “Debt” in Note 6 to the 
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report).

Financing activities used $51 million in 2015, which consisted primarily of debt repayments. In 2014, financing activities 
provided $29 million consisting primarily of debt proceeds and contributions from Kimberly-Clark partially offset by the spin-
off cash distribution to Kimberly-Clark.

Long-Term Debt

As of December 31, 2016, total debt was $579 million, consisting of (i) $332 million, net of unamortized discount, on our 
senior secured term loan and (ii) $247 million, net of unamortized discount, on our senior unsecured notes.

Our senior secured term loan matures on October 31, 2021 (the “Term Loan Facility”) and is under a credit agreement that also 
includes a senior secured revolving credit facility that matures on October 31, 2019 which allows for borrowings up to $250 
million, with a letter of credit sub-facility in an amount of $75 million and a swingline sub-facility in an amount of $25 million 
(the “Revolving Credit Facility” and along with the Term Loan Facility, the “Senior Credit Facilities”). The Senior Credit 
Facilities allow for floating rate LIBOR or base rate loans. In December 2016, we executed an amendment to the Term Loan 
Facility (the “Amendment”), under which the margin, or “spread” that was charged over the available floating interest rates was 
reduced by 0.5%.

Funds under our Revolving Credit Facility are available for acquisitions, working capital or other requirements. On May 2, 
2016, we borrowed $72 million under our Revolving Credit Facility to partially fund our acquisition of Medsystems. See 
“Business Acquisition” in Note 2, to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report for a description of this 
acquisition. By December 31, 2016, we had repaid all of the borrowings on our Revolving Credit Facility. As of December 31, 
2016, we had no borrowings and letters of credit of $4 million outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, leaving $246 
million available for borrowing. 

We also have $250 million of senior unsecured notes that mature on October 15, 2022, bearing interest at a fixed interest rate of 
6.25% per annum with interest payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year.

For further information regarding our debt arrangements, see “Debt” in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 
8 of this report.

Obligations 

The following table presents our total contractual obligations for which cash flows are fixed or determinable as of 
December 31, 2016 (in millions): 
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Payments Due by Period

Total  
Less than

1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years
More than

5 Years

Debt .................................................................................................. $ 589.0   $ —   $ —   $ 339.0   $ 250.0
Interest payments on long-term debt ................................................ 152.0 27.6 55.4 53.4 15.6
Operating leases ............................................................................... 100.5    16.9    27.2    15.3    41.1
Open purchase orders(a) .................................................................... 222.4    196.7    25.4    0.3    —
Pension obligations .......................................................................... 7.7 0.3 0.6 1.1 5.7
Other commitments(b) ....................................................................... 28.2 5.6 5.2 3.3 14.1
Total contractual obligations ............................................................ $ 1,099.8   $ 247.1   $ 113.8   $ 412.4   $ 326.5

______________________________
(a) The open purchase orders displayed in the table represent amounts that we anticipate will become payable within the next year for goods and services that

we have negotiated for delivery. The table does not include payments that are discretionary or for which timing is uncertain.
(b) Other commitments consists primarily of lease executory costs for insurance, maintenance and taxes on leased properties of $22 million and uncertain tax

positions of $3 million. See “Income Taxes” in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net sales and expenses during the reporting period. 
The critical accounting policies we used in the preparation of the consolidated and combined financial statements are those that 
are important both to the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations and require significant judgments by 
management with regard to estimates used. The critical judgments by management relate to distributor rebate accruals, future 
cash flows associated with impairment testing for goodwill and long-lived assets, loss contingencies and deferred income taxes 
and potential tax assessments. 

Recently Adopted and Issued Pronouncements 

See “Accounting Policies” in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report for recently adopted and 
recently issued accounting pronouncements.

Use of Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP, which requires that we make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of net sales and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things, 
distributor rebate accruals, future cash flows associated with impairment testing for goodwill and long-lived assets, loss 
contingencies, and deferred tax assets and potential income tax assessments. Actual results could differ from these estimates, 
and the effect of the change could be material to our financial statements. Changes in these estimates are recorded when known.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Sales revenue is recognized at the time of product shipment or delivery, depending on when title passes, to unaffiliated 
customers, and when all of the following have occurred: evidence of a sales arrangement is in place, pricing is fixed or 
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Sales are reported net of returns, rebates and freight allowed. Distributor 
rebates are estimated based on the historical cost difference between list prices and average end-user contract prices and the 
quantity of products expected to be sold to specific end users. We maintain liabilities at the end of each period for the estimated 
rebate costs incurred but unpaid for these programs. Differences between estimated and actual rebate costs are normally not 
material and are recognized in earnings in the period such differences are determined. Rebate accruals were $56 million and 
$74 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Taxes imposed by governmental authorities on our revenue-
producing activities with customers, such as sales taxes and value-added taxes, are excluded from net sales.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever events and circumstances indicate that impairment may have 
occurred. We completed the required annual goodwill impairment testing as of July 1, 2016, and the fair values for both our 
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Medical Devices and S&IP reporting units were substantially in excess of their respective net asset carrying values. See 
“Goodwill” in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report for further discussion.

The evaluation of goodwill involves comparing the current fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value, including 
goodwill. We used a combination of income and market approaches to estimate the current fair value of our reporting units. The 
fair value determination utilized key assumptions regarding the growth of the business, each of which required management 
judgment, including estimated future sales volumes, selling prices and costs, changes in working capital and investments in 
property and equipment. These assumptions and estimates were based upon our historical experience and projections of future 
activity. In addition, the selection of the discount rate used to determine fair value was based upon a market participant’s view 
considering current market rates and our current cost of financing. There can be no assurance that the assumptions and 
estimates made for purposes of the annual goodwill impairment test will prove to be accurate. Volatility in the equity and debt 
markets, or increases in interest rates, could result in a higher discount rate. Changes in sales volumes, selling prices and costs 
of goods sold, additional stand-alone public company costs, and increases in interest rates could cause changes in our forecasted 
cash flows. Unfavorable changes in any of the factors described above could result in a goodwill impairment charge in the 
future. 

As of December 31, 2016 we had $6 million of indefinite-lived intangible assets, which we acquired in connection with our 
acquisition of Corpak and represents IPR&D projects that we expect to launch in 2017.

As of December 31, 2016, we had intangible assets with finite useful lives with a gross carrying amount of $433 million and a 
net carrying amount of $164 million. These intangibles are being amortized over their estimated useful lives and are tested for 
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. If the carrying amount of an 
intangible asset is not recoverable based on estimated future undiscounted cash flows, an impairment loss would be indicated. 
The amount of the impairment loss to be recorded would be based on the excess of the carrying amount of the intangible asset 
over its fair value (based on discounted future cash flows). Judgment is used in assessing whether the carrying amount of 
intangible assets is not expected to be recoverable over their estimated remaining useful lives. The factors considered are 
similar to those outlined in the goodwill impairment discussion above.

Loss Contingencies 

The outcome of loss contingencies and legal proceedings and claims brought against us is subject to uncertainty. An estimated 
loss contingency is accrued by a charge to earnings if it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been 
incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Determination of whether to accrue a loss requires evaluation of the 
probability of an unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate. Changes in these estimates could affect the 
timing and amount of accrual of loss contingencies. 

Income Taxes

We recognize tax benefits in our financial statements when our uncertain tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained 
upon audit. The amount we recognize is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being 
realized upon ultimate settlement.

We recognize deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences, operating loss carry-forwards and tax credit carry-
forwards. We record valuation allowances to reduce deferred tax assets to amounts that are more likely than not to be realized. 
In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we consider both positive and negative evidence related to the likelihood of 
realization of the deferred tax assets. The weight given to the positive and negative evidence is commensurate with the extent to 
which the evidence may be objectively verified. As such, it is generally difficult for positive evidence regarding projected future 
taxable income exclusive of reversing taxable temporary differences to outweigh objective negative evidence of recent financial 
reporting losses. This assessment, which is completed on a taxing jurisdiction basis, takes into account a number of types of 
evidence, including the nature, frequency, and severity of current and cumulative financial reporting losses, sources of future 
taxable income, taxable income in prior carryback year(s) and tax planning strategies.

If it is determined that we would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of our net recorded amount, an 
adjustment to the net deferred tax asset would increase income in the period that such determination was made. Likewise, 
should we determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of the net deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to 
the net deferred tax asset would decrease income in the period such determination was made. We regularly evaluate the need for 
valuation allowances against its deferred tax assets.
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Prior to the Spin-off, for purposes of the consolidated financial statements, our operations were included in Kimberly-Clark’s 
consolidated U.S. federal and state income tax returns and some of its foreign income tax returns. The provision for income 
taxes and related deferred tax balances were estimated as if we filed income tax returns on a stand-alone basis separate from 
Kimberly-Clark.

Legal Matters 

We are subject to various legal proceedings, claims and governmental inspections, audits or investigations pertaining to issues 
such as contract disputes, product liability, tax matters, patents and trademarks, advertising, governmental regulations, 
employment and other matters, including the matters described below. Under the terms of the distribution agreement we entered 
into with Kimberly-Clark prior to the Spin-off, legal proceedings, claims and other liabilities that are primarily related to our 
business are our responsibility and we are obligated to indemnify and hold Kimberly-Clark harmless for such matters 
(“Indemnification Obligation”). For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we have incurred $20 million and $17 
million, respectively, related to these matters.

The only exception to the Indemnification Obligation relates to the pain pump litigation referenced in this paragraph. We are 
one of several manufacturers of continuous infusion medical devices, such as our ON-Q PAINBUSTER pain pumps, that are 
involved in several different pending or threatened litigation matters from multiple plaintiffs alleging that use of the continuous 
infusion device to deliver anesthetics directly into a synovial joint after surgery resulted in postarthroscopic glenohumeral 
chondrolysis, or a disintegration of the cartilage covering the bones in the joint (typically, in the shoulder). Plaintiffs generally 
seek monetary damages and attorneys’ fees. While Kimberly-Clark is retaining the liabilities related to these matters, the 
distribution agreement between us and Kimberly-Clark provides that we will indemnify Kimberly-Clark for any such claims or 
causes of actions arising after the Spin-off. 

We have an Indemnification Obligation for, and have assumed the defense of, the matter styled Bahamas Surgery Center, LLC 
v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation and Halyard Health, Inc., No. 2:14-cv-08390-DMG-SH (C.D. Cal.) (“Bahamas”), filed on 
October 29, 2014. In that case, the plaintiff brings a putative class action asserting claims for common law fraud (affirmative 
misrepresentation and fraudulent concealment) and violation of California’s Unfair Competition Law in connection with our 
marketing and sale of MicroCool surgical gowns. On June 1, 2016, the plaintiff moved for class certification of a California-
only damages class and a California-only injunctive relief class. Although the plaintiff did not also move for certification of a 
nationwide class to determine liability, damages, or injunctive relief, it did move for certification of a nationwide “issue” class 
purporting to resolve certain issues allegedly “common” to members of that class. On July 8, 2016, we moved for summary 
judgment. On November 8, 2016, the court granted in part and denied in part the plaintiff’s motion for class certification. The 
court certified a California-only class for damages and injunctive relief arising from fraud by omission, but it rejected 
certification of a California-only class arising from affirmative fraud, and it also rejected certification of a nationwide “issue” 
class. The court also rejected the plaintiff’s request for “full restitution” damages, meaning the full value of the gowns. Instead, 
the court found any damages would be based on the difference between the purchase price of the gowns and what the purchase 
price would have been for gowns with no AAMI rating. On November 15, 2016, the court denied our motion for summary 
judgment. The parties remain engaged in discovery. The trial is scheduled to begin on March 28, 2017. We intend to continue 
our vigorous defense of the matter.

In June 2015, we were served with a subpoena from the Department of Veterans Affairs Office of the Inspector General (“VA 
OIG”) seeking information related to the design, manufacture, testing, sale and promotion of MicroCool and other Company 
surgical gowns, and, in July 2015, we also became aware that the subpoena and an earlier VA OIG subpoena served on 
Kimberly-Clark requesting information about gown sales to the federal government are related to a United States Department of 
Justice (“DOJ”) investigation. In May 2016, we were also served with a subpoena from the Department of Justice seeking 
further information related to Company gowns. The Company is cooperating with the VA OIG’s request and the DOJ 
investigation.

On October 12, 2016, after the DOJ submitted filings on behalf of itself and various States declining to intervene in two qui tam 
matters, both matters were unsealed. One of those matters is U.S. ex rel. Shahinian, et al. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, No. 
2:14-cv-08313-JAK-JPR (C. D. Cal.) (“Shahinian”), filed on October 27, 2014. The other of those matters is U.S. ex rel. 
Edgett, et al. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, Halyard Health, Inc., et al, No. 3:15-cv-00434-B (N.D. Tex.) (“Edgett”), filed on 
February 9, 2015. Both cases allege, among other things, violations of both the federal and state False Claims Acts in 
connection with the marketing and sale of certain surgical gowns. On November 7, 2016, Dr. Shahinian served his complaint on 
Kimberly-Clark, and on February 6, 2017, he served an amended complaint on Kimberly-Clark. On January 9, 2017, Mr. Edgett 
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served his complaint on both Kimberly-Clark and Halyard Health. We may have an Indemnification Obligation for the two 
matters under the distribution agreement with Kimberly-Clark. We intend to vigorously defend the cases.

We were served with a complaint in a matter styled Jackson v. Halyard Health, Inc., Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et 
al., No. 1:16-cv-05093-LTS (S.D.N.Y.), filed on June 28, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff brings a putative class action against 
the Company, our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer and other defendants, asserting claims for violations of 
the Securities Exchange Act, Sections 10(b) and 20(a). The plaintiff alleges that the defendants made misrepresentations and 
failed to disclose certain information about the safety and effectiveness of our MicroCool gowns and thereby artificially inflated 
the Company’s stock prices during the respective class periods. The alleged class period for purchasers of Kimberly-Clark 
securities who subsequently received Halyard Health securities is February 25, 2013 to October 21, 2014, and the alleged class 
period for purchasers of Halyard Health securities is October 21, 2014 to April 29, 2016. On February 16, 2017, we moved to 
dismiss the case. We intend to continue our vigorous defense of this matter.

We were also served with a complaint in a matter styled Margaret C. Richardson Trustee of the Survivors Trust Dated 6/12/84 
for the Benefit of the H&M Richardson Revocable Trust v. Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et al., No. 1:16-cv-06296 (S. 
D. N. Y.) (“Richardson”), filed on August 9, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff sues derivatively on behalf of Halyard Health, Inc., 
and alleges that the defendants breached their fiduciary duty, were unjustly enriched, and violated Section 14(A) of the 
Securities and Exchange Act in connection with Halyard Health, Inc.’s marketing and sale of MicroCool gowns. We were also 
served with a complaint in a matter styled Kai Chiu v. Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et al, No. 2:16-cv-08768 (C.D. 
Cal.), filed on November 23, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff sues derivatively on behalf of Halyard Health, Inc., and makes 
allegations and brings causes of action similar to those in Richardson, but the plaintiff also adds causes of action for abuse of 
control, gross mismanagement, and waste of corporate assets. We intend to vigorously defend these matters.

We were also served with a complaint in the matter styled Medline Industries, Inc. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, Halyard 
Health, Inc., et al., No. 2:16-cv-08571 (C. D. Cal.). In that case, the plaintiff makes allegations similar to those in Bahamas, 
Shahinian, and Edgett, and brings causes of action under federal and state false advertising laws and state unfair competition 
laws. We may have an Indemnification Obligation for this matter under the distribution agreement with Kimberly-Clark. We 
intend to vigorously defend it.

We operate in an industry characterized by extensive patent litigation and competitors may claim that our products infringe 
upon their intellectual property. Resolution of patent litigation or other intellectual property claims is typically time consuming 
and costly and can result in significant damage awards and injunctions that could prevent the manufacture and sale of the 
affected products or require us to make significant royalty payments in order to continue selling the affected products. At any 
given time we may be involved as either a plaintiff or a defendant in a number of patent infringement actions, the outcomes of 
which may not be known for prolonged periods of time.

We maintain general and professional liability, product liability and other insurance in an amount that we believe is reasonably 
adequate to insulate us from material liability for claims. However, our insurance policies may not cover all of these matters 
and may not fully cover liabilities arising out of these matters. In addition, we may be obligated to indemnify our directors and 
officers against these matters. Although the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we believe that 
the ultimate disposition of these matters, to the extent not previously provided for, will not have a material adverse effect, 
individually or in the aggregate, on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. However the above matters, 
regardless of the outcome, could disrupt our business and result in substantial costs and diversion of management attention. As 
of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we have an accrued liability which management believes is adequate for the matters described 
herein. The accrued liability is included in “Accrued Expenses” in the consolidated balance sheet in Item 8 of this report.

We are subject to federal, state and local environmental protection laws and regulations with respect to our business operations 
and are operating in compliance with, or taking action aimed at ensuring compliance with, these laws and regulations. None of 
our compliance obligations with environmental protection laws and regulations, individually or in the aggregate, is expected to 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Information Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K and other materials we have filed or furnished or will file or furnish with the SEC (as well as 
information included in our oral or other written statements) contain, or will contain, certain “forward-looking statements,” 
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, regarding business strategies, market potential, 
future financial performance and other matters. Forward-looking statements include all statements that do not relate solely to 
historical or current facts, and can generally be identified by the use of words such as “may,” “believe,” “will,” “expect,” 
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“project,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “plan” or “continue” and similar expressions, among others. The matters discussed in these 
forward-looking statements are based on the current plans and expectations of our management and are subject to certain risks 
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected, anticipated or implied in the forward-
looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to:

• general economic conditions particularly in the United States,

• fluctuations in global equity and fixed-income markets,

• the competitive environment,

• the loss of current customers or the inability to obtain new customers,

• litigation and enforcement actions,

• price fluctuations in key commodities,

• fluctuations in currency exchange rates,

• disruption in supply of raw materials or the distribution of finished goods,

• changes in governmental regulations that are applicable to our business,

• changes in asset valuations including write-downs of assets such as inventory, accounts receivable or other assets for
impairment or other reasons, and

• the other matters described under “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.”

Where, in any forward-looking statement, an expectation or belief as to future results or events is expressed, such expectation 
or belief is based on the current plans and expectations of our management and expressed in good faith and believed to have a 
reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the expectation or belief will result or be achieved or accomplished. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to risks such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. A variety of practices are 
employed to manage these risks, including derivative instruments where deemed appropriate. Derivative instruments are used 
only for risk management purposes and not for speculation. All foreign currency derivative instruments are entered into with 
major financial institutions. Our credit exposure under these arrangements is limited to agreements with a positive fair value at 
the reporting date. Credit risk with respect to the counterparties is actively monitored but is not considered significant. 

Presented below is a description of our risk together with a sensitivity analysis, performed annually, based on selected changes 
in market rates and prices. These analyses reflect management’s view of changes which are reasonably possible to occur over a 
one-year period. Also included is a description of our commodity price risk. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is managed by the systematic use of foreign currency forward and swap contracts for a limited portion of 
our exposure. The use of these instruments allows the management of transactional exposures to exchange rate fluctuations 
because the gains or losses incurred on the derivative instruments will offset, in whole or in part, losses or gains on the 
underlying foreign currency exposure. 

Foreign currency contracts and transactional exposures are sensitive to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. An annual 
test is performed to quantify the effects that possible changes in foreign currency exchange rates would have on annual 
operating profit based on our foreign currency contracts and transactional exposures at the current year-end. The balance sheet 
effect is calculated by multiplying each affiliate’s net monetary asset or liability position by a 10% change in the foreign 
currency exchange rate versus the U.S. dollar. The results of these sensitivity tests are presented in the following paragraph. 

As of December 31, 2016, a 10% unfavorable change in the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar against the prevailing market rates 
of foreign currencies involving balance sheet transactional exposures would have an effect of $2 million to our consolidated 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. These hypothetical losses on transactional exposures are based on the 
difference between the December 31, 2016 rates and the assumed rates. 
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The translation of the balance sheets of non-U.S. operations from local currencies into U.S. dollars is also sensitive to changes 
in foreign currency exchange rates. Consequently, an annual test is performed to determine if changes in currency exchange 
rates would have a significant effect on the translation of the balance sheets of non-U.S. operations into U.S. dollars. These 
translation gains or losses are recorded as unrealized translation adjustments (“UTA”) within stockholders’ equity. The 
hypothetical change in UTA is calculated by multiplying the net assets of these non-U.S. operations by a 10% change in the 
currency exchange rates. 

As of December 31, 2016, a 10% unfavorable change in the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar against the prevailing market rates 
of our foreign currency translation exposures would have reduced stockholders’ equity by approximately $21 million. These 
hypothetical adjustments in UTA are based on the difference between the December 31, 2016 exchange rates and the assumed 
rates. In the view of management, the above UTA adjustments resulting from these assumed changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates are not material to our consolidated financial position because they would not affect our cash flow. 

Commodity Price Risk 

We are subject to commodity price risk, the most significant of which relates to the price of polypropylene and nitrile. As 
previously discussed under “Risk Factors,” increases in commodities prices could adversely affect our earnings if selling prices 
are not adjusted or if such adjustments significantly trail the increases in commodities prices.

Our energy, manufacturing and transportation costs are affected by various market factors including the availability of supplies 
of particular forms of energy, energy prices and local and national regulatory decisions. As previously discussed in “Risk 
Factors,” there can be no assurance we will be fully protected against substantial changes in the price or availability of energy 
sources. In addition, we are subject to price risk for utilities and manufacturing inputs, which are used in our manufacturing 
operations.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Senior Secured Term Loan with a remaining face value of $339 million is subject to a variable interest rate based on 
LIBOR, subject to a floor of 0.75%. As of December 31, 2016, a one percentage point increase in LIBOR would result in $3 
million of incremental interest expense.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
 
HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Net Sales (including related party sales in 2014 of $78.7) .................................. $ 1,592.3 $ 1,574.4 $ 1,672.1
Cost of products sold (including related party purchases in 2014 of $72.5) .... 1,034.4 1,042.8 1,123.5

Gross Profit............................................................................................................. 557.9 531.6 548.6
Research and development ............................................................................... 41.1 32.3 33.6
Selling and general expenses ............................................................................ 411.1 398.5 424.5
Goodwill impairment........................................................................................ — 474.0 —
Other expense and (income), net ...................................................................... 18.3 4.5 (3.8)

Operating Profit (Loss).......................................................................................... 87.4 (377.7) 94.3
Interest income.................................................................................................. 0.6 0.3 2.9
Interest expense ................................................................................................ (32.7) (33.1) (6.0)

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes..................................................................... 55.3 (410.5) 91.2
Income tax provision ........................................................................................ (15.5) (15.8) (64.1)

Net Income (Loss) .................................................................................................. $ 39.8 $ (426.3) $ 27.1

Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic ................................................................................................................. $ 0.85 $ (9.15) $ 0.58
Diluted .............................................................................................................. $ 0.85 $ (9.15) $ 0.58

 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Net Income (Loss) .................................................................................................. $ 39.8 $ (426.3) $ 27.1
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax

Defined benefit plans ......................................................................................... 0.6 (1.3) (0.4)
Unrealized currency translation adjustments ..................................................... (8.3) (22.1) (14.0)

 Cash flow hedges ............................................................................................... 0.8 (0.7) 3.6
Total Other Comprehensive Loss, Net of Tax...................................................... (6.9) (24.1) (10.8)
Comprehensive Income (Loss).............................................................................. $ 32.9 $ (450.4) $ 16.3

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents ..................................................................................................... $ 113.7 $ 129.5
Accounts receivable, net of allowances ................................................................................. 190.1 224.7
Inventories.............................................................................................................................. 272.5 303.2
Prepaid and other current assets............................................................................................. 17.2 18.6

Total Current Assets..................................................................................................... 593.5 676.0
Property, Plant and Equipment, net.......................................................................................... 260.8 279.5
Goodwill ....................................................................................................................................... 1,029.0 945.2
Other Intangible Assets, net ....................................................................................................... 169.8 82.6
Deferred Tax Assets..................................................................................................................... 15.1 14.9
Other Assets ................................................................................................................................. 3.6 2.0

TOTAL ASSETS............................................................................................... $ 2,071.8 $ 2,000.2

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Trade accounts payable.......................................................................................................... $ 173.1 $ 163.2
Accrued expenses................................................................................................................... 151.3 152.0

Total Current Liabilities............................................................................................... 324.4 315.2
Long-Term Debt.......................................................................................................................... 579.0 578.1
Deferred Tax Liabilities.............................................................................................................. 35.8 23.8
Other Long-Term Liabilities...................................................................................................... 30.1 27.8

Total Liabilities ............................................................................................................. 969.3 944.9

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock - $0.01 par value - authorized 20,000,000 shares, none issued .................... — —
Common stock - $0.01 par value - authorized 300,000,000 shares, 46,681,798

outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 46,614,947 outstanding at December 31, 2015 ... 0.5 0.5
Additional paid-in capital ...................................................................................................... 1,533.2 1,518.0
Accumulated deficit ............................................................................................................... (379.2) (419.0)
Treasury stock........................................................................................................................ (1.9) (1.0)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss................................................................................. (50.1) (43.2)

Total Stockholders’ Equity........................................................................................... 1,102.5 1,055.3
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY........................ $ 2,071.8 $ 2,000.2

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in millions, shares in thousands)

Common Stock
Issued Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Kimberly-
Clark’s Net
Investment

Retained
Earnings

(Accumulated 
Deficit)

Treasury Stock
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders’

EquityShares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at December 31, 2013............................ — $ — $ — $ 2,098.7 $ — — $ — $ (19.6) $ 2,079.1
Net income .......................................................... — — — 19.8 7.3 — — — 27.1
Change in Kimberly-Clark’s investment, net...... — — — 61.9 — — — 11.3 73.2
Spin-off cash distribution to Kimberly-Clark...... — — — (680.0) — — — — (680.0)
Issuance of common stock and consummation

of Spin-off ......................................................... 46,536 0.5 1,499.9 (1,500.4) — — — — —
Stock-based compensation expense .................... — — 2.6 — — — — — 2.6
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax .................. — — — — — — — (10.8) (10.8)
Balance at December 31, 2014............................ 46,536 0.5 1,502.5 — 7.3 — — (19.1) 1,491.2
Net loss ................................................................ — — — — (426.3) — — — (426.3)
Issuance of common stock upon the exercise or
redemption of share-based awards ...................... 79 — 1.4 — — — — — 1.4
Stock-based compensation expense .................... — — 14.1 — — — — — 14.1
Purchases of treasury stock ................................. — — — — — 21 (1.0) — (1.0)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax .................. — — — — — — — (24.1) (24.1)
Balance at December 31, 2015............................ 46,615 0.5 1,518.0 — (419.0) 21 (1.0) (43.2) 1,055.3
Net income .......................................................... — — — — 39.8 — — — 39.8
Issuance of common stock upon the exercise or
redemption of share-based awards ...................... 67 — 0.4 — — — — — 0.4
Stock-based compensation expense .................... — — 14.8 — — — — — 14.8
Purchases of treasury stock ................................. — — — — — 32 (0.9) — (0.9)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax .................. — — — — — — — (6.9) (6.9)
Balance at December 31, 2016............................ 46,682 $ 0.5 $ 1,533.2 $ — $ (379.2) 53 $ (1.9) $ (50.1) $ 1,102.5

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Operating Activities
Net income (loss)............................................................................................................ $ 39.8 $ (426.3) $ 27.1
Depreciation and amortization ....................................................................................... 65.2 65.4 85.4
Stock-based compensation ............................................................................................. 14.8 14.1 7.9
Goodwill impairment ..................................................................................................... — 474.0 —
Asset impairment............................................................................................................ — — 41.9
Net losses (gains) on asset dispositions.......................................................................... 3.7 (6.7) 6.7
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition

Accounts receivable ................................................................................................... 8.4 9.0 15.1
Inventories, net of allowance...................................................................................... 41.0 (20.2) (2.9)
Prepaid expenses and other assets .............................................................................. 1.7 (6.0) (4.8)
Accounts payable ....................................................................................................... 6.5 14.7 4.5
Accrued expenses ....................................................................................................... 34.0 (14.5) 0.9

Deferred income taxes and other.................................................................................... (26.3) (5.9) (33.9)
Cash Provided by Operating Activities .............................................................. 188.8 97.6 147.9

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures ....................................................................................................... (29.1) (70.4) (78.5)
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired ................................................................ (175.0) — —
Proceeds from dispositions of property.......................................................................... 3.2 7.8 7.8

Cash Used in Investing Activities........................................................................ (200.9) (62.6) (70.7)
Financing Activities

Line of credit facility proceeds....................................................................................... 72.0 — —
Line of credit facility repayments .................................................................................. (72.0) — —
Debt proceeds ................................................................................................................. — — 638.0
Debt issuance costs......................................................................................................... (0.9) — (11.8)
Debt repayments............................................................................................................. — (51.0) (13.8)
Purchase of treasury stock.............................................................................................. (0.9) (1.0) —
Proceeds and excess tax benefits from the exercise of stock options ............................ 0.4 1.4 —
Spin-off cash distribution to Kimberly-Clark ................................................................ — — (680.0)
Net transfers from Kimberly-Clark ................................................................................ — — 93.3
Other............................................................................................................................... — — 3.5

Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities .............................................. (1.4) (50.6) 29.2
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents .................................. (2.3) (3.9) (1.5)
(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents .......................................................... (15.8) (19.5) 104.9
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year............................................................... 129.5 149.0 44.1
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year......................................................................... $ 113.7 $ 129.5 $ 149.0

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure:
Cash paid for income taxes ............................................................................................ $ 29.1 $ 43.3 $ 87.6
Cash paid for interest...................................................................................................... $ 29.9 $ 32.6 $ —

Supplemental Noncash Disclosure
Capital expenditures included in accounts payable or accrued expenses ...................... $ 5.8 $ 5.6 $ 21.5

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Accounting Policies

Background and Basis of Presentation

Halyard Health, Inc. is a medical technology company focused on eliminating pain, speeding recovery and preventing infection 
for healthcare providers and patients. We are committed to addressing some of today’s most important healthcare needs, such as 
reducing the use of opioids while helping patients move from surgery to recovery. We operate in two business segments: 
Medical Devices and Surgical and Infection Prevention (“S&IP”). 

References to “Halyard,” “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Halyard Health, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, and 
references to “Kimberly-Clark” mean Kimberly-Clark Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries, unless the 
context otherwise requires.

On October 31, 2014, Kimberly-Clark distributed all of our capital stock to its shareholders and completed a previously 
announced spin-off of its healthcare division (the “Spin-off”). Halyard was incorporated as a Delaware corporation in February, 
2014 in anticipation of that Spin-off and Kimberly-Clark transferred its Health Care business to us prior to the Spin-off.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 represent our financial 
position, results of operations and cash flows as an independent publicly-traded company. The consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2014 represent our results of operations and cash flows as an independent publicly-traded 
company beginning on November 1, 2014, and a combined reporting entity comprising the financial position, results of 
operations and cash flows of Kimberly-Clark’s healthcare business prior to November 1, 2014. The consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”).

For periods prior to the Spin-off, cash transferred to and from Kimberly-Clark is presented as net transfers to or from Kimberly-
Clark in the accompanying consolidated cash flow statements. 

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include our net assets and results of our operations and cash flows as described above. All 
intercompany transactions and accounts within our consolidated businesses have been eliminated. 

Prior to November 1, 2014, the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows 
were prepared on a combined stand-alone basis derived from Kimberly-Clark’s consolidated financial statements and 
accounting records. All transactions between Kimberly-Clark and us were included in the combined financial statements and 
are reflected in the cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2014 as net transfers to or from Kimberly-Clark within 
financing activities.

Use of Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP, which requires that we make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of net sales and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things, 
distributor rebate accruals, future cash flows associated with impairment testing for goodwill and long-lived assets, loss 
contingencies, and deferred tax assets and potential income tax assessments. Actual results could differ from these estimates, 
and the effect of the change could be material to our financial statements. Changes in these estimates are recorded when known.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments with an original maturity date of three months or less. We maintain cash balances 
and short-term investments in excess of insurable limits in a diversified group of major banks that are selected and monitored 
based on ratings by the major rating agencies in accordance with our treasury policy.
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Inventories and Distribution Costs

Most U.S. inventories are valued at the lower of cost, using the Last-In, First-Out (“LIFO”) method, or market. The balance of 
the U.S. and non-U.S. inventories are valued at the lower of cost (determined on the First-In, First-Out (“FIFO”) or weighted-
average cost methods) or market. Distribution costs are classified as cost of products sold.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated on the straight-line method. Buildings are depreciated over 
their estimated useful lives, primarily 40 years. Machinery and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, 
primarily ranging from 16 to 20 years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the assets’ estimated useful lives, or the 
remaining lease term, whichever is shorter. Purchases of computer software, including external costs and certain internal costs 
(including payroll and payroll-related costs of employees) directly associated with developing significant computer software 
applications for internal use, are capitalized. Computer software costs are amortized on the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful life of the software, which is generally three to five years. Depreciation expense is recorded in cost of products 
sold, research and development and selling and general expenses.

Estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed, and when warranted, changes are made to them. Long-lived assets are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss would be indicated when estimated undiscounted future cash flows from the use and eventual 
disposition of an asset group, which are identifiable and largely independent of the cash flows of other asset groups, are less 
than the carrying amount of the asset group. Measurement of an impairment loss would be based on the excess of the carrying 
amount of the asset group over its fair value. Fair value is measured using discounted cash flows or independent appraisals, as 
appropriate. When property is sold or retired, the cost of the property and the related accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the consolidated balance sheet and any gain or loss on the transaction is included in income.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever events and circumstances indicate that impairment may have 
occurred. The evaluation of goodwill involves comparing the current fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value, 
including goodwill. We used a combination of income and market approaches to estimate the current fair value of our reporting 
units. The fair value determination utilized key assumptions regarding the growth of the business, each of which required 
management judgment, including estimated future sales volumes, selling prices and costs, changes in working capital and 
investments in property and equipment. These assumptions and estimates were based upon our historical experience and 
projections of future activity. In addition, the selection of the discount rate used to determine fair value was based upon a 
market participant’s view considering current market rates and our current cost of financing. There can be no assurance that the 
assumptions and estimates made for purposes of the annual goodwill impairment test will prove to be accurate. Volatility in the 
equity and debt markets, or increases in interest rates, could result in a higher discount rate. Changes in sales volumes, selling 
prices and costs of goods sold and increases in interest rates could cause changes in our forecasted cash flows. Unfavorable 
changes in any of the factors described above could result in a goodwill impairment charge in the future. We completed the 
required annual goodwill impairment testing as of July 1, 2016, and the fair values for both our Medical Devices and S&IP 
reporting units were substantially in excess of their respective net asset carrying values.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Estimated useful lives range from 7 to 
30 years for trademarks, 7 to 17 years for patents and acquired technologies, and 2 to 16 years for other intangible assets. An 
impairment loss would be indicated when estimated undiscounted future cash flows from the use of the asset are less than its 
carrying amount. An impairment loss would be measured as the difference between the fair value (based on discounted future 
cash flows) and the carrying amount of the asset.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Sales revenue is recognized at the time of product shipment or delivery, depending on when title passes, to unaffiliated 
customers, and when all of the following have occurred: evidence of a sales arrangement is in place, pricing is fixed or 
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Sales are reported net of returns, rebates and freight allowed. Distributor 
rebates are estimated based on the historical cost difference between list prices and average end user contract prices and the 
quantity of products expected to be sold to specific end users. We maintain liabilities at the end of each period for the estimated 
rebate costs incurred but unpaid for these programs. Differences between estimated and actual rebate costs are normally not 
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material and are recognized in earnings in the period such differences are determined. Taxes imposed by governmental 
authorities on our revenue-producing activities with customers, such as sales taxes and value-added taxes, are excluded from 
net sales.

Net sales to one customer accounted for 11%, 18% and 19%, respectively, of net sales in 2016, 2015 and 2014. No other 
customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales in any of the periods presented herein. As of December 31, 2016, we had 
one customer who individually accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated accounts receivable balance. There were no 
customers that individually accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated accounts receivable balance in 2015.

The allowances for doubtful accounts, sales discounts and returns were $2 million as of each year ended December 31, 2016 
and 2015, respectively. The provision for doubtful accounts was not material for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 
2014.

Foreign Currency Translation

The income statements of foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at rates of exchange in effect each month. The 
balance sheets of these operations are translated at period-end exchange rates, and the differences from historical exchange rates 
are reflected as unrealized translation adjustments in other comprehensive income.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging

All derivative instruments are recorded as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of 
derivatives are either recorded in the income statement or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. The effective portion of 
the gain or loss on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges is included in other comprehensive income in the period that 
changes in fair value occur, and is reclassified to income in the same period that the hedged item affects income. Any 
ineffective portion of cash flow hedges is immediately recognized in income. Certain foreign-currency derivative instruments 
not designated as hedging instruments have been entered into to manage a portion of our foreign currency transactional 
exposures. The gain or loss on these derivatives is included in income in the period that changes in their fair values occur. Our 
policies allow the use of derivatives for risk management purposes and prohibit their use for speculation. Our policies also 
prohibit the use of any leveraged derivative instrument. Consistent with our policies, foreign currency derivative instruments 
are entered into with major financial institutions. At inception we formally designate certain derivatives as cash flow hedges 
and establish how the effectiveness of these hedges will be assessed and measured. This process links the derivatives to the 
transactions they are hedging. See Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments,” for disclosures about derivative instruments 
and hedging activities.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses are expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries 
and related expenses for personnel, product trial costs, outside laboratory and license fees, the costs of laboratory equipment 
and facilities and asset write-offs for equipment that does not reach success in product manufacturing certifications.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have a stock-based Equity Participation Plan and an Outside Directors’ Compensation Plan that provide for awards of stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock (and in certain limited cases, unrestricted stock), restricted stock units, 
performance units and cash awards to eligible employees (including officers who are employees), directors, advisors and 
consultants. Stock-based compensation is initially measured at the fair value of the awards on the grant date and is recognized 
in the financial statements over the period the employees are required to provide services in exchange for the awards. The fair 
value of option awards is measured on the grant date using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of time-based 
and some performance-based restricted share awards is based on the Halyard stock price at the grant date and the assessed 
probability of meeting future performance targets. For performance-based restricted share units for which vesting is conditioned 
upon achieving a measure of total shareholder return, fair value is measured using a Monte Carlo simulation. Generally, new 
shares are issued to satisfy vested restricted stock units and exercises of stock options. See Note 10, “Stock-Based 
Compensation.”

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method of accounting, which requires the recognition of deferred tax 
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities. Under this method, changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in income in the period such 
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changes are enacted. The provision for federal, state, and foreign income taxes is calculated on income before income taxes 
based on current tax law and includes the cumulative effect of any changes in tax rates from those used previously in 
determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such provision differs from the amounts currently payable because certain items 
of income and expense are recognized in different reporting periods for financial reporting purposes than for income tax 
purposes. Recording the provision for income taxes requires management to make significant judgments and estimates for 
matters whose ultimate resolution may not become known until the final resolution of an examination by the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) or state and foreign agencies. If it is more likely than not that some portion, or all, of a deferred tax asset will not 
be realized, a valuation allowance is recognized.

Recording liabilities for uncertain tax positions involves judgment in evaluating our tax positions and developing the best 
estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid. We include any related tax penalties and interest in income tax expense.

Prior to the Spin-off, our income taxes were calculated on a separate tax return basis, although operations have been included in 
Kimberly-Clark’s U.S. federal, state and foreign tax returns. Our income tax results as presented were not necessarily indicative 
of future performance and did not necessarily reflect the results that we would have generated as an independent publicly-
traded company for the periods presented.

Employee Defined Benefit Plans

We recognize the funded status of our defined benefit as an asset or a liability on our balance sheet. Actuarial gains or losses are 
a component of our other comprehensive income, which is then included in our accumulated other comprehensive income. 
Pension expenses are recognized over the period in which the employee renders service and becomes eligible to receive 
benefits. We make assumptions (including the discount rate and expected rate of return on plan assets) in computing the pension 
expense and obligations.

Recently Adopted Pronouncements

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 
2015-05, Customer’s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement. This ASU provides guidance about 
whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license and the appropriate accounting for such arrangements. 
Notably, the guidance in this ASU already exists in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 985-605, 
Software - Revenue Recognition, which is used by cloud service providers to determine whether an arrangement includes the 
sale or license of software. We adopted this ASU as of January 1, 2016. Adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on 
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-01, Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of 
Extraordinary Items. ASU No. 2015-01 eliminates ASC Subtopic 225-20, Income Statement - Extraordinary and Unusual 
Items, which required that an entity separately classify, present, and disclose transactions and events that were determined to be 
both unusual and infrequent as extraordinary items. We adopted this ASU as of January 1, 2016. Adoption of this ASU did not 
have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties About an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going 
Concern, that will require management to assess an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, and to provide related 
footnote disclosures in certain circumstances. In connection with each annual and interim period, management will assess if 
there is substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the issuance date. 
Substantial doubt exists if it is probable that the entity will be unable to meet its obligations within one year after the issuance 
date. The new standard defines substantial doubt and provides example indicators. Disclosure is required if conditions give rise 
to substantial doubt. However, management needs to assess if its plans will alleviate substantial doubt to determine the specific 
disclosures. We adopted this ASU as of December 31, 2016. Adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on our 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Recently Issued Pronouncements

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, that replaces the existing 
two-step goodwill impairment test with a simplified one-step process. This ASU provides that goodwill impairment will be 
measured as the excess of the reporting unit’s carrying amount over its fair value and abandons the second step that requires the 
measurement of goodwill impairment by comparing the implied value of a reporting unit’s goodwill to the goodwill’s carrying 
amount. This ASU is to be adopted prospectively for goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2019, with early adoption permitted for goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. We plan to 
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adopt this ASU beginning with our next annual goodwill impairment test as of July 1, 2017. Adoption of this ASU is not 
expected to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01, Clarifying the Definition of a Business, which provides guidance in evaluating 
whether transactions involve the acquisition (or disposal) of assets or a business. A business has been defined as having three 
elements: inputs, processes and outputs. While an integrated set of assets and activities (a “set”) that is a business usually has 
outputs, outputs are not required to be present. Additionally, the inputs and processes that a seller uses in operating a set are not 
required if market participants can acquire the set and continue to produce outputs. This ASU provides a screen to determine 
when a set is not a business. The screen requires that when substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired (or 
disposed) is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets, the set is not a business. It is 
expected that this ASU will reduce the number of transactions that are treated as business combinations. This ASU is to be 
adopted prospectively for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. 
Adoption of the ASU is not expected to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows - Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and 
Cash Payments. This ASU provides guidance on the presentation and classification of certain specific cash receipts and 
payments in the statement of cash flows and is intended to reduce diversity in practice. This ASU is effective for annual 
periods, and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, but earlier adoption is permitted. 
This ASU is to be adopted using a retrospective transition method to each period presented. Adoption of this ASU is not 
expected to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. This ASU 
simplifies several aspects of accounting for share-based payment transactions including the accounting for income taxes, 
forfeitures, statutory tax withholding requirements and classification on the statement of cash flows. Under this ASU, all excess 
tax benefits or deficiencies are recognized as income tax expense or benefit in the income statement and the pool of windfall tax 
benefits as a component of additional paid-in capital is eliminated. In regards to forfeitures, companies may make a one-time 
policy election to use an estimated forfeiture rate or account for forfeitures as they occur. The policy election regarding 
forfeitures applies only to instruments with service conditions; the requirement to estimate the probability of achieving 
performance conditions remains. For statutory tax withholding requirements, this ASU allows for net settlement up to the 
employer’s maximum statutory tax withholding requirement. Formerly, only the minimum statutory tax withholding 
requirement was allowed to be met through net settlement while retaining equity classification. This ASU is effective for annual 
periods, and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted in 
any interim or annual period for which financial statements have not yet been issued. The application of this ASU in regards to 
the accounting for income taxes, forfeitures and statutory tax withholding requirements should be applied using a modified 
retrospective application with a cumulative effect adjustment to additional paid-in capital as of the beginning of the period of 
adoption. The presentation of employee taxes paid on the statement of cash flows should be applied retrospectively. The 
adoption of this ASU is not expected to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. This ASU requires the recognition of assets and liabilities for 
leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. The recognition, measurement and presentation of expenses and cash flows 
arising from a lease will depend primarily on its classification as a finance or an operating lease, with the classification criteria 
for distinguishing between the two being similar to the classification criteria for distinguishing between capital and operating 
leases under current GAAP. However, unlike current GAAP, recognition of finance and operating leases on the balance sheet is 
required, and additional disclosures are required to help financial statement users to better understand the amount, timing and 
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. This ASU requires modified retrospective application for existing leases. This 
ASU will be effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018, 
however, earlier application is permitted. The adoption of this ASU will require us to recognize assets and liabilities for 
operating leases we have entered into for our principal executive offices as well as certain warehouse, manufacturing and 
distribution facilities globally. We have not yet determined the impact recognition of such assets and liabilities will have on our 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities. This 
ASU requires equity investments, except those accounted for under the equity method or those that result in consolidation of 
the equity investee, to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. However, equity 
investments without readily determinable fair values may be measured at cost less impairment, if any, plus or minus changes 
resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for identical or similar investments in the same issuer. In 
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addition, this ASU provides for a qualitative impairment assessment for equity investments that do not have readily 
determinable fair values. This ASU also clarifies that entities should evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred 
tax asset related to available-for-sale securities in combination with the entity’s other deferred tax assets. This ASU should be 
applied by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. The 
provisions related to equity investments that do not have readily determinable fair values should be applied prospectively to 
such equity investments that exist as of the date of adoption. This ASU will be effective for fiscal years, and interim periods 
within those fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption of this ASU is permitted. The adoption of this ASU 
is not expected to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which, along with subsequent 
amendments, provides a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with 
customers and will supersede most existing revenue recognition guidance. ASU 2014-09 provides for a principles-based, five-
step approach to measure and recognize revenue from contracts with customers. ASU 2014-09 is effective for public entities for 
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption for periods beginning after December 15, 2016 
is permitted. The guidance permits two implementation approaches, one requiring retrospective application of the new ASU 
with restatement of prior years and one requiring prospective application of the new ASU with disclosure of results under old 
standards. While our review of the effect of this ASU is not yet complete, based on the results of our review to date, we do not 
expect a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. We will continue our evaluation to include 
the disclosure requirements along with any changes, modifications or interpretations that may affect our current conclusion. We 
have not selected a transition method, but expect to do so in 2017 upon completion of further analysis.

Note 2.  Business Acquisition

On May 2, 2016, Halyard acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Medsystems Holdings, Inc. 
(“Medsystems”) a Delaware corporation, for a purchase price of $175 million, net of cash acquired (the “Acquisition”). The 
Acquisition was funded with a combination of cash on hand and our Revolving Credit Facility (See Note 6 , “Debt”). 
Medsystems owns and conducts its primary business through CORPAK Medsystems (Medsystems and CORPAK Medsystems 
hereinafter referred to as “Corpak”). Corpak’s innovative enteral access feeding solutions and portfolio of nasogastric feeding 
tubes complement our existing enteral feeding products and create a complete offering of enteral feeding solutions with our 
Medical Devices segment.

In conjunction with the Acquisition, we identified intangible assets related to currently marketed products and in-process 
research and development (“IPR&D”) that we expect will yield economic benefits in the future. The identified intangible assets 
include technology, trademarks and customer relationships that were combined into composite intangible assets by product line 
in consideration of the following:

• Our intent was to acquire the product portfolio and the related technology.
• The trademarks will only be used to market the products associated with the existing technologies. Accordingly their

remaining economic lives are similar.
• The customer base was considered, but was not identified as a separate intangible asset because the cash flows are not

separable from the related technology.
• Low historical customer turnover rates supports longer lives for customer relationships which is consistent with the

estimated remaining useful lives for the acquired technologies and trademarks.

The allocation of the purchase price was as follows (in millions):

Purchase Price
Allocation

Current assets acquired net of liabilities assumed.................................................................................................. $ 14.1
Property, plant and equipment................................................................................................................................ 4.4
Identifiable intangible assets, excluding IPR&D ................................................................................................... 105.1
Identifiable IPR&D ................................................................................................................................................ 5.7
Deferred tax liabilities ............................................................................................................................................ (38.4)
Goodwill................................................................................................................................................................. 84.1

Total................................................................................................................................................................... $ 175.0
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Identifiable IPR&D includes a number of products that we expect to launch in 2017. Goodwill arising from the Acquisition is 
not fully tax deductible. The identifiable intangible assets, excluding IPR&D, include the following (in millions):

Fair Value

Weighted
Average Useful

Lives (Yrs)

Portfolio of disposables ....................................... $ 102.9 15
Enteral access technology.................................... 2.2 6

Total................................................................ $ 105.1

Corpak’s results have been included in the accompanying consolidated income statement following the Acquisition on May 2, 
2016. Corpak’s revenue of $36 million for the period from May 2, 2016 to December 31, 2016 is included in “Net Sales” in the 
accompanying consolidated income statements. Net income directly attributable to Corpak was approximately $1 million for 
the period from May 2, 2016 to December 31, 2016. Due to the integration of Corpak’s portfolio of products into our existing 
digestive health products in the Medical Devices segment, net income is not necessarily indicative of Corpak’s net income as a 
separate, stand-alone entity.

The following unaudited pro forma information is presented in the table below for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 
2015 as if the Acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2015 (in million, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015

Net sales......................................................................... $ 1,609.8 $ 1,628.6

Net income (loss)........................................................... 43.0 (430.3)

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic............................................................................ $ 0.92 $ (9.24)
Diluted......................................................................... 0.91 (9.24)

The pro forma financial information has been adjusted to include the effects of the Acquisition, including acquisition-related 
costs, amortization of acquired intangibles, incremental interest expense and related tax effects. The pro forma financial 
information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved had the Acquisition taken 
place as of January 1, 2015.

Upon Acquisition, we initiated activities to integrate the operations of Corpak into our company. These activities include, but 
are not limited to, integration of corporate functions, information technology and alignment with our operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we have incurred $13 million for the acquisition and integration activities described 
above, consisting primarily of severance and benefits, consulting, legal and other costs. These costs are included in “Cost of 
products sold” and “Selling and general expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statements.

Restructuring

In June 2016, we initiated a restructuring plan to close the Corpak corporate headquarters and operating facility in Buffalo 
Grove, Illinois and consolidate operations into our existing corporate and operational facilities by the third quarter of 2017 (the 
“Plan”). We expect to incur costs of $7 million related to this Plan, consisting primarily of severance and benefits, accelerated 
depreciation and lease termination costs. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we have incurred $5 million of costs that are 
included in “Cost of products sold” and “Selling and general expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statements. 
These costs include $4 million of severance and benefits accrued for employees impacted by the Plan. In the year ended 
December 31, 2016, we have paid $1 million to affected employees and the remaining accrual for severance and employee 
benefits was $3 million as of December 31, 2016.
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Note 3.  Goodwill

We test goodwill for impairment annually (as of July 1) or more frequently whenever events or circumstances more likely than 
not indicate that the fair value of the reporting unit may be below its carrying amount. The fair value of our reporting units were 
estimated using a combination of income (discounted cash flow analysis) and market approaches. Both approaches are 
dependent upon several assumptions regarding future periods, including assumptions with respect to future sales growth, 
commodity costs and a terminal growth rate. A weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”) was used to discount future 
estimated cash flows to their present values. The WACC was based on externally observable data considering market 
participants’ cost of equity and debt, optimal capital structure and risk factors specific to our company. The market approach 
estimated the fair value of our business based on comparable publicly-traded companies in our industry.

We completed the required annual goodwill impairment testing as of July 1, 2016, and the fair values for both our Medical 
Devices and S&IP reporting units were substantially in excess of their respective net asset carrying values.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment are as follows (in millions):

Medical Devices S&IP Consolidated

Goodwill
Accumulated
Impairment Goodwill, net Goodwill

Accumulated
Impairment Goodwill, net Goodwill, net

Balance at December 31, 2014... $ 681.6 $ — $ 681.6 $ 744.5 $ — $ 744.5 $ 1,426.1
Goodwill impairment(a) .............. — — — — (474.0) (474.0) (474.0)
Currency translation adjustment. (3.2) — (3.2) (3.7) — (3.7) (6.9)
Balance at December 31, 2015... 678.4 — 678.4 740.8 (474.0) 266.8 945.2
Goodwill acquired(b) ................... 84.1 — 84.1 — — — 84.1
Currency translation adjustment. (0.2) — (0.2) (0.1) — (0.1) (0.3)
Balance at December 31, 2016... $ 762.3 $ — $ 762.3 $ 740.7 $ (474.0) $ 266.7 $ 1,029.0
_____________________________________________
(a) On completion of the annual goodwill impairment test as of July 1, 2015, we recognized a $474 million impairment loss for our S&IP reporting unit for

the year ended December 31, 2015, which represented the amount by which the carrying value of the S&IP reporting unit’s goodwill exceeded its implied 
fair value.

(b) We acquired $84 million of goodwill in conjunction with our acquisition of Corpak (see Note 2, “Business Acquisition”).

Note 4.  Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Accounts Receivable .................................................. $ 191.6 $ 226.3
Allowances and doubtful accounts............................. (1.5) (1.6)
Accounts receivable, net ............................................ $ 190.1 $ 224.7
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Inventories

Inventories at the lower of cost (determined on the LIFO/FIFO or weighted-average cost methods) or market consists of the 
following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2016 2015

LIFO
Non-
LIFO Total LIFO

Non-
LIFO Total

Raw Materials ...................................................................... $ 45.8 $ 2.3 $ 48.1 $ 49.7 $ 1.1 $ 50.8
Work in process.................................................................... 50.6 0.3 50.9 46.1 0.1 46.2
Finished goods...................................................................... 130.8 40.5 171.3 165.8 46.3 212.1
Supplies and other ................................................................ — 12.8 12.8 0.1 11.6 11.7

227.2 55.9 283.1 261.7 59.1 320.8
Excess of FIFO or weighted-average cost over LIFO cost .. (10.6) — (10.6) (17.6) — (17.6)

Total................................................................................. $ 216.6 $ 55.9 $ 272.5 $ 244.1 $ 59.1 $ 303.2

We may distribute products bearing the Kimberly-Clark brand through April 2017 under a royalty agreement that we have with 
Kimberly-Clark. As of December 31, 2016, we had $18 million of inventory bearing the Kimberly-Clark brand. Based on 
management’s expectation regarding sales of Kimberly-Clark branded products, we have recorded an allowance of $10 million 
in cost of products sold for potential losses from inventory that we may not sell before the expiration of our royalty agreement 
with Kimberly-Clark. 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Land..................................................................... $ 2.1 $ 2.1
Buildings and leasehold improvements............... 85.8 86.7
Machinery and equipment ................................... 499.8 492.8
Construction in progress...................................... 25.0 18.3

612.7 599.9
Less accumulated depreciation............................ (351.9) (320.4)

Total................................................................ $ 260.8 $ 279.5

Property, plant and equipment includes $0.4 million and $1 million of capitalized interest in the years ended December 31, 
2016 and 2015, respectively. There were $6 million of capital expenditures in accounts payable as of each year ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we held $158 million and $173 million, respectively, of net property, plant and equipment 
in the United States.

Depreciation expense was $43 million, $40 million and $53 million, respectively, in the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 
and 2014.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets subject to amortization consist of the following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Trademarks............................................. $ 125.9 $ (93.8) $ 32.1 $ 126.6 $ (90.3) $ 36.3
Patents and acquired technologies ......... 251.8 (131.1) 120.7 149.1 (117.3) 31.8
Other ...................................................... 55.1 (43.8) 11.3 55.1 (40.6) 14.5

Total................................................... $ 432.8 $ (268.7) $ 164.1 $ 330.8 $ (248.2) $ 82.6

As of December 31, 2016, we had $6 million of indefinite-lived intangible assets that we acquired in connection with the 
Acquisition related to IPR&D projects that we expect to launch in 2017. Amortization expense for intangible assets was $22 
million, $26 million and $32 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. We estimate 
amortization expense for the next five years and beyond will be as follows (in millions):

For the years ending
December 31,

2017............... $ 21.2
2018............... 19.0
2019............... 15.2
2020............... 13.0
2021............... 10.7
Thereafter ...... 85.0
Total............... $ 164.1

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Accrued rebates ........................................................... $ 55.7 $ 73.9
Accrued salaries and wages......................................... 57.1 34.5
Accrued taxes - income and other ............................... 7.2 15.3
Other ............................................................................ 31.3 28.3

Total........................................................................ $ 151.3 $ 152.0
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Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities consist of the following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Taxes payable .............................................................. $ 3.4 $ 1.3
Accrued compensation benefits................................... 9.7 9.5
Other ............................................................................ 17.0 17.0

Total...................................................................... $ 30.1 $ 27.8

Note 5. Fair Value Information

The following fair value information is based on a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value. The three levels in the hierarchy used to measure fair value are:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets accessible at the reporting date for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets and 
liabilities in markets that are not considered active or financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, 
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Prices or valuations that require inputs that are significant to the valuation and are unobservable.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement.

The derivative liabilities for foreign exchange contracts as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were $1 million and $2 million, 
respectively, and are included in the consolidated balance sheet in accrued expenses. These derivatives are classified as Level 2 
of the fair value hierarchy. The fair values of derivatives used to manage foreign currency risk is based on published quotations 
of spot currency rates and forward points, which are converted into implied forward currency rates. Additional information on 
our use of derivative instruments is contained in Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments.”

The following table includes the fair value of our financial instruments for which disclosure of fair value is required (in 
millions):

Fair Value
Hierarchy

Level

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair

Value
Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair

Value

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents............................................... 1 $ 113.7 $ 113.7 $ 129.5 $ 129.5

Liabilities
Senior unsecured notes.................................................... 1 246.5 256.4 245.9 252.5
Debt ................................................................................. 2 332.5 341.3 332.2 337.3

Cash equivalents are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of our senior unsecured notes is determined using observable market prices based on trading activity on a 
primary exchange. For the year ended December 31, 2016, there were no transfers among Level 1, 2 or 3 fair value 
determinations. In the prior year, the senior unsecured notes transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy 
following registration of the notes. Transfers between levels occur when there are changes in the observability of inputs. 
Changes between levels are assumed to occur at the beginning of the year.
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Note 6. Debt

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, our debt balances were as follows (in millions):

Weighted-
Average

Interest Rate Maturities
As of December 31,

2016 2015

Senior Secured Term Loan.............................................................. 3.98% 2021 $ 339.0 $ 339.0
Senior Unsecured Notes.................................................................. 6.25% 2022 250.0 250.0
Total long-term debt........................................................................................................................ 589.0 589.0
Unamortized Debt Discounts and Issuance Costs

Senior Secured Term Loan ........................................................................................................... (6.5) (6.8)
Senior Unsecured Notes ............................................................................................................... (3.5) (4.1)

Total Debt, net................................................................................................................................. $ 579.0 $ 578.1

Senior Secured Term Loan and Revolving Credit Facility

The senior secured term loan (the “Term Loan Facility”) is under a credit agreement that also includes a senior secured 
revolving credit facility allowing borrowings of up to $250 million, with a letter of credit sub-facility in an amount of $75 
million and a swingline sub-facility in an amount of $25 million (the “Revolving Credit Facility” and together with the Term 
Loan Facility, the “Senior Credit Facilities”). The Senior Credit Facilities are secured by substantially all of our assets located 
in the United States and a certain percentage of our foreign subsidiaries’ capital stock. Unamortized debt discount and issuance 
costs are being amortized to interest expense over the life of the Term Loan Facility using the interest method, resulting in an 
effective interest rate of 3.94% as of December 31, 2016.

In December 2016, we executed an amendment to the Term Loan Facility (the “Amendment”), under which the margin, or 
“spread” that was charged over the available floating interest rates, as described below, was reduced by 0.5%. In conjunction 
with the amendment we paid fees of $1 million which are being amortized to interest expense over the remaining term of the 
Term Loan Facility using the interest method.

Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility, as amended, bear interest, at our option, at either (i) a reserve-adjusted LIBOR rate, 
subject to a floor of 0.75%, plus 2.75% (formerly 3.25% prior to the Amendment), or (ii) a base rate, subject to a floor of 
0.75%, (calculated as the greatest of (1) the prime rate, (2) the U.S. federal funds effective rate plus 0.50% or (3) the one month 
LIBOR Rate plus 1.00%) plus 1.75% (formerly 2.25% prior to the Amendment). As of December 31, 2016, the interest rate in 
effect for the Term Loan Facility was 3.50%.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest, at our option, at either (i) a reserve-adjusted LIBOR rate, 
plus a margin ranging between 1.75% to 2.50% per annum, depending on our consolidated total leverage ratio, or (ii) the base 
rate plus a margin ranging between 0.75% to 1.50% per annum, depending on our consolidated total leverage ratio. The unused 
portion of our Revolving Credit Facility will be subject to a commitment fee equal to (i) 0.25% per annum, when our 
consolidated total leverage ratio is less than 2.25 to 1.00 and (ii) 0.40% per annum, otherwise. As of December 31, 2016, we 
had no borrowings and letters of credit of $4 million outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, leaving $246 million 
available for borrowing. The maturity date for the Revolving Credit Facility is October 31, 2019. 

On May 2, 2016, we borrowed $72 million under our Revolving Credit Facility to partially fund our acquisition of Medsystems. 
See Note 2, “Business Acquisition” for a description of this acquisition. By December 31, 2016, we had repaid all of the 
borrowings on our Revolving Credit Facility.

Senior Unsecured Notes

The Senior Unsecured Notes (“Notes”) will mature on October 15, 2022 and interest accrues at a rate of 6.25% per annum and 
is payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year. The Notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally, by 
each of our domestic subsidiaries that guarantees the Senior Credit Facilities. Unamortized debt discount and issuance costs are 
being amortized to interest expense over the life of the credit agreement using the interest method, resulting in an effective 
interest rate of 6.54% as of December 31, 2016.
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Debt Covenants

The senior secured term loan and the Notes are subject to similar covenants that, among other things, limit our ability and the 
ability of certain of our subsidiaries to:

• incur additional indebtedness, guarantee indebtedness or issue disqualified stock or, in the case of our restricted
subsidiaries, preferred stock;

• pay dividends on, repurchase or make distributions in respect of our capital stock;

• make certain investments or acquisitions;

• sell, transfer or otherwise convey certain assets;

• create liens;

• enter into agreements restricting certain subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends or make other intercompany transfers;

• consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our and our subsidiaries’ assets;

• enter into transactions with affiliates; and

• prepay certain kinds of indebtedness.

Pursuant to the restrictive covenants that limit our ability to pay dividends, we have the ability to pay dividends, repurchase 
stock and make investments up to an “Available Amount,” as defined in the credit agreement governing the Senior Credit 
Facilities, provided that we are in compliance with all required covenants, there are no events of default and upon meeting 
certain financial ratios.

As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance with all of our debt covenants. The $339 million owed under our Term Loan 
Facility will be due on October 31, 2021, which is the Term Loan Facility’s maturity date. As of December 31, 2016, there are 
no other scheduled principal payments due on our long-term debt in the next five years.

Note 7. Income Taxes

Our income taxes are calculated using the asset and liability method of accounting, which requires the recognition of deferred 
tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Prior to the Spin-off, our income taxes were calculated on a separate tax return basis, 
although operations have been included in Kimberly-Clark’s U.S. federal, state and foreign tax returns.

The provision for income taxes includes federal, state and foreign taxes currently payable and those deferred because of net 
operating losses and temporary differences between the consolidated financial statements and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
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The components of income (loss) before income taxes, and the provision (benefit) for income taxes are as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Income before income taxes
United States ............................................................................... $ 24.2 $ (424.4) $ 91.8
Foreign ........................................................................................ 31.1 13.9 (0.6)

Total................................................................................... 55.3 (410.5) 91.2
Income tax provision (benefit):

Current:
United States .......................................................................... 29.8 13.0 71.2
State ........................................................................................ 4.4 2.7 5.5
Foreign ................................................................................... 7.8 5.3 18.0

Total................................................................................... 42.0 21.0 94.7
Deferred:

United States .......................................................................... (27.3) (8.3) (9.8)
State ........................................................................................ (2.9) (0.6) (1.4)
Foreign ................................................................................... 3.7 3.7 (19.4)

Total................................................................................... (26.5) (5.2) (30.6)
Total income tax provision................................................................. $ 15.5 $ 15.8 $ 64.1

Major differences between the federal statutory rate and the effective tax rate are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Federal statutory rate............................................................................ 35.0% 35.0 % 35.0%
Rate of state income taxes, net of federal tax benefit .......................... 0.2 (0.3) 3.0
Statutory rate other than U.S. statutory rate......................................... (6.9) 0.6 (0.3)
Thailand repatriation related to the Spin-off........................................ — — 15.5
Thailand statutory rate change ............................................................. 7.3 — —
Sec. 987 regulation change, federal and state impact .......................... (4.8) — —
U.S. federal research and development credit ..................................... (4.7) 0.6 —
Goodwill .............................................................................................. — (40.4) —
Non-deductible expenses related to the Spin-off ................................. — — 17.6
Change in valuation allowances........................................................... — 0.1 2.1
Other, net.............................................................................................. 1.9 0.6 (2.6)

Effective tax rate ............................................................................. 28.0% (3.8)% 70.3%
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The following is a summary of the significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities (in millions):

As of December 31,
2016 2015

Deferred tax assets
Intangibles, net .................................................................................................... $ — $ 15.3
Accrued liabilities................................................................................................ 34.8 25.3
Stock-based compensation .................................................................................. 8.7 4.8
Other .................................................................................................................... 8.4 5.9

51.9 51.3
Valuation allowance............................................................................................. (0.5) (0.5)

Total deferred assets............................................................................................... 51.4 50.8

Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles, net .................................................................................................... 17.7 —
Inventories ........................................................................................................... 13.4 19.8
Property, plant and equipment, net...................................................................... 40.0 39.4
Other .................................................................................................................... 1.0 0.5

Total deferred tax liabilities ................................................................................... 72.1 59.7
Net deferred tax liabilities ........................................................................................ $ 20.7 $ 8.9

Valuation allowances remained the same during the year ended December 31, 2016 with no impact to earnings. Valuation 
allowances at the end of 2016 and 2015 primarily relate to tax credits and income tax loss carryforwards.

Realization of income tax loss carryforwards is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of these 
carryforwards. Although realization is not assured, we believe it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets, net of 
applicable valuation allowances, will be realized. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable could be reduced 
or increased due to changes in the tax environment or if estimates of future taxable income change during the carryforward 
period.

At December 31, 2016, we have credit carryforwards for state income tax purposes of $3 million, all of which will expire in 
2025. At December 31, 2016, certain foreign subsidiaries have net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of $11 
million, of which $7 million will expire in 2020. The remaining net operating losses are available for carryforward indefinitely.

At December 31, 2016, U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided on $113 million of current and 
prior year undistributed earnings of subsidiaries operating outside the U.S. These earnings, which are considered to be invested 
indefinitely, would become subject to income tax if they were remitted as dividends, were lent to one of our U.S. entities or if 
we were to sell our stock in the subsidiaries. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax liability on 
these unremitted earnings is not practical because of the complexities associated with this hypothetical calculation. We do not 
expect restrictions or taxes on repatriation of cash held outside of the United States to have a material adverse effect on our 
overall liquidity, financial condition or results of operations for the foreseeable future.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefit is as follows (in millions):

As of December 31,
2016 2015

Beginning of year............................................................................................................................ $ 1.5 $ 1.6
Gross increases for tax positions of prior years ......................................................................... 1.5 0.5
Gross decreases for tax positions of prior years......................................................................... (0.2) —
Decreases for settlements with taxing authorities ...................................................................... (0.1) —
Decreases for lapse of the applicable statute of limitations ....................................................... — (0.6)

End of year ...................................................................................................................................... $ 2.7 $ 1.5

The amount, if recognized, that would affect our effective tax rate as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is $2 million and $1 
million, respectively. 

We classify interest and penalties on uncertain tax benefits as income tax expense. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, before any 
tax benefits, we had $1 million and $0.4 million, respectively, of accrued interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits. 

During the next twelve months, we do not expect the resolution of any tax audits which could potentially reduce unrecognized 
tax benefits by a material amount. In addition, no expiration of the statute of limitations for a tax year in which we have 
recorded uncertain tax benefits will occur in the next twelve months.

Federal and state income tax returns are generally subject to examination for a period of three to five years after filing of the 
respective returns. The state effect of any changes to filed federal positions remains subject to examination by various states for 
a period of up to two years after formal notification to the states. We have various federal and state income tax return positions 
in the process of examination, administrative appeals or litigation.

Note 8. Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plans

Eligible employees participate in our defined contribution plans. Our 401(k) plan and supplemental plan provide for a matching 
contribution of a U.S. employee’s contributions and accruals, subject to predetermined limits. Halyard also has defined 
contribution pension plans for certain employees outside the U.S. in which eligible employees may participate. We recognized 
$9 million of expense for our matching contributions to the 401(k) plan in each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 
2015, respectively, and $1 million of expense was recognized in the post Spin-off period from November 1, 2014 to 
December 31, 2014. Our matching contributions to the 401(k) plan are recognized in cost of products sold, research and 
development and selling and general expenses in our consolidated income statements.

Defined Benefit Plans

Certain plans in our international operations are our direct obligation, and therefore, the related funded status has been recorded 
within our consolidated balance sheet. These plans are primarily unfunded and the aggregated projected benefit obligation was 
$8 million as of each year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Net periodic pension cost for the years ended 
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $1 million, $3 million and $3 million, respectively. Over the next ten years, we expect 
gross benefit payments to be $2 million in total for the years 2017 through 2021, and $4 million in total for the years 2022 
through 2026.

Participation in Kimberly-Clark’s Benefit Plans

Prior to the Spin-off, eligible employees participated in benefit plans sponsored by Kimberly-Clark including defined benefit 
pension plans, postretirement healthcare plans and defined contribution plans. During 2014, prior to the Spin-off, expenses of 
$13 million for these plans were allocated to us.
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Note 9.  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The changes in the components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”), net of tax, are as follows (in 
millions):

Unrealized
Translation

Cash Flow
Hedges

Defined Benefit
Pension Plans

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Balance, December 31, 2013 ....................................................... $ (16.1) $ (3.5) $ — $ (19.6)
Change in Kimberly-Clark’s net investment................................ 11.8 (0.6) 0.1 11.3
Other comprehensive (loss) income............................................. (14.0) 3.6 (0.4) (10.8)
Balance, December 31, 2014 ....................................................... (18.3) (0.5) (0.3) (19.1)
Other comprehensive (loss) income............................................. (22.1) (0.7) (1.3) (24.1)
Balance, December 31, 2015 ....................................................... (40.4) (1.2) (1.6) (43.2)
Other comprehensive (loss) income............................................. (8.3) 0.8 0.6 (6.9)
Balance, December 31, 2016 ....................................................... $ (48.7) $ (0.4) $ (1.0) $ (50.1)

The net changes in the components of AOCI, including the tax effect, are as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Unrealized translation.................................................................................................. $ (8.3) $ (22.1) $ (14.0)

Defined benefit pension plans ..................................................................................... 0.7 (1.9) (0.4)
Tax effect..................................................................................................................... (0.1) 0.6 —

Defined benefit pension plans, net of tax ............................................................... 0.6 (1.3) (0.4)

Cash flow hedges......................................................................................................... 1.0 (1.0) 4.3
Tax effect..................................................................................................................... (0.2) 0.3 (0.7)

Cash flow hedges, net of tax................................................................................... 0.8 (0.7) 3.6

Change in AOCI .......................................................................................................... $ (6.9) $ (24.1) $ (10.8)

Note 10. Stock-Based Compensation

The Halyard Health, Inc. Equity Participation Plan and the Halyard Health, Inc. Outside Directors’ Compensation Plan 
(together, the “Plans”) provide for awards of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock (and in certain limited 
cases, unrestricted stock), restricted stock units, performance units and cash awards to eligible employees (including officers 
who are employees), directors, advisors and consultants of Halyard or its subsidiaries. A maximum of 4.9 million shares of 
Halyard common stock may be issued under the Plans, and there are 2.4 million shares remaining available for issuance as of 
December 31, 2016.

Aggregate stock-based compensation expense under the Plans was $15 million and $14 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and $3 million for the post Spin-off period from November 1, 2014 through 
December 31, 2014. Stock-based compensation expense is included in cost of sales, research and development expenses and 
selling and general expenses.
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Stock Options

Stock options are granted at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of Halyard’s common stock on the date of grant. 
Stock options are generally subject to graded vesting whereby options vest 30% at the end of each of the first two 12-month 
periods following the grant and 40% at the end of the third 12-month period and have a term of 10 years.

The fair value of stock option awards was determined using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model utilizing a range of 
assumptions related to volatility, risk-free interest rate, expected term and dividend yield. Expected volatility was based on 
historical weekly closing stock price volatility for a peer group of companies. The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. 
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected term was based on historical observed settlement behavior. The 
dividend yield was based on the expectation that no dividends are expected to be paid on our common stock.

The weighted-average fair value of options granted in the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the period from the 
Spin-off date to December 31, 2014 was $7.70, $15.15 and $10.01, respectively, based on the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31, November 1, 2014 to
December 31, 20142016(a) 2015

Volatility................................................................................... 26% 25% to 34% 25% to 27%
Risk-free rate ............................................................................ 1.2% 0.7% to 1.9% 0.8% to 1.6%
Expected term (Years).............................................................. 5 2 to 7 3 to 5
Dividend Yield ......................................................................... 0% 0% 0%
________________________________________
(a) In the year ended December 31, 2016, all stock options granted had uniform terms and were awarded on the same grant date.

Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options was $5 million, $6 million and $1 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the period from the Spin-off date through December 31, 2014, respectively. 

A summary of stock option activity is presented below:

Shares
(in thousands)

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Term (Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value 
(in millions)

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ..................................... 1,146 $ 40.70
Granted ................................................................................ 458 29.48
Exercises.............................................................................. (12) 33.48
Forfeitures............................................................................ (66) 39.95
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 ..................................... 1,526 $ 37.42 8.1 $ 4.4
Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2016.................... 469 $ 36.52 7.0 $ 1.1

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding as of December 31, 2016:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of
Exercise Prices

Shares (in
thousands)

Weighted-
Average

Remaining 
Contractual
Term (Years)

Shares (in
thousands)

Weighted-
Average Exercise

Price

$25.00 to $35.00 652 8.3 204 $ 31.67
$35.00 to $45.00 293 7.5 174 37.53

$45.00+ 581 8.2 91 45.53
1,526 8.1 469 $ 36.52
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In the year ended December 31, 2016, the intrinsic value of exercised options and the resulting excess tax benefit was not 
material. In the year ended December 31, 2015, options with an aggregate intrinsic value of $0.4 million were exercised 
resulting in an excess tax benefit of $0.2 million which was recognized as a component of additional paid in capital in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015. There was no exercise activity for the period from the 
Spin-off date through December 31, 2014. For stock options outstanding at December 31, 2016, we expect to recognize an 
additional $6 million of expense over the remaining average service period of one year.

Restricted Share Units

Restricted shares, time-vested restricted share units and performance-based restricted share units granted to employees and 
directors are valued at the closing market price of our common stock on the grant date with vesting conditions determined upon 
approval of the award. 

Stock-based compensation expense related to restricted stock units was $6 million and $8 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and $2 million for the period from the Spin-off date through December 31, 2014. A 
summary of restricted share unit activity is presented below:

Shares
(in thousands)

Weighted 
Average

Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2015..................................... 519 $ 40.69
Granted................................................................................ 125 31.89
Vested.................................................................................. (86) 38.08
Forfeited .............................................................................. (30) 39.35
Outstanding at December 31, 2016..................................... 528 $ 39.12

For restricted share units outstanding at December 31, 2016, we expect to recognize an additional $5 million of expense over 
the remaining average service period of one year.

We also issue restricted share units for which vesting is conditioned on meeting a defined measure of total shareholder return 
(“TSR units”) over a restricted period of three years. Total shareholder return is measured as our stock price performance over 
the restricted period compared to defined group of peer companies. The expense recognition for TSR units differs from awards 
with service or performance conditions in that the expense is recognized over the restricted period regardless of whether the 
total shareholder return target is met or not, while expense for awards with service and performance conditions is recognized 
based on the number of awards expected to vest. The fair value of TSR units is determined using a Monte Carlo using a 
volatility assumption based on the average stock-price volatility for a peer group of companies over the restricted period. For 
awards granted in the year ended December 31, 2016, the assumed volatility was 25% and the weighted average fair value per 
TSR unit was $38.64. For the year ended December 31, 2016, stock-based compensation expense related to TSR units was $5 
million.

A summary of TSR unit activity is presented below.

Shares
(in thousands)

Weighted 
Average

Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2015..................................... — $ —
Granted................................................................................ 230 38.64
Forfeited .............................................................................. (6) 40.12
Outstanding at December 31, 2016..................................... 224 $ 38.60

For TSR units outstanding at December 31, 2016, we expect to recognize an additional $4 million of expense over the weighted 
average remaining restricted period of two years.

Expense under Kimberly-Clark Equity Incentive Plans

Stock-based compensation expense allocated to us by Kimberly-Clark prior to the Spin-off under their incentive plans was $5 
million through the Spin-off date in 2014.
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Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Matters

We are subject to various legal proceedings, claims and governmental inspections, audits or investigations pertaining to issues 
such as contract disputes, product liability, tax matters, patents and trademarks, advertising, governmental regulations, 
employment and other matters, including the matters described below. Under the terms of the distribution agreement we entered 
into with Kimberly-Clark prior to the Spin-off, legal proceedings, claims and other liabilities that are primarily related to our 
business are our responsibility and we are obligated to indemnify and hold Kimberly-Clark harmless for such matters 
(“Indemnification Obligation”). For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we have incurred $20 million and $17 
million, respectively, related to these matters.

The only exception to the Indemnification Obligation relates to the pain pump litigation referenced in this paragraph. We are 
one of several manufacturers of continuous infusion medical devices, such as our ON-Q PAINBUSTER pain pumps, that are 
involved in several different pending or threatened litigation matters from multiple plaintiffs alleging that use of the continuous 
infusion device to deliver anesthetics directly into a synovial joint after surgery resulted in postarthroscopic glenohumeral 
chondrolysis, or a disintegration of the cartilage covering the bones in the joint (typically, in the shoulder). Plaintiffs generally 
seek monetary damages and attorneys’ fees. While Kimberly-Clark is retaining the liabilities related to these matters, the 
distribution agreement between us and Kimberly-Clark provides that we will indemnify Kimberly-Clark for any such claims or 
causes of actions arising after the spin-off. 

We have an Indemnification Obligation for, and have assumed the defense of, the matter styled Bahamas Surgery Center, LLC 
v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation and Halyard Health, Inc., No. 2:14-cv-08390-DMG-SH (C.D. Cal.) (“Bahamas”), filed on 
October 29, 2014. In that case, the plaintiff brings a putative class action asserting claims for common law fraud (affirmative 
misrepresentation and fraudulent concealment) and violation of California’s Unfair Competition Law in connection with our 
marketing and sale of MicroCool surgical gowns. On June 1, 2016, the plaintiff moved for class certification of a California-
only damages class and a California-only injunctive relief class. Although the plaintiff did not also move for certification of a 
nationwide class to determine liability, damages, or injunctive relief, it did move for certification of a nationwide “issue” class 
purporting to resolve certain issues allegedly “common” to members of that class. On July 8, 2016, we moved for summary 
judgment. On November 8, 2016, the court granted in part and denied in part the plaintiff’s motion for class certification. The 
court certified a California-only class for damages and injunctive relief arising from fraud by omission, but it rejected 
certification of a California-only class arising from affirmative fraud, and it also rejected certification of a nationwide “issue” 
class. The court also rejected the plaintiff’s request for “full restitution” damages, meaning the full value of the gowns. Instead, 
the court found any damages would be based on the difference between the purchase price of the gowns and what the purchase 
price would have been for gowns with no AAMI rating. On November 15, 2016, the court denied our motion for summary 
judgment. The parties remain engaged in discovery. The trial is scheduled to begin on March 28, 2017. We intend to continue 
our vigorous defense of the matter.

In June 2015, we were served with a subpoena from the Department of Veterans Affairs Office of the Inspector General (“VA 
OIG”) seeking information related to the design, manufacture, testing, sale and promotion of MicroCool and other Company 
surgical gowns, and, in July 2015, we also became aware that the subpoena and an earlier VA OIG subpoena served on 
Kimberly-Clark requesting information about gown sales to the federal government are related to a United States Department of 
Justice (“DOJ”) investigation. In May 2016, we were also served with a subpoena from the Department of Justice seeking 
further information related to Company gowns. The Company is cooperating with the VA OIG’s request and the DOJ 
investigation.

On October 12, 2016, after the DOJ submitted filings on behalf of itself and various States declining to intervene in two qui tam 
matters, both matters were unsealed. One of those matters is U.S. ex rel. Shahinian, et al. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, No. 
2:14-cv-08313-JAK-JPR (C. D. Cal.) (“Shahinian”), filed on October 27, 2014. The other of those matters is U.S. ex rel. 
Edgett, et al. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, Halyard Health, Inc., et al, No. 3:15-cv-00434-B (N.D. Tex.) (“Edgett”), filed on 
February 9, 2015. Both cases allege, among other things, violations of both the federal and state False Claims Acts in 
connection with the marketing and sale of certain surgical gowns. On November 7, 2016, Dr. Shahinian served his complaint on 
Kimberly-Clark, and on February 6, 2017, he served an amended complaint on Kimberly-Clark. On January 9, 2017, Mr. Edgett 
served his complaint on both Kimberly-Clark and Halyard Health. We may have an Indemnification Obligation for the two 
matters under the distribution agreement with Kimberly-Clark. We intend to vigorously defend the cases.
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We were served with a complaint in a matter styled Jackson v. Halyard Health, Inc., Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et 
al., No. 1:16-cv-05093-LTS (S.D.N.Y.), filed on June 28, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff brings a putative class action against 
the Company, our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer and other defendants, asserting claims for violations of 
the Securities Exchange Act, Sections 10(b) and 20(a). The plaintiff alleges that the defendants made misrepresentations and 
failed to disclose certain information about the safety and effectiveness of our MicroCool gowns and thereby artificially inflated 
the Company’s stock prices during the respective class periods. The alleged class period for purchasers of Kimberly-Clark 
securities who subsequently received Halyard Health securities is February 25, 2013 to October 21, 2014, and the alleged class 
period for purchasers of Halyard Health securities is October 21, 2014 to April 29, 2016. On February 16, 2017, we moved to 
dismiss the case. We intend to continue our vigorous defense of this matter.

We were also served with a complaint in a matter styled Margaret C. Richardson Trustee of the Survivors Trust Dated 6/12/84 
for the Benefit of the H&M Richardson Revocable Trust v. Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et al., No. 1:16-cv-06296 (S. 
D. N. Y.) (“Richardson”), filed on August 9, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff sues derivatively on behalf of Halyard Health, Inc., 
and alleges that the defendants breached their fiduciary duty, were unjustly enriched, and violated Section 14(A) of the 
Securities and Exchange Act in connection with Halyard Health, Inc.’s marketing and sale of MicroCool gowns. We were also 
served with a complaint in a matter styled Kai Chiu v. Robert E. Abernathy, Steven E. Voskuil, et al, No. 2:16-cv-08768 (C.D. 
Cal.), filed on November 23, 2016. In that case, the plaintiff sues derivatively on behalf of Halyard Health, Inc., and makes 
allegations and brings causes of action similar to those in Richardson, but the plaintiff also adds causes of action for abuse of 
control, gross mismanagement, and waste of corporate assets. We intend to vigorously defend these matters.

We were also served with a complaint in the matter styled Medline Industries, Inc. v. Kimberly-Clark Corporation, Halyard 
Health, Inc., et al., No. 2:16-cv-08571 (C. D. Cal.). In that case, the plaintiff makes allegations similar to those in Bahamas, 
Shahinian, and Edgett, and brings causes of action under federal and state false advertising laws and state unfair competition 
laws. We may have an Indemnification Obligation for this matter under the distribution agreement with Kimberly-Clark. We 
intend to vigorously defend it.

We operate in an industry characterized by extensive patent litigation and competitors may claim that our products infringe 
upon their intellectual property. Resolution of patent litigation or other intellectual property claims is typically time consuming 
and costly and can result in significant damage awards and injunctions that could prevent the manufacture and sale of the 
affected products or require us to make significant royalty payments in order to continue selling the affected products. At any 
given time we may be involved as either a plaintiff or a defendant in a number of patent infringement actions, the outcomes of 
which may not be known for prolonged periods of time. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we have an accrued liability which 
management believes is adequate for the matters described herein. The accrued liability is included in “Accrued expenses” in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

We maintain general and professional liability, product liability and other insurance in an amount that we believe is reasonably 
adequate to insulate us from material liability for claims. However, our insurance policies may not cover all of these matters 
and may not fully cover liabilities arising out of these matters. In addition, we may be obligated to indemnify our directors and 
officers against these matters. Although the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we believe that 
the ultimate disposition of these matters, to the extent not previously provided for, will not have a material adverse effect, 
individually or in the aggregate, on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. However the above matters, 
regardless of the outcome, could disrupt our business and result in substantial costs and diversion of management attention.

We are subject to federal, state and local environmental protection laws and regulations with respect to our business operations 
and are operating in compliance with, or taking action aimed at ensuring compliance with, these laws and regulations. None of 
our compliance obligations with environmental protection laws and regulations, individually or in the aggregate, is expected to 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
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Operating Leases

We have entered into operating leases for principal executive offices, located in Alpharetta, Georgia, as well as certain 
warehouse, manufacturing and distribution facilities. The future minimum obligations under operating leases having a non-
cancelable term in excess of one year are as follows (in millions):

Year Amount

2017 $ 16.9
2018 14.9
2019 12.3
2020 8.0
2021 7.3

Thereafter 41.1
Future minimum obligations $ 100.5

Rental expense under operating leases was $22 million, $22 million and $17 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Note 12. Derivative Financial Instruments

We are exposed to financial risks, such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. We 
manage these risks, where appropriate, with the use of derivative instruments. We enter into derivative instruments to hedge a 
portion of forecasted cash flows denominated in Thai baht. The derivative instruments used to manage these exposures are 
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges. The foreign currency exposure on certain monetary assets and liabilities, primarily 
intercompany loans and accounts payable, is hedged with undesignated derivative instruments.

Translation adjustments result from translating foreign entities’ financial statements into U.S. dollars from their functional 
currencies. The risk to any particular entity’s net assets is reduced to the extent that the entity is financed with local currency 
borrowing. Translation exposure, which results from changes in translation rates between functional currencies and the U.S. 
dollar, is not hedged.

The derivative assets for foreign exchange contracts were not material as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. The derivative 
liabilities for foreign exchange contracts as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were $1 million and $2 million, respectively, and 
are included in the consolidated balance sheet in accrued expenses. 

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the 
derivative instrument is initially recorded in AOCI, net of related income taxes, and recognized in earnings in the same period 
that the hedged exposure affects earnings. These gains or losses recognized to earnings were not significant in each of the three 
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. As of December 31, 2016, the aggregate notional value of outstanding foreign 
exchange derivative contracts designated as cash flow hedges was approximately $33 million. Cash flow hedges resulted in no 
significant ineffectiveness in each of the three years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. For each of the three years 
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, no gains or losses were reclassified into earnings as a result of the discontinuance of 
cash flow hedges due to the original forecasted transaction no longer being probable of occurring. At December 31, 2016, 
amounts to be reclassified from AOCI during the next year are not expected to be significant. The maximum maturity of cash 
flow hedges in place at December 31, 2016 is December 2017.

Gains or losses on undesignated foreign exchange hedging instruments are immediately recognized in other (income) and 
expense, net. These gains or losses have not been significant for each of the three years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 
2014. The effect on earnings from the use of these non-designated derivatives is substantially neutralized by the transactional 
gains and losses recorded on the underlying assets and liabilities. At December 31, 2016, the notional amount of these 
undesignated derivative instruments was approximately $2 million.

Note 13. Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each 
period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the number of common shares outstanding and the 
effect of all dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during each period, as determined using the treasury stock method. 
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The calculation of basic and diluted EPS for each of the three years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is set forth in the 
following table (in millions, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Net income (loss)................................................................................................... $ 39.8 $ (426.3) $ 27.1
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:

Basic weighted average shares outstanding...................................................... 46.6 46.6 46.5
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted share unit awards..................... 0.4 — —
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding................................................... 47.0 46.6 46.5

Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Basic ................................................................................................................. $ 0.85 $ (9.15) $ 0.58
Diluted .............................................................................................................. $ 0.85 $ (9.15) $ 0.58

Restricted share units (“RSUs”) contain provisions allowing for the equivalent of any dividends paid on common stock during 
the restricted period to be reinvested into additional RSUs at the then fair market value of the common stock on the date 
dividends are paid. Such awards are to be included in the EPS calculation under the two-class method. Currently we do not 
anticipate any cash dividends for the foreseeable future and our outstanding RSU awards are not material in comparison to our 
weighted average shares outstanding. Accordingly, all EPS amounts reflect shares as if they were fully vested and the 
disclosures associated with the two-class method are not presented herein.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, 1.6 million of potentially dilutive stock options and restricted share unit awards were 
excluded from the computation of earnings per share as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Note 14. Business Segment Information

We are organized into two operating segments based on product groupings: Medical Devices and S&IP. These operating 
segments, which are also our reportable global business segments, were determined in accordance with how our executive 
managers develop and execute global strategies to drive growth and profitability. These strategies include global plans for 
branding and product positioning, technology, research and development programs, cost reductions including supply chain 
management, and capacity and capital investments for each of these businesses.

The principal sources of revenue in each global business segment are described below:

• Medical Devices provides a portfolio of innovative product offerings focused on pain management and respiratory and
digestive health to improve patient outcomes and reduce the cost of care. These products include post-operative pain
management solutions, minimally invasive interventional (or chronic) pain therapies, closed airway suction systems and
enteral feeding tubes.

• S&IP provides healthcare supplies and solutions that target the prevention and management of healthcare-associated
infections. This segment has recognized brands across its portfolio of product offerings, including sterilization wrap,
surgical drapes and gowns, facial protection, protective apparel and medical exam gloves. This business is also a global
leader in education to prevent healthcare-associated infections.
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Information concerning operations by business segment is presented in the following table (in millions): 

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Net Sales
Medical Devices ............................................................................................... $ 567.3 $ 509.5 $ 501.7
S&IP.................................................................................................................. 1,012.1 1,030.2 1,139.3
Corporate and Other ......................................................................................... 12.9 34.7 31.1

Total Net Sales(a) ......................................................................................... 1,592.3 1,574.4 1,672.1
Operating Profit

Medical Devices ............................................................................................... 123.8 107.8 104.6
S&IP.................................................................................................................. 90.7 98.4 166.3
Corporate and Other(b)(c)(d) ................................................................................ (108.8) (105.4) (180.4)
Goodwill impairment........................................................................................ — (474.0) —
Other (expense) income, net(e)(f)........................................................................ (18.3) (4.5) 3.8

Total Operating Profit (Loss).................................................................... 87.4 (377.7) 94.3
Interest income.................................................................................................. 0.6 0.3 2.9
Interest expense ................................................................................................ (32.7) (33.1) (6.0)

Income (Loss) before Income Taxes ......................................................... $ 55.3 $ (410.5) $ 91.2
______________________________  
(a) Net sales in the United States to third parties totaled $1.1 billion in each of the last three years ended December 31, 2016.
(b) Corporate and Other for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes $65 million of general expenses, $22 million of post spin-related transition expenses, 

$18 million of acquisition, integration and restructuring expenses related to the Acquisition (see “Business Acquisition in Note 2) and $4 million of costs 
related to corporate sales.

(c) Corporate and Other for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes $47 million of general expenses, $55 million of post spin-related transition expenses 
and $3 million of costs related to corporate sales.

(d) Corporate and Other for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes $60 million associated with the disposal of one of our disposable glove facilities in 
Thailand.

(e) Other (expense) income for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes $20 million related to legal expenses and litigation (see “Commitments and 
Contingencies” in Note 11).

(f) Other (expense) income for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes $17 million related to litigation matters, as noted in (e) above, partially offset by a 
$12 million gain on the sale of an exam glove manufacturing facility in Thailand.

Within the Medical Devices segment, our digestive health products accounted for more than 10% of total net sales in each of 
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. Surgical pain products also accounted for 10% or more of total net sales in the 
year ended December 31, 2015. None of our products in the Medical Devices accounted for 10% or more of total net sales in 
2014. Within the S&IP segment, surgical drapes and gowns and medical exam gloves each accounted for more than 10% of 
total net sales in each of the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. Our sterilization products also accounted for more 
than 10% of total net sales in year ended December 31, 2014. 
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Depreciation, amortization and capital expenditures by segment are as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Depreciation and Amortization
Medical Devices ............................................................................................... $ 30.4 $ 30.8 $ 40.4
S&IP.................................................................................................................. 24.6 23.3 41.4
Corporate and Other ......................................................................................... 10.2 11.3 3.6

Total Depreciation and Amortization....................................................... $ 65.2 $ 65.4 $ 85.4

Capital Expenditures
Medical Devices ............................................................................................... $ 17.7 $ 23.2 $ 19.1
S&IP.................................................................................................................. 11.2 30.0 46.3
Corporate and Other ......................................................................................... 0.2 17.2 13.1

Total Capital Expenditures ....................................................................... $ 29.1 $ 70.4 $ 78.5

Information concerning assets by business segment is presented in the following table (in millions):

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Assets
Medical Devices ............................................................................................................................. $ 1,197.2 $ 1,030.9
S&IP ............................................................................................................................................... 714.4 766.5
Corporate and Other ....................................................................................................................... 160.2 202.8

Total Assets............................................................................................................................... $ 2,071.8 $ 2,000.2

Note 15. Related Party Transactions

Our consolidated financial statements include net sales to Kimberly-Clark subsidiaries and affiliates of $79 million through the 
Spin-off date in 2014.  

Our consolidated financial statements include certain expenses of Kimberly-Clark which were allocated to us for certain 
administrative functions through the Spin-off date in 2014. These allocations from Kimberly-Clark were approximately $22 
million in “Cost of products sold,” $41 million in “Selling and general expenses” and $11 million in “Research and 
development.”

During 2015, we sold products to a company with which one of the members of our Board of Directors had a relationship. The 
sales transactions during the period of time that our Director was affiliated with that company were approximately $0.4 million. 
We determined that these sales transactions were made in the ordinary course of business.

Note 16. Supplemental Guarantor Financial Information

In October 2014, Halyard Health, Inc. (referred to below as “Parent”) issued the Notes (described in Note 6, “Debt”). The Notes 
are guaranteed, jointly and severally by each of our domestic subsidiaries that guarantees the Senior Credit Facilities (each, a 
“Guarantor Subsidiary” and collectively, the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”). The guarantees are full and unconditional, subject to 
certain customary release provisions as defined in the Indenture dated October 17, 2014. Each Guarantor Subsidiary is directly 
or indirectly 100%-owned by Halyard Health, Inc. Each of the guarantees of the Notes is a general unsecured obligation of each 
Guarantor and ranks equally in right of payment with all existing and future indebtedness and all other obligations (except 
subordinated indebtedness) of each Guarantor.
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The following condensed consolidating balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the condensed consolidating 
statements of income and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 provide condensed consolidating 
financial information for Halyard Health, Inc. (“Parent”), the Guarantor Subsidiaries on a combined basis, the Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries on a combined basis and the Parent and its subsidiaries on a consolidating basis.

The Parent and the Guarantor Subsidiaries use the equity method of accounting to reflect ownership interests in subsidiaries 
which are eliminated upon consolidation. Eliminating entries in the following condensed consolidating financial information 
represent adjustments to (i) eliminate intercompany transactions between or among the Parent, the Guarantor Subsidiaries and 
the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries and (ii) eliminate the investments in subsidiaries.

HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENTS
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net Sales ...................................................................... $ — $ 1,465.5 $ 436.0 $ (309.2) $ 1,592.3
Cost of products sold............................................. — 989.5 354.1 (309.2) 1,034.4

Gross Profit ................................................................. — 476.0 81.9 — 557.9
Research and development expenses .................... — 40.7 0.4 — 41.1
Selling and general expenses ................................ 37.2 312.4 61.5 — 411.1
Other (income) expense, net ................................. (1.3) 36.3 (18.4) 1.7 18.3

Operating (Loss) Profit .............................................. (35.9) 86.6 38.4 (1.7) 87.4
Interest income...................................................... 0.3 0.1 2.5 (2.3) 0.6
Interest expense..................................................... (33.1) (1.7) (0.2) 2.3 (32.7)

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes......................... (68.7) 85.0 40.7 (1.7) 55.3
Income tax benefit (provision) .............................. 23.2 (23.9) (14.8) — (15.5)
Equity in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries .... 85.3 22.3 — (107.6) —

Net Income (Loss)....................................................... 39.8 83.4 25.9 (109.3) 39.8
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax............ (6.9) (6.3) (7.2) 13.5 (6.9)

Comprehensive Income (Loss) .................................. $ 32.9 $ 77.1 $ 18.7 $ (95.8) $ 32.9
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENTS
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net Sales ..................................................................... $ — $ 1,470.8 $ 452.2 $ (348.6) $ 1,574.4
Cost of products sold............................................ — 997.5 393.9 (348.6) 1,042.8

Gross Profit ................................................................ — 473.3 58.3 — 531.6
Research and development expenses ................... — 32.3 — — 32.3
Selling and general expenses................................ 30.6 309.2 58.7 — 398.5
Goodwill impairment ........................................... — 455.0 19.0 — 474.0
Other (income) expense, net................................. (2.7) 45.8 (38.6) — 4.5

Operating (Loss) Profit ............................................. (27.9) (369.0) 19.2 — (377.7)
Interest income ..................................................... 0.3 — 3.1 (3.1) 0.3
Interest expense .................................................... (33.8) (2.1) (0.3) 3.1 (33.1)

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes......................... (61.4) (371.1) 22.0 — (410.5)
Income tax benefit (provision) ............................. 24.6 (29.2) (11.2) — (15.8)
Equity in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries ... (389.5) 22.4 — 367.1 —

Net (Loss) Income ...................................................... (426.3) (377.9) 10.8 367.1 (426.3)
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax........... — (0.1) (24.0) — (24.1)

Comprehensive Loss.................................................. $ (426.3) $ (378.0) $ (13.2) $ 367.1 $ (450.4)
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED COMBINED CONSOLIDATING INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENTS
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations

Consolidated
and

Combined

Net Sales ..................................................................... $ — $ 1,455.0 $ 619.8 $ (402.7) $ 1,672.1
Cost of products sold............................................ — 979.6 546.6 (402.7) 1,123.5

Gross Profit ................................................................ — 475.4 73.2 — 548.6
Research and development expenses ................... — 33.6 — — 33.6
Selling and general expenses................................ 3.0 363.0 58.5 — 424.5
Other income, net ................................................. 0.1 — (3.9) — (3.8)

Operating (Loss) Profit ............................................. (3.1) 78.8 18.6 — 94.3
Interest income ..................................................... — 2.6 0.3 — 2.9
Interest expense .................................................... (5.2) (0.7) (0.1) — (6.0)

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes......................... (8.3) 80.7 18.8 — 91.2
Income tax provision............................................ — (62.8) (1.3) — (64.1)
Equity in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries ... (6.2) 13.8 — (7.6) —

Net (Loss) Income ...................................................... (14.5) 31.7 17.5 (7.6) 27.1
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax........... — (0.9) (9.9) — (10.8)

Comprehensive (Loss) Income ................................. $ (14.5) $ 30.8 $ 7.6 $ (7.6) $ 16.3
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions)

As of December 31, 2016

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents.............................................. $ 54.2 $ 9.5 $ 50.0 $ — $ 113.7
Accounts receivable, net ................................................ 3.1 552.5 241.5 (607.0) 190.1
Inventories ...................................................................... — 231.1 41.4 — 272.5
Prepaid and other current assets ..................................... 5.0 10.5 2.0 (0.3) 17.2

Total Current Assets................................................ 62.3 803.6 334.9 (607.3) 593.5
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net............................... — 217.3 43.5 — 260.8
Investment in Consolidated Subsidiaries ........................ 2,029.5 328.7 — (2,358.2) —
Goodwill ............................................................................. — 993.8 35.2 — 1,029.0
Other Intangible Assets, net ............................................. — 161.1 8.7 — 169.8
Other Assets ....................................................................... 1.0 7.8 9.9 — 18.7

TOTAL ASSETS............................................ $ 2,092.8 $ 2,512.3 $ 432.2 $ (2,965.5) $ 2,071.8

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Trade accounts payable .................................................. $ 398.3 $ 328.9 $ 47.8 $ (601.9) $ 173.1
Accrued expenses ........................................................... 11.1 113.8 31.8 (5.4) 151.3

Total Current Liabilities ......................................... 409.4 442.7 79.6 (607.3) 324.4
Long-Term Debt................................................................ 579.0 — — — 579.0
Other Long-Term Liabilities............................................ 1.9 54.4 9.6 — 65.9

Total Liabilities ........................................................ 990.3 497.1 89.2 (607.3) 969.3
Total Equity.............................................................. 1,102.5 2,015.2 343.0 (2,358.2) 1,102.5

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY........ $ 2,092.8 $ 2,512.3 $ 432.2 $ (2,965.5) $ 2,071.8
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions)

As of December 31, 2015

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents.............................................. $ 92.3 $ — $ 39.7 $ (2.5) $ 129.5
Accounts receivable, net ................................................ 3.0 440.8 221.7 (440.8) 224.7
Inventories ...................................................................... — 258.4 44.8 — 303.2
Prepaid and other current assets ..................................... 5.0 10.8 3.0 (0.2) 18.6

Total Current Assets................................................ 100.3 710.0 309.2 (443.5) 676.0
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net............................... — 228.7 50.8 — 279.5
Investment in Consolidated Subsidiaries ........................ 1,750.8 277.7 — (2,028.5) —
Goodwill ............................................................................. — 918.6 26.6 — 945.2
Other Intangible Assets, net ............................................. — 82.6 — — 82.6
Other Assets ....................................................................... 1.4 0.3 15.2 — 16.9

TOTAL ASSETS............................................ $ 1,852.5 $ 2,217.9 $ 401.8 $ (2,472.0) $ 2,000.2

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Trade accounts payable .................................................. $ 251.4 $ 309.4 $ 42.7 $ (440.3) $ 163.2
Accrued expenses ........................................................... 6.6 115.4 33.4 (3.4) 152.0

Total Current Liabilities ......................................... 258.0 424.8 76.1 (443.7) 315.2
Long-Term Debt................................................................ 578.1 — — — 578.1
Other Long-Term Liabilities............................................ 1.8 41.6 8.2 — 51.6

Total Liabilities ........................................................ 837.9 466.4 84.3 (443.7) 944.9
Total Equity.............................................................. 1,014.6 1,751.5 317.5 (2,028.3) 1,055.3

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY........ $ 1,852.5 $ 2,217.9 $ 401.8 $ (2,472.0) $ 2,000.2
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Operating Activities
Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating
Activities................................................................ $ (33.0) $ 207.7 $ 15.8 $ (1.7) $ 188.8

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures ................................................... — (22.7) (6.4) — (29.1)
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired............. (175.0) — — — (175.0)
Proceeds from dispositions of property ...................... — 3.2 — — 3.2
Intercompany contributions ........................................ 0.5 (177.9) 2.7 174.7 —

Cash Used in Investing Activities ....................... (174.5) (197.4) (3.7) 174.7 (200.9)
Financing Activities

Intercompany contributions ........................................ 170.8 — (0.3) (170.5) —
Line of credit facility proceeds ................................... 72.0 — — — 72.0
Line of credit facility repayments............................... (72.0) — — — (72.0)
Debt issuance costs ..................................................... (0.9) — — — (0.9)
Purchase of treasury stock .......................................... (0.9) — — — (0.9)
Proceeds and excess tax benefits from the exercise
of stock options........................................................... 0.4 — — — 0.4

Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing
Activities................................................................ 169.4 — (0.3) (170.5) (1.4)

Effect of Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash
Equivalents ..................................................................... — (0.8) (1.5) — (2.3)
(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ... (38.1) 9.5 10.3 2.5 (15.8)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period ...... 92.3 — 39.7 (2.5) 129.5
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period ................ $ 54.2 $ 9.5 $ 50.0 $ — $ 113.7
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Operating Activities

Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating
Activities................................................................ $ (44.7) $ 110.5 $ 34.3 $ (2.5) $ 97.6

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures ................................................... — (61.3) (9.1) — (70.4)
Proceeds from property dispositions .......................... — — 7.8 — 7.8
Intercompany contributions ........................................ 39.9 (53.1) 1.3 11.9 —

Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing
Activities................................................................ 39.9 (114.4) — 11.9 (62.6)

Financing Activities
Intercompany contributions ........................................ 46.5 — (34.6) (11.9) —
Debt repayments ......................................................... (51.0) — — — (51.0)
Purchase of treasury stock .......................................... (1.0) — — — (1.0)

Proceeds and excess tax benefits from the exercise
of stock options........................................................... 1.4 — — — 1.4

Cash Used in Financing Activities ...................... (4.1) — (34.6) (11.9) (50.6)
Effect of Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash
Equivalents ..................................................................... — — (3.9) — (3.9)
Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ..................... (8.9) (3.9) (4.2) (2.5) (19.5)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period ...... 101.2 3.9 43.9 — 149.0
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period ................ $ 92.3 $ — $ 39.7 $ (2.5) $ 129.5
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HALYARD HEALTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED COMBINED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Parent
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations

Consolidated
and

Combined

Operating Activities
Cash Provided by Operating Activities.............. $ — $ 41.9 $ 106.0 $ — $ 147.9

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures ................................................... — (70.8) (7.7) — (78.5)
Deposit received on pending sale of assets................. — — 7.8 — 7.8

Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing
Activities................................................................ — (70.8) 0.1 — (70.7)

Financing Activities
Intercompany contributions ........................................ 66.7 (48.4) (18.3) — —
Debt proceeds ............................................................. 636.1 — 1.9 — 638.0
Debit issuance costs.................................................... (11.8) — — — (11.8)
Debt repayments ......................................................... — (2.9) (10.9) — (13.8)
Spin-off cash distribution to Kimberly-Clark............. (680.0) — — — (680.0)
Net transfers from (to) Kimberly-Clark...................... 90.2 77.4 (74.3) — 93.3
Other ........................................................................... — 3.5 — — 3.5

Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing
Activities................................................................ 101.2 29.6 (101.6) — 29.2

Effect of Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash
Equivalents ..................................................................... — 0.1 (1.6) — (1.5)
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ...................... 101.2 0.8 2.9 — 104.9
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period ...... — 3.1 41.0 — 44.1
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period ................ $ 101.2 $ 3.9 $ 43.9 $ — $ 149.0
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Halyard Health, Inc.
Atlanta, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Halyard Health, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, 
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on 
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Halyard 
Health, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on the criteria established in Internal 
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
and our report dated February 27, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial 
reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
February 27, 2017
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness 
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2016. The term "disclosure controls and procedures," as defined 
in Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (or the “Exchange Act”), means controls and other 
procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that 
it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in 
the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to 
ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is 
accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as 
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Based on our evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer believe that, as of December 31, 2016, our 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in 
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal 
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2016. The scope of management’s evaluation included all of our businesses except for the businesses acquired 
with Medsystems Holdings, Inc. (“Medsystems”) which was acquired in May 2016 and whose financial statements constitute 
10% of our consolidated assets, 2% of our consolidated net sales and 4% of our consolidated net income as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2016. For further information, see “Business Acquisition” in Note 2 to the consolidated financial 
statements in Item 8 of this report. Management’s evaluation was based on the criteria related to internal control over financial 
reporting described in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting 
was effective as of December 31, 2016.
Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial statements 
included in this Form 10-K, has issued a report, included herein, on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our fourth fiscal quarter that 
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Halyard Health, Inc.
Atlanta, Georgia

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Halyard Health, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of 
December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  As described in Management's Annual Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial reporting at 
Medsystems Holdings, Inc. (“Medsystems”) which was acquired in May 2016 and whose financial statements constitute 10% 
of consolidated assets, 2% of consolidated net sales and 4% of consolidated net income as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2016. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at Medsystems.  The Company's 
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal 
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of 
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's 
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's 
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely 
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2016, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 of the Company and our report dated 
February 27, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
February 27, 2017
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The following sections of our 2016 Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2016 Proxy Statement”) are 
incorporated in this Item 10 by reference:

• “The Nominees” and “Directors Continuing in Office” under “Proposal 1. Election of Directors,” which identifies our
directors and nominees for our Board of Directors.

• “Other Information—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

• “Corporate Governance—Other Corporate Governance Policies and Practices–Code of Conduct,” which describes our
Code of Conduct.

• “Other Information—Stockholder Nominations for Board of Directors,” which describes the procedures by which
stockholders may nominate candidates for election to our Board of Directors.

• “Corporate Governance—Board Committees–Audit Committee,” which identifies members of the Audit Committee
of our Board of Directors and an audit committee financial expert.

Information regarding our executive officers is reported under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part I of this 
Report.

We believe we are in compliance with all applicable corporate governance requirements of the New York Stock Exchange, the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform 
and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 that have become effective as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information in the sections of the 2016 Proxy Statement captioned “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation 
Tables,” “Director Compensation” and “Corporate Governance—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” 
is incorporated in this Item 11 by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information in the section of the 2016 Proxy Statement captioned “Other Information—Security Ownership Information” is 
incorporated in this Item 12 by reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table gives information about our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options, warrants and 
rights under all of our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2016.

Number of securities
to be issued upon

exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants, and rights

(in thousands)
(a)

Weighted average
exercise price of

outstanding
options, warrants,

and rights
(b)

Number of securities 
remaining available for 
future issuance under 

equity compensation plans 
(excluding 

securities reflected in 
column (a))

(in thousands)
(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders(1) 2,278(2) $37.42 2,424

(1) Includes (a) the Halyard Health, Inc. Equity Participation Plan (the “Employee Plan”), effective November 1, 2014 and (b) the Halyard Health, Inc.
Outside Directors’ Compensation Plan, effective November 1, 2014 (the “Director Plan”).

(2) Includes 691 restricted share units granted under the Employee Plan (including shares that may be issued pursuant to outstanding performance-based
restricted share units, assuming the target award is met; actual shares issued may vary, depending on actual performance). Upon vesting, a share of
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Halyard common stock is issued for each restricted share unit. Column (a) also includes 61 restricted share units granted under the Director Plan. 
Under the Director Plan, upon retirement from, or any other termination of service from the Board, a share of Halyard common stock is issued for 
each restricted share unit. Column (b) does not take these awards into account because they do not have an exercise price.

Halyard Health, Inc. Outside Directors’ Compensation Plan
In 2014, our Board of Directors and our stockholders approved the Director Plan. A maximum of 400,000 shares of our 
common stock is available for grant under this plan. The Board may grant awards in the form of stock options, stock 
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted share units or any combination of cash, stock options, stock appreciation rights, 
restricted stock or restricted share units under this plan.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information in the sections of the 2016 Proxy Statement captioned “Other Information—Transactions with Related Persons” 
and “Corporate Governance—Director Independence” is incorporated in this Item 13 by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information in the sections of the 2016 Proxy Statement captioned “Principal Accounting Firm Fees” and “Audit Committee 
Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services” under “Proposal 2. Ratification of Auditors” is incorporated in this Item 14 by reference. 
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this report.

1. Financial statements.
The financial statements are set forth under Item 8 of this report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial statement schedules.
The following information is filed as part of this Form 10-K and should be read in conjunction with the financial 
statements contained in Item 8:

• Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
All other schedules have been omitted because they were not applicable or because the required information has 
been included in the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit No. (10)a Halyard Health, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Severance Plan, incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 26, 2016.

Exhibit No. (10)b Halyard Health, Inc. Amended and Restated Severance Pay Plan, incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 26, 2016.

Exhibit No. (12) Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the five years ended December 31, 
2016, filed herewith.

Exhibit No. (21) Subsidiaries of the Corporation, filed herewith.
Exhibit No. (23) Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, filed herewith.
Exhibit No. (24) Powers of Attorney, filed herewith.
Exhibit No. (31)a Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) 

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), filed herewith.
Exhibit No. (31)b Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of 

the Exchange Act, filed herewith.
Exhibit No. (32)a Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) 

of the Exchange Act and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States 
Code, furnished herewith.

Exhibit No. (32)b Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of 
the Exchange Act and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, 
furnished herewith.

Exhibit No. (101).INS XBRL Instance Document
Exhibit No. (101).SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
Exhibit No. (101).CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
Exhibit No. (101).DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
Exhibit No. (101).LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
Exhibit No. (101).PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HALYARD HEALTH, INC.

February 27, 2017 By: /s/ Steven E. Voskuil
Steven E. Voskuil
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons 
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Robert E. Abernathy Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

February 27, 2017
Robert E. Abernathy

/s/ Steven E. Voskuil Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

February 27, 2017
Steven E. Voskuil

/s/ Renato Negro Vice President and Controller
(principal accounting officer)

February 27, 2017
Renato Negro

Directors

Gary D. Blackford
John P. Byrnes
Ronald W. Dollens
Heidi Kunz
William A. Hawkins III
Patrick J. O’Leary
Maria Sainz
Dr. Julie Shimer

By: /s/ S. Ross Mansbach February 27, 2017
S. Ross Mansbach
Attorney-in-Fact
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